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CORPORATE PROFILE
naliéft

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”] was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Company law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised] of the Cayman Islands. The
Company's domicile was changed to Bermuda by way of de-
registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda on 10 August 2016 (Bermuda
time). The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 March 2011.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) are principally
engaged in the production and sales of marble slags in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or “China”]. The Group is
a mining operator, focusing on the mining of marble slags, and
owns the largest beige marble mine, in China (in terms of marble
reserves based on the certification issued by China Stone Material
Association (FRBIA 1% & ) in August 2010), namely Zhangjiaba
Mine, which is located in Zhenjiang Village, Xiangshui County,
Jiangyou City of Sichuan Province, China. The first mining permit
of Zhangjiaba Mine expired on 21 February 2021. The renewed
mining permit was issued on 7 March 2022 and is valid from 21
February 2021 to 21 February 2026.

The Group commenced a food service business in the UK in
December 2021. Virtual restaurant brands of the Group involve
a delivery-only operation with its own central kitchen for ready-
to-cook meal kits for the food in various culinary recipes. The
Group operates the e-commence through an online webpage
(www.celeplate.co.uk) for consumers and also sell the products to
some refailers and shops as one of distribution channels. The Group
has carried out a click-and-mortfar strategy by integrating the online
and offline operations.

4 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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RESOURCES AND RESERVES
According to the competent person’s report dated 7 March
2011

of measured and indicated marble resources. The block rate is

, the Zhangjiaba Mine contains 44.2 million cubic meters
expected to be 38% on the marble resources, which is equivalent
to an estimated 16.8 million cubic meters of proved and probable
marble reserves.

The resources and reserves estimate for marble stones of Zhangjiaba
Mine in Sichuan Province as at 31 December 2023 under JORC
Code (os defined in Chapter 18 of the Listing Rules) are sef out in
the following table:

2@/ W
BIEAHA20011E387A0NABERALTHE
RRFEILE44,200,0003L 75 K BRA KT
REAER KEGEROA RTEH A38%
FEETAEE 216,800,000 KB 5 E M BEEE K
BAME-

R2023F12A31BRFJORCERI (EE R £
MR A8 ) 5t E I A oF K5 i L B &
REREREFEIIN TR

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

JORC Resource and Reserve Class Cubic meter Cubic meter
JORC ER K FEEHI 3K 3K
Measured Resource HHER 11.46 million B8 12.29 million B &
Indicated Resource HEEIR 20.68 million B & 22.18 million B &
Total Resource BER 32.14 million B & 34.47 million B &
Proved Reserve FEM=E 4.08 million BB 4.38 million & &
Probable Reserve RS = 7.37 millon B8 7.91 millon B &
Total Reserve BREE 11.45 million B8 12.29 million B &

Note:

The remaining resources and reserves for marble stones of Zhangjiaba Mine for each
year were estimated based on the independent competent person’s report dated on 7
March 2011 (as shown in the Company’s Prospectus) and adjustment for any changes
in the resources and reserves estimates for each year due to mining consumption and
explorafion activities that was confirmed by the Company’s internal expert. There were
no material changes to these reported estimates from 7 March 2011 to 31 December
2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board” or “Directors”] of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and ifs
subsidiaries (the "Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results

of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 ["FY2023").

FINAL RESULTS

For FY2023, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB58.5 million (FY2022: RMB72.3 million) and a gross profit
of approximately RMB21.6 million (FY2022: RMB26.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 19.1% and approximately

19.3% respectively, as compared to those for the year ended 31
December 2022 ("FY2022").

Net loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB59.6 million for FY2023, representing a decrease of
approximately 3.7%, as compared to net loss of approximately
RMB61.9 million aftributable to owners of the Company for
FY2022. Basic loss per share for FY2023 was approximately
RMB38.7 cents, representing o decrease of approximately 11.4%,
as compared to basic loss of approximately RMB43.7 cents per

share for FY2022.

BUSINESS REVIEWS AND PROSPECTS

After lifting the three years of coronavirus-related restriction at the
start of 2023, there were hopes for a strong recovery for China's
economy but it seems fo have come fo a more uncertain end
because of geopolitical tensions, sluggish domestic demand and
a global economic slowdown. China economy remained relatively
soff due to weak confidence over the investment environment and
a decline in exports due to weak global demand. A number of
enterprises, especially small and medium one, continued to struggle
with their financial liquidity. China government has rolled out
more support measures fo ease the cash flow pressure, however,
it needs to take time for them to translate into improved market
confidence. looking forward to 2024, the Company believes that
China’s economic growth momentum will hold stable and gradually
improve when the China government's support measures begin
to take effect. For FY2023, sales of marble slags dropped by
approximately 21.4 % from approximately RMB7 1.6 million for
FY2022 to approximately RMB56.3 million for FY2023 as a result
of subdued demand and weak consumption and gross profit margin
of marble slags business increased from approximately 37.4% to
approximately 37.5%.

6 ChinaKingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FFE3Res

The Company commenced a virtual restaurant brand for a delivery-
only operation. The Group has launched its own website of the
virtual restaurant (www.celeplate.co.uk] which the Group takes
orders for ready-fo-cook meal kits from retail customers. The meal kits
are prepared out of its own cenfral kitchen. Since year 2023, the
Group has commenced to sell the products to retailing stores and
supermarkets as a new distribution channel. The Group has been
enriching the variety of ready-to-cook meal kits, including fresh meat
and seafood, Korean BBQ and hotpot, ovenready Peking duck,
sashimi and efc. The Group believes that it is building traction of
the virtual restaurant business to gain the acceptance for the Group's
products in the market. During FY2023, sales of food for the virtual
restfaurant business grew by approximately 204.6% as compared
to FY2022. The Group believes that the virtual restaurant would be
one of key growth potential businesses of the Group.

After a long period of feasibility study and negotiation, the Group
has decided to reap the opportunities to develop the mining
business in Chile. Chile has a long mining fradition and the
Chilean government has been supportive of the mining industry.
The Company has entered info a memorandum of understanding
with a potential vendor who owns mining rights on the two gold
mines located in Marquina Commune, Valdivia Province, los Rios
Region in southern Chile in order to jointly develop the gold mines.
Demand of gold has seen an upward trend in recent years. Gold
is mainly demanded for the purpose of jewellery and investment.
The years ahead will be framed by confinued geopolitical tensions
between the US and China, wars in Ukraine and Gaza and worries
on potential global economic recession. All these factors will drive
a rise in demand and price of gold. The Company believes it is a
good opportunity for the Company to extend the mining business of
the Group to metal mining in overseas market.

Ahead of years, China has to overcome headwinds from
geopolitical tensions and slowing global economy. The Company
believes the growth of mining business in China will maintain and
hold stable. The Company eyes on overseas expansion as a driver
of the growth for the Group. The Group will continue to be alert
and maintain a high degree of vigilance fo monitor the market
situation and fo identify risk signals that that could adversely affect
the Group's business. The Group will also continue to consolidate
the production and operations of the mining business and extend
the customer base to improve its business performance. On the
other hand, the Group will also continue to explore new business
opportunities so arising in order to maximize shareholders’ value in
the future.

FEESAREZERERAF
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APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity fo express my heartfelt gratitude
to all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for
their affention and support to the Group in the difficult times. | would
also like to thank our directors, management team and all staff of
the Group for their dedication and hard work to the Group for the
past year.

Zhang Cuiwei

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024

8  ChinaKingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE51sRI S i

Business Review

Marble Slag

Marble slags are produced in the course of stripping overburden
at Zhangjioba mine and by crushing the cracked marble stones.
Marble slag is a core raw material for the production of ground
calcium carbonate powder ("GCC"). The Group sells the marble
slags to the GCC manufacturers which are close to the Zhangjiaba

mine.

In FY2023, China’s economy was headed for lessthan-expected
growth because of softening demand and a decline in exports. The
weak global demand cast o shadow on the China's recovery to
the fullest. In addition, the property sector in China has been going
through the years-long liquidity crisis, including dozens of property
developer defaults which was a drag on economic recovery.
China's economy remains relatively soft as investors’ confidence
remains weak. Due to China's economic slowdown, sales volume
of marble slags of the Group decreased by 21.4% from 2.8 million
tons in FY2022 to 2.2 million tons in FY2023 and average selling
price maintained the same at RMB26.0 per fon for both FY2022
and FY2023. The Company believes that China’s economy will get
better in coming years on the back of support policies from China
government in order fo revive investor confidence.

Virtual Restaurant Business

The Group commenced a virtual restaurant brand for a delivery-
only operation. The Group has launched its own website of the
virtual restaurant and takes orders online from UK customers on its
website (www.celeplate.co.uk]. The Group has its three own brands
of "Celeplate 37 & ", "Burgogi Korean BBQ Burger” and "Ya 8§
2" and rolled out five categories of food, such as (1) seafood and
sashimi, (2) meat and wagyu, (3) BBQ and hotpot, [4) mushrooms
and (5) oven-ready Peking duck. In FY2023, the Group has
dabbled in being as an original equipment manufacturer ("OEM”)
and produces the packaged food for a Asian well-known brand
company. The Group now has three main sales channels including
e-commerce, distribution through retailing stores and business for
OEM. For FY2023, sales of foods grew by approximately 204.6%
as compared to that for FY2022. The Company believes that virtual
kitchen would be one of the key growth potential businesses of the

Group.

FEESAREZERERAF
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Exploration, Development and Production Activities
The Group focused on the development and mining at the
Zhangjiaba mine during FY2023. The Zhangjioba Mine confains
44.2 million cubic meter of measured and indicated marble
resources, which represents 16.8 million cubic meter of proved
and probable marble reserves based on a block rate of 38%,
according fo the independent competent person’s report dated on
7 March 2011
no geological exploration activity for the new mining sites during

FY2023.

[as shown in the Company’s Prospectus). There was

The Zhangjiaba mine is mainly divided info the eastern mining zone
and the western mining zone. During FY2023, the Group continued
fo carry out the stripping of the overburden materials at the surface
for both the eastern and western zone of the deposit. The deposit
in these areas is still cracked. The Group expects that the further
development of the mine to lower benches will be required for large
block production. As the property sector has been facing much
difficulties in China in coming next few years, the Company believes
the demand of marble block would dwindle to a large extent. Due
to full of uncertainties, the Group intended not to predict the timing
of resumption of block exiraction and production in the Zhangjiaba
mine.

During FY2023, the aggregate expenditure of the mining operation
of the Group was approximately RMB35.2 million (FY2022:
RMB44.8 million), which mainly included depreciation on property,
plant and equipment and amortization of mining right and land use
right of approximately RMB2.6 million (FY2022: RMB3.1 million),
consumable stores and other expenses of approximately RMBO.03
million (FY2022: RMBO.3 million), and subcontracting cost of
stripping of approximately RMB32.6 million (FY2022: RMB41.4
million). The Group expanded the mine areas explored by the
outsourced engineering team in order to reduce the fixed cost of
production and increase the financial flexibility of the Group.

10 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &=IRfEstsmbz R ilfr

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately RMB13.8
million or 19.1% from approximately RMB72.3 million for FY2022
to approximately RMB58.5 million for FY2023. The decrease
was primarily due fo a combined effect of (ij a decrease of
approximately RMB15.3 million in sales of marble slags from
approximately RMB71.6 million for FY2022 to approximately
RMB56.3 million for FY2023, resulting from a decrease in demand
of marble slags, and (i) an increase of approximately RMB1.5
million in sales of food services for FY2023, resulting from more

new products launched during FY2023.

Revenue by products

$b 25 1 J

L ON
REBNRABH2022BBFENNARE
72,300,000t 2 &9 AR ¥13,800,000
LRI 1% E2023MBFENNARE
58,500,000 T EHEHIA TMERZMN
ERE (| KEBEABEBBENFERTR EHARE
BRENHEEEH2022BRFENNARKE
71,600,000t/ 2 49 AR ¥15,300,0007T
Z2023MBRFENHARES6,300,0007T
AR (i) B R2023 M R FEH B E L ¥ m
2023 BEERMIRBHHERENOAR
#1,500,0007T °

BRERBDBA

Year ended 31 December
BZE12B31BLEE

2023 2022 Change
2023% 20224 g
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETF T ARETTT

Marble slags AEABEE 56,261 71,557 -21.4%
Sale of food HERM 2,230 732 +204.6%
58,491 /2,289 -19.1%

Analysis by sales volume and selling price of marble related

BAEAHRAXBEEREEETNIN

business
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HLLEE
2023 2022 Change

2023% 20224 )
Sales volume: HE:
Marble slags (thousand tons) ANELES (THE) 2,164 2,752 -21.4%
Average selling prices: FHEE:
Marble slags (RMB per ton) REAREE (BMART) 26.0 26.0 -

FEESAREZERERAF
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Gross profit and Gross profit margin
Gross profit decreased by approximately RMB5.2 million or 19.3%

from approximately RMB26.8 million for FY2022 to approximately
RMB21.6 million for FY2023.

Gross profit margin increased by 0.1 percentage points from 36.9%
for FY2022 to 37.0% for FY2023.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased from RMB8.5 million
for FY2022 to RMB4.2 million for FY2023. The decrease was
primarily due to a decrease in direct sales tax on sales of marble
slags, resulting from a decrease in sales volume of marble slags.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from RMB38.3 million
for FY2022 to RMB32.6 million for FY2023. The decrease
was primarily due fo a combined effect of (i) a decrease of
approximately RMBQ.1 million in provision for loss on unwinding
of discount on other receivable; i) an increase of approximately
RMB2.0 million in staff cost primarily due to an increase in
manpower in virtual restaurant business and (i) an increase of
RMB1.8 million in consultancy fee in relafion to financing of the
Company.

Impairment loss under expected credit loss model
(i)  Impairment loss in relation to trade receivable

The Group made an impairment loss of RMBQ.6 million
on trade receivable for FY2023, representing a decrease
by RMB28.3 million, as compared to RMB37.9 million for
FY2022. The impairment loss was provided for FY2023
primarily due to payment delays of the outstanding invoices
owed from marble slab customers, due to tightening
financial market conditions. The customers had long overdue
outstanding invoices, most of which were for the goods
delivered in 2020 and 2021. The Company believes
the Covid-19 pandemic and debt crisis events hit hard
for these customers and they have not recovered from the
financial distress. The Company has made a full provision for
impairment of the outstanding trade receivables overdue for
more than two years according fo the Company's accounting
policies. The other frade receivables overdue less than
two vyears would be impaired based on the ECL valuation
assessment performed by an independent qualified valuer. The
Croup has been making progress to recover the outstanding
invoice from these customers during FY2023 and afterwards.
The customers of the Group have already setiled for their
outstanding overdue invoices of approximately RMB3.6 million
during FY2023. The Company has continued to assess the
repayment ability of these customers and actively communicate
with them to recover the outstanding receivables.
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(i)  Impairment loss in relation to other receivable

The Group made an impairment loss of RMB10.3 million on
other receivable for FY2023, representing an increase of
RMB7.2 million, as compared to RMB3.1 million for FY2022.
The impairment loss in relation to other receivable was
recognised for FY2023 and FY2022 due to the recoverability
assessment of the return of payment for grinding mill machines
and the consfruction of production plant from the suppliers.
The suppliers agreed to refund the payment for grinding
mill machines and the construction of production plant by
instalments. During FY2023, the Group received the refund
of RMB12.7 million from most of the suppliers as scheduled.
The Group further received RMB2.2 million from one of
the suppliers who made the payment with delays after the
reporting date and up to the date of this report. In considering
the current difficult economic environment, the impairment loss
on other receivable for FY2023 increased by RMB7.3 million
primarily due to payment delays resulting in heightening the
risk of default for certain suppliers.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of non-
financial assets

An impairment loss of RMB27.3 million was made on non-
financial assets for FY2023, primarily due to a decrease in
recoverable amount from cash-generating unit ("CGU") derived from
the Zhangjioba Mine. The Company engaged an independent
qualified valuer to carry out a valuation of the recoverable amount
of the CGU as at 31 December 2023, based on the value-in-use
calculations. The valuation uses cash flow projections based on
financial estimates covering the remaining useful life of 18 vears
(“Projection Period”)] and a discount rate of 24%. There was no
change in the valuation method used in current and prior years. The
decrease in recoverable amounts of CGU was primarily due to a
decrease of expected production volume and lower the expected
growth rafe on sales of marble slags during the Projection Period,
considering a decrease in sales of marble slags for current year, the
weak global demand and China’s economic headwinds.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company
As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss of RMB59.6

million for FY2023, representing a decrease of RMB2.3 million as
compared to a loss of RMB6 1.9 million for FY2022.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's tofal equity inferests were
approximately RMB150.9 million, representing a decrease of
25.0% as compared with RMB201.2 million as at 31 December
2022. The decrease was mainly atiributable to a net loss of
RMB59.6 million recorded for FY2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB4.7 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB3.2 million). Cash and bank balances were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi
("RMB"). The Group has adequate financial resources to meet the
onticipoted future |iquidify requirement and copiTo| expendifure
commitment.

As at 31 December 2023, total borrowings of the Group of
approximately RMB16.2 million (31 December 2022: RMB19.1
million) comprised other loans of approximately RMB5.1 million
(31 December 2022: RMB18.0 million), a director’s loan
lincluded in amount due fo directors] of approximately RMB1.0
million (31 December 2022: RMB1.0 million), convertible note of
approximately RMB9. 1 million (31 December 2022: Nil] and lease
liabilities of approximately RMB1.1 million (31 December 2022:
RMBQ1,000). The borrowings were unsecured and dominated in
Hong Kong Dollar and United States dollar. The annual inferest rate
of the borrowings for FY2023 ranged from 2.0% to 12.7% per
annum (FY2022: 5.0% to 12.7% per annum). The borrowings of
approximately RMB15.8 million were repayable within one year
which was accounted for as current liabilities of the Group and
the borrowings of approximately RMBO.4 million were repayable
beyond one year which was accounted for as non-current liabilities
of the Group. The Group does not currently use any derivatives
fo manage the interest rate risk. Gearing ratio, representing fotal
borrowings divided by tofal equity, was 0.09 (31 December 2022:
0.09).

Capital Expenditure

During FY2023, there was no capital expenditure incurred.

During FY2022, the Group's capital expenditure amounted to
RMB1.3 million, which was primarily related to construction in

progress on mining infrastructure.
Charge of the Group's assets

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
charges on its assets.
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Significant investment held
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no material
investments held by the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"). The Group is not exposed fo significant
foreign exchange risk as most of the Group's business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in RMB, which is
the functional and reporting currency of the Group, except certain
administrative expenses of the Hong Kong office which were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. The
Group has nof entered into any foreign exchange contracts as
hedging measures.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any

significont copito| commitments.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets

On 22 December 2023, the Company entered info a memorandum
of understanding ["MOU"] regarding the proposed acquisition
[“Possible Acquisition”) of not less than 50% of the equity inferest
in a company which owns mining rights on gold mines in Chile in
order to jointly develop the gold mines. The gold mines are located
in Mariquina Commune, Valdivia Province, los Rios Region in
southern Chile and are approximately 400 hectares.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have
any other specific plan for material investments or capital assets as

at 31 December 2023.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Details of environment policies and performance refers to the
“"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” contained in this
annual report for further information on the work done and efforts
made by the Group on environment protection, legal compliance
and other aspects for the sustainable growth and development of
the businesses of the Group.
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Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations
During FY2023 and up fo the date of this annual report, the Board
was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Key Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes employees as valuable assets of the Group.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to employees
and reviews staff benefit regularly. The Group infends fo use ifs best
effort to attract and aftain appropriate and suitable personnel to
provide services fo the Group.

The Group attaches importance to the relationships with its customers
and suppliers. The Group believes that building a long-term
beneficial re|otionship with each of them is of paramount importance
to establish mutual trust, loyalty and business development and on
which the Group's success and sustainability rely.

The Group will continue to maintain and strengthen its relationship
with its customers through regular contacts with them. It is the
industrial norm that the marble mine operator usually selects a few
maijor distributors and manufacturers, which has production sites that
are close to the marble mine in order o save fransporfation costs,
management costs as well as sales and marketing costs. Thus, the
Directors consider that there is no significant risk associated with

reliance on major customers.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had employed a total of 36
employees (31 December 2022: 38 employees). The total staff
cost, including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and
pension scheme confribution, was approximately RMB8.1 million for

FY2023 (FY2022: RMB6. 1 million).

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary frends in Hong
Kong and the PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to the
Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute a discrefionary
bonus fo its employees as an incentive for their confribution to the

Group.
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Use of proceeds from fund raising activities

1)

2)

Issue of new shares under general mandate

On 31 March 2023, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a subscriber, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the subscriber
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 7,000,000 subscription
shares of the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.50
per subscription share (the “Subscription A").

The gross proceeds and nef proceeds of the Subscription
A amounted to HK$3,500,000 and HK$3,380,000,
respectively. During the first half of 2023, the net proceeds
were fully utilized in accordance with the infended use at the
fime of the Subscription A as general working capital of the

Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 31 March 2023.

Issue of new shares under general mandate

On 7 September 2023, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with three subscribers, pursuant
fo which the Company conditionally agreed to allot and
issue, and the subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 25,500,000 subscription shares of the Company
in aggregate at the subscription price of HK$0.32 per
subscription share (the “Subscription B”).

The gross proceeds and net proceeds of the Subscription
B amounted to HK$8,160,000 and HK$7,945,000,
respectively. During the second half of 2023, the net proceeds
were fully utilized in accordance with the infended use at the
time of the Subscription B as general working capital of the

Group.

For defails, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 7 Sepfember 2023.
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3)

Issue of convertible notes

On 8 November 2023, the Company entered into an
amended and restated subscription agreement with Advance
Opportunities Fund | and Advance Opportunities Fund VCC
(the “Subscribers”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue, and the Subscribers have
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the convertible notes
in an aggregate nominal value of up to HK$200 million
at an issue price, being 100% of the nominal value of the
convertible notes.

The convertible notes, being 2.0% redeemable convertible
notes convertible into the ordinary shares of the Company
(“Shares”) with an aggregate nominal value of up to HK$200
million.

The convertible notes comprise two equal tranches of a
nominal value of HK$100 million each. Each of tranche
1 nofes and tranche 2 notes shall comprise 50 equal sub-
tranches of HK$2 million each.

The conversion price shall be Q0% of the average closing
price per Share (subject to adjustment] on any three
consecutfive business days as selected by the noteholders
during the 45 business days immediately preceding the
relevant conversion date on which Shares were fraded on the
Stock Exchange.

The convertible notes were issued for funds towards (i) the
acquisition costs of a gold mine located in Chile, South
America and |ii) general working capital.

On 28 December 2023, the Company issued the convertible
notes in aggregate principal amount of HK$10 million to
the Subscribers. The net proceeds were fully utilized in (i)
approximately HK$7.8 million for earnest payment for the
possible acquisition in relation to the mining right on gold
mines in Chile and (i) approximately HK$2.2 million for
general working capital of the Group. For defails, please refer
fo the announcement of the Company dated 28 December

2023.
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Subsequent conversion of convertible notes after the
reporting date

On 26 February 2024, the Company received a conversion
notice from AOF | in respect of the exercise of the Conversion
Right attached to Tranche 1 Notes in the principal amount
of HK$2,000,000 held by AOF | at the Conversion Price of
HK$0.1653 per Conversion Share, which equals to 90% of
the average closing price per Share of HK$0.1843 on the
three consecutive Business Days from 23 January 2024 to 25
January 2024 as selected by AOF | during the 45 Business
Days immediately preceding the relevant Conversion Date on
which Shares were traded on the Stock Exchange. As a result
of this conversion, the Company allotted and issued a tofal of

12,099,213 Conversion Shares to AOF | on 27 February 2024.

On 14 March 2024, the Company received a conversion nofice
from AOF VCC in respect of the exercise of the Conversion
Right attached to Tranche 1 Notes in the principal amount of
HK$1,500,000 held by AOF VCC at the Conversion Price of
HK$0.1653 per Conversion Share, which equals to 90% of the
average closing price per Share of HK$0.1837 on the three
consecutive Business Days from 23 January 2024 to 25 January
2024 as selected by AOF VCC during the 45 Business Days
immediately preceding the relevant Conversion Date on which
Shares were ftraded on the Stock Exchange. As a result of this
conversion, the Company alloftted and issued a fotal of 9,074,410
Conversion Shares to AOF VCC on 15 March 2024.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSHREIREBREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zheng Yonghui (Ef7k#E) , aged 55, has been an executive
director of the Company since @ April 2019. Mr. Zheng has over
20 vears of global business experience around many regions,
including Greater China, Asia and Europe. He has accumulated
rich experience in international trade and business management.

Zhang Weijun

Mr. Zhang Weijun (SR E ), aged 65, has been an executive
director of the Company since 24 December 2015. Mr. Zhang has
around 10 years of experience in mining industry and is currently a
vice president of a mining company in the PRC.

Zhang Cuiwei

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei (582%%) , aged 55, has been an executive
director of the Company since 1 January 2016 and was appointed
as a member of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee with effect from 12 September 2018.
Ms. Zhang graduated in Foreign languages and Lliterature from Jilin
University of the PRC. Ms. Zhang has about 20 years of experience
in corporate management, personnel and administration affairs.

Zhang Mian

Mr. Zhang Mian (58 %), aged 66, has been an executive
director of the Company since 4 February 2019. Mr. Zhang Mian
graduated from South China Normal University in China and has
many vyears of experience in journalism and communication and
media management. He has worked in one of the most influential
mainstream newspaper group in South China. He has also
accumulated rich experience in business management in the fields of
construction, decoration engineering, packaging and printing, new
material development and application.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Yang Ruimin

Mr. Yang Ruimin (#5880 ("Mr. Yang”], aged 40, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company, chairman
of Nomination Committee, a member of Audit Committee and a
member of Remuneration Committee since 11 June 2018. Mr.
Yang holds a bachelor degree in Economic and Administrative
Management from PLA Nanjing Political College (H B A R ##
BEERBUEER) . M Yang has over 10 years of experience in
human resource management in different industries.
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Andreas Varianos

Mr. Andreas Varianos, aged 45, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company and chairman of Audit Committee
since 17 July 2020. Mr. Varianos has over 13 years of experience
in corporate and financial services in Cyprus. Mr. Varianos holds a
bachelor of science degree in Business Administration (Accounting
and Finance) from the American College of Greece in Athens,
Greece. Since 2013, Mr. Varianos has been a Qualified ACCA
Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom. He had previously worked as a Senior Auditor
for KPMG Cyprus from 2007 to 2010. He had also worked as a
director of InferTaxAudit Auditors and Tax Consultants Limited from
2010 to 2017. He is currently the Founder and Managing Partner
of Santabros Enterprises Llimited (Edge Development Group) and
the Founder and Managing Director of AsusPlus Auditors and Tax
Consultants Limited since 2017.

Zu Rui

Ms. Zu Rui (#7%5), aged 33, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company, chairman of Remuneration
Committee and member of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee since 29 September 2022. She has over 8 years of
experience working in the sustainability consulting industry and

financial insfitutions. From January 2016 to April 2021, she worked

at Inenco Group Llimited with her last position as a project and
product solutions developer. From April 2021 to August 2022, she
worked at Ernst & Young Services lid as a manager in financial
services (consulting). Since August 2022, she has served as a
structure finance-corporate sector advisory vice president of National

Westminster Bank Plc.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Li Yunfei

Mr. Li Yunfei (ZZEF), aged 54, has been the chief executive
officer ['CEQ") of the Company since 1 September 2022. Mr. Li
was admitled as a certified public accountant in the PRC. Prior
to joining the Company, he worked at Zhongrui Certified Public
Accountants in the PRC from 2002 to 2004 as a partner, af several
private real estate development and investment companies in the
PRC from 2005 to 2013 as a vice president, at Beijing Sunlon
Development Dairy Co., lid in the PRC from 2013 to 2019 as a
vice president, and at a private investment and consulting company
in the PRC from 2020 to 2021 as deputy general manager. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Central Institute
of Finance and Banking in the PRC (currently known as Central
University of Finance and Economics) in June 1993.
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EXEifHS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company sfrives fo attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The
Board is responsible for implementing good corporate governance
of the Company and believes that high standards of corporate
governance provide a framework and solid foundation for the Group
to safeguard the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has complied with all code provisions and, where
appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “listing Rules”) for
FY2023 except for deviafion from code provisions C.2.1, C.1.8
and F.2.2 of the CG Code.

Deviation from C.2.1 of the CG Code

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer (the
"CEQ") are clearly defined and segregated fo ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the
business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibility, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its
responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-ordinafion of
overall business operations.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be clearly
established and sef out in writing. During FY2023, the Board
has yet to appoint chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”). The
independent Board members will temporarily take the role and
responsibility of Chairman to ensure that the board is effective in
its task of sefting and implementing the Company's direction and
strategy. The Board is of the view that there is a sufficient balance of
power and the current arrangement mainfains a strong management

position of the Company.
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Deviation from C.1.8 of the CG Code

Under code provision of C.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against the Directors. Currently, the Company does not have
insurance cover in this respect as the Board believes that, with
the current infernal control system and the close supervision of the
management, the Director’s risk of being sued or getting involved in
litigation in their capacity as a director of the Company is relatively
low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for insurance
cover from time fo time.

Deviation from F.2.2 of the CG Code

Under code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The chairman of
the board should also invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend.
In their absence, the chairman should invite another member of the
committee or failing this their duly appointed delegates to atfend.
During FY2023, Ms. Zhang Cuiwei aftended the annual general
meefing (the “AGM") and other members of the Board were unable
to attend AGM due to other business commitments. The Board was
aware of this deviation and will continue to bring the importance of
attending AGMs to the affention of each committee’s chairman and

its members.

DIRECTORS” SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the “Model Code”] as
set out in Appendix C3 of the listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all directors of the Company
(the “Board” or "Directors”), all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transaction throughout FY2023, and
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with such
required standard of dealings regarding securities fransactions by

Directors throughout FY2023.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(1)

24

Composition of the Board

The Board has maintained a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of
the Group and for the exercise of independent judgment. The
Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Each Director has been
appointed on the strength of his/her caliber, experience,
professional qualification and potential fo contribute to the
proper guidance of the Group and its businesses.

The composition of the Board was set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zhang Weijun

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Mian

Independent Non-executive Directors
M. Yang Ruimin
Mr. Andreas Varianos

Ms. Zu Rui

During FY2023, to the best knowledge of the Company, there
was no financial, business or family relationship among the
members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company (the "Bye-dlaws”),
any Director appointed by the Board to fill o casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of
members after his appointment and be subject to re election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re election. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
[or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest one-third but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Each Director shall refire at least once
every three years.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in "Profile of

Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 21 of this
annual report.
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(1)

(I11)

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”,
each an “INED") was appointed for a term of three years,
subject to reelection by rotation at least once every three
years. The re-election of each of these INEDs who has served
on the Board for more than nine years is subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders.

The Company received from each of its INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has reviewed the appointments of the
INEDs and considered that all of them are independent and
meet the independence criteria sef out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. Zheng Yonghui, who fook chair of the Board Meeting held
on 28 March 2023, met with the INED's without the presence
of other Directors.

The Company complied with requirements under Rule 3.10(1),
Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Llisting Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Attendance of Directors at the board meeting
and general meeting

The Directors can attend a meeting in person or by means of
such telephone, electronic or other communication facilities that
permit all persons parficipating in the meeting to communicate
with each other simu|foneous|\/ and msfontoneous|\/ in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The company secrefary of the
Company (the "Company Secretary”) will assist the chairman
of the Board and/or executive Director to prepare the agenda
of the meeting and each Director may request to include any
matters in the agenda for the regular Board meefings. All
Directors may seek the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. All Directors will also be provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and
upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company's expense. All minutes of Board meefings
were recorded in sufficient detail, including matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board and are open for
inspection by Directors.
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(V)

26

The Bye-laws contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

There were 8 board meetfings and 2 general meetfing held
during FY2023. The attendance of each Director at the board

meetings and the general meetings is set out below:

REHANFEAGR REEFHRENERBE
ARRGHHREAER RN BRESANLE
RHMEHELRERRAE TG AEEARK-

R2023BFEAN  ARFERITGRESTE
BL2RBRERARG - BREFHFEEFESALK
RRENREEINMT

=
=

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEBITEERE
Director Board meeting  General meeting
=} EEZSEE BEAE
Mr. Zheng Yonghui B0 5K BE 50 A 7/8 0/2
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBHL L 8/8 2/2
Mr. Zhang Weijun RETE LA 8/8 0/2
Mr. Zhang Mian R 7 A 6/8 0/2
Mr. Yang Ruimin ST E 0/8 0/2
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 4t & 3/8 0/2
Ms. Zu Rui ARt 5/8 1/2

The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions,
internal control, risk management and performances. The
principal functions of the Board is fo (1) convene general
meetings and report the Board’s work at general meetings;
(2) implement the resolutions passed by the shareholders
in general meetings; (3) consider and approve strategies,
financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals of
the Group; [4) formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
(5) assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group; and (6) exercise other powers, functions and
duties conferred by the shareholders in general meeting. It is
the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumstances and fo ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company's corporate governance
objectives. The Board operates under defined terms of
reference which set out matters specifically reserved for ifs
decision.
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The partnership between our Board and the management
team is highly transparent and collaborative. The management
team is delegated with the authority and responsible by the
Board for the day-to-day management of the Group and is
accountable to the Board. The management team has overall
responsibility for formulating the business strategies and
development plan of the Group and is also responsible for
the supervision and execution of the plans of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

The Board has also established mechanisms pursuant to Code
Provision B.1.4 of the CG Code fo ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, which the Board
shall review on an annual basis to ensure the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanisms. A summary of the
mechanism is set out below:

Composition
The Board shall ensure the appointment of at least three INEDs
and at least onethird of its members being INEDs (or such
higher threshold as may be required by the Llisting Rules from
time to time).

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee shall adhere to the nomination
policy (see below) with regard to the nomination and
appointment of INEDs. The INED candidate must safisfy the
independence requirements under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Each INED is also required fo inform the Company
as soon as pracficable if there is any change in his or her
own personal particulars that may materially affect his or her
independence and provide an annual confirmation of his or
her independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the listing Rules.

Channel for Communication

The Company is committed to ensuring that the INEDs
will be given the opportunity and channel for Directors to
communicate and express their independent views and
inputs to the Board and its committees. The Company has
established channels through formal and informal means
whereby INEDs can express their views in an open, candid
as well as confidential manner, should circumstances require,
which include meeting with the CEO without the presence of
the other Directors to discuss major issues and any concerns,
and dedicated meeting sessions with the CEO and interaction
with management and other Board members including the
CEO outside the boardroom.
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(V) Board Diversity Policy

28

The Board has a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sefs out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board, and a sustainable and balanced development of
the Company. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriafe to the requirements of the Company’s business. In
designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
fo gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance its operating results and quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. A fruly diverse Board will include and make
good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other qualities of the
Directors. These differences will be considered in defermining
the optimum composition of the Board. All appointments of the
Directors are made on meritocracy, and will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven Directors, amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management
process. As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised five
males, representing approximately 7 1% of the Board, and two
females, representing approximately 29% of the Board; and
our senior management comprised one male, representing
100%. The Board is also characterized by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of gender, age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's
composition, the nomination committee of the Company [the
“Nomination Committee”) considered that the requirements of
the Board Diversity Policy had been met.
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(VI) Continuous professional development of the

Directors

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Directors, on an ongoing basis, have been provided with
reading materials in relation to amendments o or updates on
relevant laws, rules and regulations relevant to their duties. In
addition, the Company encourages the Directors to enroll in a
wide range of professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Llisting Rules, Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and/or corporate governance
practices so that they can confinuously improve their relevant
knowledge and skills and to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Company will, if
necessary, provide fimely and regular frainings to the Directors
fo ensure that they are kept abreast of the latest developments
in the Listing Rules, as well as industry-specific and innovative

(V) EEHREEXERE

RIEEEEATRMNTAMEXFEC 4%
PREFRE2ASEEXUR UERR
FHEMBL G- EESEERHMER
BEABMMARER RAUNERETH
FHNBEME I ARFBBES
HEAMLETAR RAERD (FEED
FORE) R/ REEEAFRNSREE
ERAELBE BEREFAUFERTAR
BN WHERHEHEBETEABEEE
AMEkamBZERTHESSIEL AR -
RN A 6 R B (A B R AR HUE K K E
Bl AREGRIR F BB E AR AR R &
RARTERENRIFES -

changes.

Directors Type of continuous professional development programmes
EEpE BESERREER
Mr. Zheng Yonghui B ) R 5 A B
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBRR T B
Mr. Zhang Weijun REERE B
Mr. Zhang Mian RBEE B
Mr. Yang Ruimin B L B
M. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 7t 4 A+B
Ms. Zu Rui R e A+B
Notes: B 5

A: attending seminars/forums/workshops/conferences relevant to the A HFHEEBRESFBREMAENHIE g/

business or directors’ duties

B: reading regulatory updates
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Audit Committee

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company
has been established by the Board with specific written terms
of reference and all members of the Audit Commitiee are

INEDs.

The latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the primary duties of the audit committee of the Company
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external audifor,
the review of the financial statements and material advice
in respect of financial reporting and the oversight of internal
control procedures of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Andreas Varianos, Mr. Yang Ruimin
and Ms. Zu Rui. Mr. Andreas Varianos is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

During FY2023, the Audit Committee held two meetings fo,
including but not limited to, 1) review the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2022 in conjunction with the
external auditor; 2) review the inferim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 before their submission to the Board
and monitored the infegrity of such financial statements; 3)
review and assess the external auditor's independence or
objective in relation to the provision of non-audit services; 4)
review the internal control and risk management systems and
their effectiveness based on an internal control review report
prepared by an independent advisory firm; and 5) meet with
the external auditor to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit and the areas of concern on the financial statements and
was satisfied with their work, their independence, and their
objectivity.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of
the members of the Audit Commitiee at the audit committee
meetings are set out below:

EHRBEEMEARLEFZEEXB L FEER
— N

g
TEHMNREEIIMT

Attendance/
Members of Audit Committee Number of meetings
ErZEEERE HE " BITEERE
Mr. Andreas Varianos ([Chairman) Andreas Varianos 524 ( £/Z) 3/3
Mr. Yang Ruimin ke kel 1/3
Ms. Zu Rui Bzt 3/3

() Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs.

The latest terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Comnmittee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and the senior management of the Group, review
performance-based remuneration and ensure none of the

Directors determine their own remuneration.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Ms. Zu Rui and Mr. Yang
Ruimin, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei. Ms. Zu Rui is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

During FY2023, the Remuneration Committee held one
meetfing fo approve and review the policy and structure
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and the
management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
to determine the remuneration packages on individual
executive Directors and senior management, in compliance

with E. 1.2 (c)[i) of the CG Code.

FEESAREZERERAF

(1)

¥HWEES
EEZQ@CRUARAFHEES ([FME
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee and
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the remuneration committee meeting are set out below:

FMEZEemERETFHEZEEREHE
FZEe SR RBEIMT:

Attendance/
Members of Remuneration Committee Number of meetings
FHESERE HEBITEBRRHY
Ms. Zu Rui (Chairman) Bzt (£E) 1/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin Bk S 1/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei KRB 1/1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company has been
established by the Board with specific written terms of
reference. The Nomination Committee has also formulated
and adopted its Nomination Policy, a summary of which is
disclosed in “Nomination Policy” below.

The latest terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors and
succession planning for the Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Yang Ruimin and Ms.
Zu Rui, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei. Mr. Yang Ruimin is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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The Nomination Commitiee reviews the composition of the
Board from the diversified angles up to the date of this report
and summarized as follows:

REZEENZTILAERS THEAR
SRMEESNAKBER BlmT

Number of Directors

EEAY

Gender: 1R

- Male -5 5

— Female - 2
Ethnicity: B 45

— Chinese - 6

- Cypriot - EHERHT 1
Age Group: FicA R

— Between 31 and 40 - 31 &408% 2

— Between 41 and 50 - 41 &2508% ]

— Between 51 and 60 - 51&605% 2

— Between 61 and 70 - 61270m% 2
length of service (years) RIGFR (F)

— Between O and 9 years - 0ZE9F 7

For the purpose of implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Company should comply with the requirements on
board composition in the Listing Rules from time to time,
including ensuring that there is no single gender board
(with a 3-year transition period], with the ultimate goal
of achieving gender parity.

2. The number of INEDs should represent at least one-third
of the Board.

3. At least one of the INEDs must have appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

FEESAREZERERAF

AEREFRRASTILRE 2 RAMN
TAHEER:

. ARREBTLETRATNKEBE
EEHMNRE BREBRESSY
FFRE—MREK (B=FEEH)

BRAERERMERITE.

3. EL—BBUFNTEFLAAE
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The Board has achieved the measurable objectives under the

Board Diversity Policy for FY2023.

During FY2023, the Nomination Committee held one meetings
fo review the sfructure, size and composition of the Board
and concluded that members of the Board have possessed the
experfise and independence to carry out the Board's functions
and responsibilities.

The composition of the Nomination Committee and aftfendance
of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
Nomination Committee meeting are set out below:

EEEgN0BMBFECEREEFENESZ T
EBRTHAFERR

R2023MBRFEREAN - RBZBEEHRTT —RE
AR ESENRE RERENK UTRRE
ZEeNEABERNBNBYIMNBRTESS
BB R B E -

REZBEEMNEAKLRAZEEXNBHFERS
ZESERMREIIMT

Attendance/
Members of Nomination Committee Number of meeting
REZEEERE HE " BITEERE
Mr. Yang Ruimin (Chairman) BB EE (FE) 1/1
Ms. Zu Rui A+ 1/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBHRLZ L 1/1
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted a nomination policy [“Nomination Policy”) on 1

January 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as follows:

1. Objective

1.1

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as directors
of the Company at general meetings or appoint him/her
to fill casual vacancies.

1.2 The Nomination Policy helps the Nomination Committee

and the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Group's business
development.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

The facfors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate:

*  Quadlifications and experience in the relevant
industries in which the Company's business is
involved or is going to be involved;

e Commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest:

®  Reputation for integrity; and

e Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

FEESAREZERERAF

4 BUR
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3. Nomination Procedures
3.1 The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members
([if any) for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Commitlee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members;

3.2 Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the
Company. The Nomination Committee may request
candidates fo provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary;

3.3 The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the selection
criteria stated above and make recommendation(s) to the
Board's consideration and approval;

3.4 In the case of the reelection of a director at the general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall review the
overall contribution of the directors to the Company and
their services, their parficipation and performance within
the Board, and whether such director still meets the
needs to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

4  Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1 The Board will review the Nomination Policy from fime

to time.

36 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate governance
policy of the Company. During the last financial year, at its board
meefing to approve the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board monitored the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
reviewed the Group's policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. At the same meeting, the Board
also reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the Company'’s
2022 Annual Report. The Board also reviewed its code of conduct
applicable to employees and directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
financial statements for each financial period, including the
preparation of annual and interim accounts, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. The Company deploys appropriate
and sufficient resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and defect fraud and other imregularities.
The Direcfors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects. The inferim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a fimely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

FEESAREZERERAF

1 SR IR Ik AE
EXECRABEEARAMNEEERRE -
F—MBFE RIEBRE2022412A31H
LFEFEMBERENESEER L - EFEE
RTEENRREBENEIRSESE X%
B B TASEEETERAREERES
HRBRERERER - RA-—8FL BEFETR
ANTARARBTEEEARTRNBERRAR
FA2022F FHACEERBENRERBR -
EEeCRANERREBEREZTZITAT
al -

) B S 3 it
EXEeRRENBVYRIEREAEEY B
BR(EERGEHEERTHERB)NEME K
EEAAMRBRASENFEHMRLZHE
MEENBRERE-ARAARKRE RFTH
ERUREKLEFRE -ERBEBE2023F
12A31ALFEMMBRRE EFECE
EREMNEBRRLEM —BULER
BEE AARAGENHE RS LIRFEL
EEERUEVBBRR-EFAERN—UIA
BRUBSBRAREAGSEEE AR ER
MERRFREMAARRRA - EFL T H
BEBAURERARAFELENENRE
BRERNEHIMRNEMNEKRTAAE
=

AEBARKRE -BHRE2HEFHEAEEE
B-HRRARAISR - ARBANTHARFEFEXED
BETRNOBRE D EFRABMBERR
MEAR=ZEANRPARK RS-

2023 3Rk 37



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {R#EiGiRdS

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable for the services provided for
FY2023 to Elite Partners CPA Llimited (“Elite Partners’) is set out
below:

Services rendered

At Bl H 4

FL20238 BUF E 1R 9 AR 7 T 2 15 A 5
TEEEAMEBMERAR ([FRATERW
Me#smT

Fee paid/payable

1240 iR 7% et EAEA
RMB'000

ARET T

Audit of financial statements E I T®E 535.1
Other non-audit services H b FEE AT AR 141.8
676.9

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing fo take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committlee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group's accounting, infernal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control system to ensure adequate confrol in place to
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle all significant risks associated with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to respond to any risks resulting from significant changes to the
business environment. The risk management and internal confrol
systems are designed fo mitigate the potential losses of the business
of the Group.

38  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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The management would identify the risks associated with the
business of the Group by considering both internal and external
factors and events which include political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritized based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opporfunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment resulfs,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follows:

- Risk refention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market; and

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimize the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For FY2023, the Group has engaged an external advisory firm to
perform the review on the risk management policy and procedures
and carry out the internal audit function fo ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and internal control system of
the Group. The external advisory firm is independent of the Group's
daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management
and infernal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs
and tests of operational effectiveness of the procedures, systems
and confrols established by the Group including various operational
cycles of the Group such as the revenue and receipts, purchase and
payments, project management, fixed assets and capital expenditure
management and financial reporting. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal confrol system that may
affect the financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions has been identified by the external advisory

firm for FY2023.
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Based on the review by the external advisory firm, the Board
reached the conclusion that the risk management and internal control
system and procedures of the Group were effective and adequate.
Such systems, however, are designed to only manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Group's business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against any material misstatement or loss.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee ("Mr. Cheung”] is the company secrefary
of the Company. He is an employee of the Company and has
adequate knowledge of the Company to discharge his duty as the
company secrefary of the Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed that he
has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for

FY2023.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained the procedures and
internal controls for the of inside information. The Company has
adopted the Model Code as sef out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
fransactions. Other employees of the Group who are likely to being
in possession of inside information of the Company are also subject
to the same dealing restrictions. The Group also strictly prohibits
the Directors from the unauthorized use of confidential or inside
information fo the advantage of himself or others. The Company
promptly identifies, assesses and escalates any inside information
and any information which may potenfio”y constitute inside
information to the Board, which decides the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Llisting Rules will be announced on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due
course.

40  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS

(1)

(1)

(I11)

Shareholders convene a special general
meeting

Pursuant to the Byedaws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, any one or more registered shareholders holding af
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the voting right
at general meefings of the Company [the “Requisitionists”)
shall, at all times, have the right, by writlen requisition that
must be signed by the Requisitionists to the Board deposited
at the registered office of the Company fo require a special
general meeting fo be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such meeting
shall be held within three months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed fo convene such meetfing, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionists by reason of the failure
of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedure by which shareholders may put
forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should send their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions under the Bye-laws or the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda regarding procedures for Shareholders
to put forward proposals af general meetings other than a
proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above o convene a special
general meeting for any business specified in such written
requisition.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

(1)

(1)

42

Constitutional documents

On 19 May 2023, the Company resolved by special
resolution to adopt the new Byelaws (the “New Bye-laws”)
in the annual general meeting. The New Byelaws of the
Company are available on the Company’s website.

Communication with shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
and the investors. The Board also recognizes that effective
communication with the investors is the key to establish
investor's confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore,
the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
fransparency to ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
of the Group by ensure timely publication of its annual
report, inferim reports, announcements and circulars on
the Stock Exchange's website at www.hkexnews.hk and/
or the Company's website at www.kingstonemining.com.
The Directors and the Board commitiee members are also
available fo answer questions at annual general meefing of
the Company.

The Company has established a communication policy which
aims at promoting effective communication with the Company's
shareholders and the investors, enabling them to exercise their
rights in an informed manner. It is the Company's general
policy to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and the investors. Enquiries, suggestions or views from the
shareholders and/or investors are welcomed, and enquiries
from the shareholders may be put to the Board through the
following channels to the Company:

1. By mail to the headquarters and principal place of
business in Hong Kong aft Unit 14, 18/F, Seapower
Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong;

2. By telephone at telephone number (852) 2527 4999;

3. By fax at fax number (852) 2527 5666; or

4. By email at cs@kingstonemining.com.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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(I11)

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of its communication policy during FY2023 and
concluded that it is effective.

Dividend policy
The Company adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends on 1 January 2019.

tfransparency of the Company and facilitating its shareholders

It aims af enhancing

and the potential investors of the Company to make informed
investment decision relating to the Company. The Board will
review the dividend policy from time fo time.

While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in
the future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will
depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

[a)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

[b) the Group's expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

[c] retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(d)  the Group's liquidity position;

le) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(fl  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Shareholders will be enfitled to receive such dividends pro
rata according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid
up on the shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any
dividend in the amount set out in any of the plans or at all.
The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may
not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The obijective of this Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG)
Report is to highlight the Group's ESG performance for the purpose
of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the Group’s ESG
concepts and practices in achieving sustainable development for the
future.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report includes the business
operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and China during the
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 [the “Reporting

Period”] relating to the overall performance,

period from
risks, strategies,
measures and commitments of four aspects: quality of working
environment, environmental protfection, operating practices and

community participation.

The variation in our performance is mainly due to the business
operation, the virtual restaurant business in the UK, is now included

in this ESG report.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix C2 of the
Main Board Listing Rules. An assessment on the applicability and

materiality of the relevant key performance indicators (“KPls") under
the ESG Reporting Guide had been conducted.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The following principles are adopted in the Report:

*  Materiality: Imporfant and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in the Reporf. A materiality
assessment was conducted to determine material ESG issues
with results approved by the Board.

e Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and
assumptions used fo prepare the quantifative information is
disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided

with narrative and comparative figures, where possible.

e  Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used fo prepare
and present ESG data in the Report, unless otherwise

specified, to allow for meaningful comparisons.

44 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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e Balance:
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by

The information is presented without the

the reader.

GOVERNANCE ON ESG ASPECTS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy
and reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the Group's ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place. Our management has delegated the
responsibility of coordinating the implementation of the Group's
environment, employment and service quality assurance policies.

The Board leads and provides direction to management by instituting
ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their implementation and
monitoring ESG performance. The Board continues to explore
ways fo further strengthen the ESG governance of the Group.
The Board reviews ESG affairs regularly, including environmental
profection, employment and labour practices, operating practices,
and community investment, and implements appropriate measures fo
enhance the ESG performance of the Group.

STAKEHOLDERS" FEEDBACK

As the Group strives for excellence, stakeholders’ feedback is
appreciated, especially on topics listed as of the highest importance
in the materiality assessment, as well as its ESG approach and
performance. Please share your suggestions or views with us af
cs@kingstonemining.com.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal of strengthening the

sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we make
efforts to maintain close communication with our key stakeholders,

including but not limited to government and regulatory authorities,
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, and the general

public. We take stakeholders’ expectations info consideration when
formulating our businesses and ESG strategies by utilizing diversified

engagement methods and communication channels, shown as

below:

Stakeholders
50E

Expectations and Concerns

HEREY

Find 28
BHERFOELREHRMAZTBRERE &
ENEREEHNREER - ATHEALALEE
MARKEERDENMKRE RMBHETE
FOERFEEYER ERPEFETRNK
FREERE BRR - BE TP HEBM
RB-BRMEBTEATIXARNZ T2 E
HARBBRRE EHEEBRBEUARRE
HehEARBRRRADZEBRNENRE -

Communication channels

Government/regulatory
organizations

BT, BB HE

Shareholders and

investors

BRERREH

Employees

(=3

Customer

S

Suppliers/Contractors
HIER, A e

Community/Public
N

Compliance with laws and regulations

RSP E DY

Return on investments

& O

Corporate governance

TEREAR

Sustainable development

ARHEER

Compliance with laws and regulations
BTERER

Employees’ compensation and benefits
1’2 B Bl K 4@ A

Career development

BE#R

Occupational safety and health

BEw2RER

e High-quality products and services
s BEEMRMRE

Profection of customer rights and
personal data

REZF#zE RMEAE R
Creditworthiness

= g2

a=s

Fulfilment and promises
JBITHGE

Compliance with laws and regulations
" SFIREAR

Involvement in communities

RS

Environmental profection awareness
RIRE W
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® Announcements and other regulatory
reports

s RERHEMEERS

e Information disclosed on the HKEX
website and corporate website

e REBRSHAMULKAFHEIERED

®  Annual general meetings and other
shareholders’ meetings

s BRERBEBFAREREMBRAE

Employee performance evaluation
B B a4
On-the-job fraining
R

Internal e-mail

M #B 2 B

Regular meetings
EHEH

Corporate website
NGIE R

Customer service hotline

B P B 2 iR

Supplier/sub-contractor selection
assessment
HER, DR D EE RN
Performance assessment
KB

Site visits

BEER

Meetings

@

= R

Industry events

TRE

Corporate social responsibility activities

TEHERETAD
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the reporting period, the Group has evaluated a number
of environmental, social and operating items and assessed their
importance to stakeholders and the Group through various channels.
This assessment helps to ensure that the Group's business objectives
and development direction satisfy with the stakeholders’ expectations
and requirements. The matters of concern for both the Group and
stakeholders are listed in the following materiality matrix:

Step 1: Identify potential ESG issues

Taking info account the requirements of “ESG Reporting Guide”
and the latest sustainability frends in the industry to identify relevant
material issues. Twenty-one ESG issues were identified where they
mattered the most to the Group's businesses and stakeholders.

Step 2: Materiality assessment

To determine the materiality of the ESG issues, the view of the
Group's senior management as well as our key stakeholders was
sought. The relevance/importance of each of the ESG issues was
assessed and scored according to their views on a scale of O to 10
(O is irrelevant and 10 is crucial).

Step 3: Priority

Based on the materiality assessment result, the Group prioritised the
issues in two dimensions, namely, “Materiality to stakeholders” and
"Materiality to the development of the Group” and prepared the
materiality matrix as below. The ESG issues that fall within the top
righthand quadrant are of the greatest importance.
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Materiality to stakeholder
HEMENEEMN

Environment
BRI

0Air emission
BERHERL

e Greenhouse
gas emission
BERBHK

@ Wastes production
BEYEE

e Natural resources
consumption
RAEFHFE

o Use of packaging
materials
BEMEER

(6 Impact to the
environment
HRBNTE

o Climate change
Rir#L

Materiality on ESG Issues

RIE - HAEREREZENEE LR
10
0 ®
5 o
7 o o
®
6 @ ©0 ®
5 o 6 o0 o
4 © O o
3
2
0
0 1 3 4 5 6 8 9

Employment

&R

e Labour Practices
BTHR

(9] Employee
Remuneration and
Benefits
EEHMREF

@ Occupational Safety
and Health
BEZZRBE

@ Employee
Development and
Training

EEBFRRE

Materiality to the development of the Group

HAEERRNEEMN
Supply Chain Product
Management Responsibility
R e EmEE

@ Green Procurement

@ Engagement with
Suppliers
EREER

@ Environmental and
Social Risk
Management of
Supply Chain
HEENEER
HERBRER
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@ Product/Service
Quality and Safety
Em/REEE
kz®

@ Customer Privacy
and Data Security
ERILBREERZE

(® Marketing and
Promotion
THEEHERER

® Intellectual Property
Rights
HBERE

Anti-corruption
RES

@ Business Ethics &
Anti-corruption
BRERRRES

@ Internal Grievance
Mechanism
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Community
HE

@ Participation in
Philanthropy
SHEAH
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group has recognized the urgency of climate change and
other environmental crises, integrating environmental considerations
info its strategic and operational decisions. It has demonstrated its
commitment by minimizing its environmental footprint during its daily
operations with the establishment of infernal standards, procedures
and guidelines.

Emissions

During the year of 2023, air pollutants, including sulphur oxides,
nifrogen oxides and particulate matter, were mainly generated
by vehicles used for transportation. Meanwhile, greenhouse gas
("GHGs") emissions were primarily resulted from the combustion of
fuels and the consumption of electricity during business operations.

The Group is concerned about the adverse effect the use of fuel
usage on the environment and promotes car-pooling wherever
possible, as well as using fele-conference or video conference
instead of face-to-face meetings. The major air emissions during the
year are mainly due fo the use of motor vehicles by staff commuting
to and from the mine site and the urban area. The Group will
continue seeking ways fo reduce GHG emissions and mitigafe land
contamination.

RIR-HEBKREIBHS

BRbE

REERMRARE A R EAMRITEENE L]
M ERENEZBAEBBLEERRK BB
HlEARREE - BFLES - AKEEEEE
BRPRAREHMBIBRENTE TRE
FE L5 RO ARHE o

2387

M20234F  ZRFAM (RERELD AR
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BERB(AERBIREERAEBE
EBTRh B AR R B TR

AEBBIMHERERFERNNTINEZE
REETIFENRIHEI UREREFTHX
BHReEIREODEHEZ - FAIENER
HRTEREETIEMAAEARBERERTR -
AEBEKEBES TR BERBHERLRE
T T RE TTA

Type of emissions Unit 2023 2022
BHRMER By 2023%F 20224
Air pollutants
JBE RE X
Nitrogen oxides g 17.1 22.0
BB I
Sulphur oxides g 30.8 0.1
Ay 5,
Particular matters g 1.3 1.5
R i
Greenhouse gas
BERE
Scope 1 - fuel combustion Tonne 5.2 16.5
EE 1 — PR B MR
Scope 2 - purchased electricity Tonne 49.8 5.1
BE2-INEEN L7
Total emission Tonne 55.0 21.6
HEREE R
Emission intensity Tonne/million of revenue 0.9 0.3
B = WE, B & T A

FEESAREZERERAF
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Hazardous and non-hazardous wastes production

During the vear, no hazardous wastes were produced in our daily
operations; however, ink cartridges, fluorescent tubes, and LED light
tubes were generated under review, all of which were properly
collected, handled, and recycled. Non-hazardous waste generated
mainly consisted of municipal solid waste from our daily operations.
For the year ending on 31 December 2023, 3.9 tonnes of non-
hazardous waste were disposed of, consisting mainly of food waste
and used paper. The waste is collected by licensed waste collectors.

The Group has formulated guidelines for waste classification,
reduction, reuse, recycling, and disposal. Paper is one of the major
non-hazardous wastes generated in our offices. The Group has
adopted the following practices to reduce paper waste at its source
and thereby reduce the production of non-hazardous waste:

e Print only when necessary and encourage duplex printing; and

*  Reuse single-sided used papers, envelopes, folders, and
cartons in the office.

Noise

The most significant environmental effects due to noise pollution
were created by the activities of the mine in Zhangjiaba, partficularly
through ifs stripping operations. All stripping activities are carried
out in compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise and
other applicable regulations.

Target settings

The major source of emissions is from the combustion of pefrol and
the use of electricity. With the implementation of energy-saving
measures, the Group aims to maintain the GHG emission intensity at
about 0.5 tonne per million of revenue over the next five years.

Compliance of laws and regulations

The Group constantly updated itself with the local legislation and
standards for environmental protection and assessed whether these
legislations and standards are related to the Group's business and
compliance status. During the year, the Group strictly complies with
the relevant national environmental laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the following:

e the Environmental Protection law of the People's Republic of
China
e the low of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental

Impact Assessment

50  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention

and Control of Water Pollution

e the law of the People's Republic of China on the Prevention

and Control of Atmospheric Pollution

* the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, and

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention

and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution.

Use of Resources

The Group makes use of resources efficiently and conscientiously

in order to promote susfainable development. Staff are urged fo

engage in environmentally friendly practices through their daily

routines, and the Group takes a proactive stance in monitoring ifs

RIR-HEBKREIBHS

. (REARAMBIKIZ R AE)

. (PEARAMB KRR R EE)

. (PEARAMBEEREYSRARED

BIR) K

. (FEARAMBERRRB)S LM A

) e

BERER

AEESHEBROANAER ACE R AR
FB-AEEHFREIAERE LEPBITRRE
S URBRERBEREYELE RSIEEAA
B # o B 20224 2202312431 H IEF

waste output while encouraging the use of recyclable materials. The B 2 JBFEEEMT -

following consumption data were recorded in the year ended 31

December 2022 and 2023:

Resources Unit 2023 2022
'R B 2023% 20224
Petrol kWh 18,164 159,845
i TRE

Electricity kWh 81,604 19,039
B TR B

Total energy consumption kWh 99,768 178,884
BERERE TR B

Energy consumption infensity kWh/million of revenue 1,706 2,485
BERHRERE FTEE B&ETHA

Water Litre 673 362
7K vl

Water consumption infensity L/million of revenue 12 5
KT E BB TRA

* Assuming 1L of petrol equivalent to ~9.5kWh.

FEESAREZERERAF

O BEITHTUEEE R ST RE -

2023 F R 51



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to upholding high environmental standards
in order to promote environmental friendliness. Throughout the
Group, the following actions have been taken to reduce carbon and
energy footprints:

®  maintain the indoor temperature of offices at 26° C;
*  minimise the use of motor vehicles during peak hours;
e choosing environmentally friendly materials and energy saving

lightings and electrical appliances;
e switch off idle electrical appliances;

e conduct regular maintenance and repairs for electrical
appliances to reduce energy waste; and

®  encourage staff to report all leaking faucets or pipes to
relevant department and turn off all taps when not in use.

Water

The mine water is sourced from groundwater, so obtaining sufficient
water for the Group's needs was not a problem. The volume,
quality, and availability of the resources were more than satisfactory.
As a result, there is no dafa regarding water consumption. For our
offices in China, Hong Kong, and the UK, water usage is limited to
basic hygiene and cleaning requirements.

Packaging materials

Recognizing the extensive damage caused by single-use plastic to
the environment, the Group is defermined to properly manage our
usage of these materials in our packaging. While utilizing plastic
packaging is unavoidable in running a virtual restaurant business,
we remain committed to reducing our reliance on plastic materials
and employing sustainable alternatives for our packaging.
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Given the increased demand for takeout services during the
pandemic, the Group has worked tirelessly to reduce the amount of
packaging materials used. We will continue to analyse the potential
for a complete switch to biodegradable and eco-friendly packaging
materials in the future, focusing on reducing, tracking and confrolling
the sustainable use of such materials.

RIR - HERE]

oS

S f'liﬁﬁfﬁﬁl\ﬁéﬂﬁﬂ‘iﬁﬁ%ﬁ%iim KREB TR
KM EMERE AL RRE - HMBEES
*ﬁﬁ%}: TEANAEMRBREREM AT
BENE BREDER A BMRIEHZEN B
BER -

Unit 2023 2022
B 2023% 20224
Total food and beverage packaging material used  Tonnes 4,802 10,000
Emk#HHBEMHEREE MR
Food and beverage packaging material infensity  Tonnes/million of revenue in RMB 82 139
EmEgHBEMRERTE WE AR B ETHA

Environmental and Natural Resources

As mining operators, the Group is engaged in exfracting natural
resources at the Zhangjiaba Mine. The Management believes that
every practicable effort has been made to ensure their collateral
impact on the surrounding environment is kept fo a minimum. From
the planning stage of the excavation, the location is sef outside the
urban planning area and does not involve designafed areas such as
nature reserves, scenic spofs, and cultural relics (under preservation
there is no farmland located near the

protection). Furthermore,

mining sites.

The Management firmly believes that both the effective and efficient
use of energy and due care for the environment are vital for the
sustainable development of the Group. Hence, the Group closely
monitors and reviews relevant dafa from fime fo time, minimizing the
negative effects on the environment while maximizing its business
development and operations.

As a marble production enterprise, the Company strictly complies
with the Environmental Impact Assessment law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Water and Soil Conservation law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Provisions on land Reclamation,
and other relevant regulations. The Company has formulated an
environmental impact assessment report and a water and soil
conservation plan targeting water and soil loss and ecological
damage, aiming fo avoid impacting local plant and animal

communities.

In order to contribute to the nation’s efforts in reducing greenhouse
gas emissions, the Company has hired professional consultants to
implement an eco-friendly restoration scheme in the mine. During the

year, 150 trees were planted.
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Climate change
The Group recognizes that climate change can have significant
implications for its operations.

Governance The Board of Directors oversees our risk mitigation
and examines our ESG risks. Our Group
Sustainability Committee, chaired by our CEO,
assesses and manages sustainability issues. The
ESG working group reports regularly to the Board
of Directors on sustainability matters and manage
our climate-related issues on a day-fo-day basis,
with the support from execution groups and
operations units and departments.

Strategy The consequences of climate change, such as
higher temperatures, rising sea levels, alterations
in precipitation, and more frequent extreme
weather occurrences, will have shortterm and
long-ferm impacts on our operations.

SOCIAL

The system covers recruitment, rank management, remuneration,
fraining, confidentiality and other areas. The Group ensures that
employees are clear about their own rights and responsibilities as
they will comply with the system and carry out their work legally in
order 1o safeguard the inferest of both parties.

Employment

Although the Group has faced challenges from a downtrend in the
economic environment, the staff is willing 1o work with the Group
to tackle these unfavourable, adverse conditions. The Group has
established a policy to ensure that the rights of each staff member
are profected regardless of the circumstances. The employment
contract of the Group specifies the terms including compensation
and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare for our staff. Every staff member of the Group has signed
an employment contract. The promotion policies of the Group are
based on the performance of the relevant staff and their position on
an annual basis.

Working hours, rest periods and leave paid

A five-day work arrangement is adopted to facilitate work-life
balance. In addition to all rest days and statutory holidays as
specified in local laws and regulations, employees are entitled to
paid annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage leave,
and compassionate leave. Overtime work compensation is provided
to staff for working overtime.
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REBERFEHE

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity

The Group actively promofes a diverse workplace where people AEEBEEHREZZ To TIEGM KB T
from diverse backgrounds are valued and respected. The Group REEHEIHBINERRESFT - AEEBK
adopts equal employment opporfunity policies and treats all #MFERERSBE HHAEEIL —HREAC-
employees equally. Employment, remuneration, and promotion are B FMEEA T ER - Rk H# - 1*
not influenced by social identities such as ethnicity, race, nafionality, Bl ~ 7R 2015 1 - G 8¢ ~ £ B ~ BUR IR Bl K& 45

gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political affiliation, and AR RN F SHEFE -

marital status.

Workforce  Staff turnover
distribution rate
EISH BIRKE(%
Total number of staff BETHAY 37 8%
Gender gyl
Male B 25 4%
Female pegis 12 18%
Category BARIE S
Senior management SRERE 17 6%
Management ERAB 10 -
General staff LTWMET 10 20%
Age group B Fhe A5
18-30 18-30%% 6 -
31-50 31-50%% 13 8%
51 or above S51pRsk A £ 18 11%
Region FZ A [
PRC s 12 8%
Hong Kong BB 16 13%
United Kingdom HE % -
Employment type HIE B2
Full-time £l 37 8%
Parttime R - 7

FEESAREZERERAF
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Compliance of laws and regulations
The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the labour laws and regulations, including, but not limited fo the

RIR-HEBKREIBHS

BFEEER
AEEYEBFREMNRERRS TERERD
B BRERERBREETRRVIATEE:

following:
PRC e labour law
a3 o (BEER)
e labour Confract Law
o (BERARE)
e Social Insurance law of the People’s Republic of China
o (PEARHAMEMHSREIE)
Hong Kong ° Employment Ordinance
B o (REEHD
e Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
o (REMWEKEH)
e Minimum Wage ordinance
o (HEIEHKH)
®  Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
o (EFIMRTEEFEED)
United Kingdom e Employment Rights Act 1996
HRE o 1996%F (REHEFDE)

e Equality Act 2010
e 2010%F (FF%)
e Nafional Minimum Wage Act 1998

° 19984 (B K

RIELEZE)

e Employment Tribunals Act 1996
o 1996%F (MEIEEE)

Health and safety

The health and safety of employees have always been the Group's
priority in production. To mitigafe the risks of workplace events and
emphasize the significance of employee health, the Group has
created a variety of regulations and protocols. These are included
in their Stoff Handbook, distributed to employees, and enforced
by their line management and human resource department. Most
of their mining workers are hired through a third-party agency. The
Group has specified that these agencies must follow the same safety
and health profocols as they would with their own employees, or
even stricter standards.
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It is mandatory for all kitchen staff to follow safety guidelines and
receive instructions for the correct use of machinery or equipment. A
safety monitoring system has been put in place, and individuals are
assigned to each stage of production fo ensure safety regulations
are being followed.

RIR - HERE]

oS
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Occupational health and safety statistics 2023 2022 2021
BERBERZ2MATEE 2023%F 20224 20214
Number of lost days due to work injury EATEmBLINTIEEH Nil = Nil = Nil =
Number of work-related fatalities EIT T AR Nil & Nil = Nil =

Compliance of laws and regulations

BFEEER

PRC Work Safety Law
a3 (ZEEEER)
Regulations on Work Safety Supervision
(ZeEEEBEEGN)
Regulations on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases
(B EmPaE)
Regulation on WorkRelated Injury Insurances
(BRI
Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
B (BEZ = R2EGED)
United Kingdom Health and Safety at Work Act 1974
RE 10745 (TERRBEE % 2%)

FEESAREZERERAF
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Development and training

Management believes that keeping employees up to date with
emerging frends and standards plays a fundamental role in business
growth. Therefore, the Group encourages employees to continuously
develop and improve their skills through training. The Group s
aware of the potential longferm benefits of training for sustainable
development, both for the Group and its employees. Accordingly,
the Group offers training programs for directors on current Group
advancements and essential skills. Furthermore, it will periodically
evaluate these programs and assess their success. The Group
emphasizes communication between management and employees,
honouring and considering their ideas and thoughts.

Training details for directors and staff for the year ended 31

December 2023:

RIR-HEBKREIBHS

R KB

ERERR FEIRRMBY INEEHER
BREESZENFERA A AEEZBETE
BIFFITE R MRS B - AR BRI Y
RAEEREREAFEZRNEERIES
At "EBERESRHABASEENRRE N
EARZREMIFIIRIZ - I AEEAERE X
ERBETHBELFIEEMR - AEEEREE
BRETIHNER EEIERBRENEEN
B

BE20236 1231 BILFEHERATHES
HEMT

Average  Percentage of
training hours  staff attended
attended training
ikl
F 1955 B B ETHIHL
Gender gkl
Male Bt 38 56%
Female el 20 25%
Job position R BT
Senior management SREERE 17 12%
Management EBAEB 28 20%
General staff TWET 39 100%

Labour standards

The Group is committed to upholding the labour rights of staff and
has established a compliant mechanism for staff to report any labour
violations. Management believes that the Group has complied with
relevant labour standards for the year ended 31 December 2023.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no lobour disputes
between the company and its staff have been recorded.
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The Group strictly forbids any unlawful employment and child labour.
All employees must meet the required minimum age. We adhere fo
all laws and regulations related to child labour and forced labour,
which include:

RIR-HEBKREIBHS

AEEBEEEMEAEBIERETINITR M
BEREVEZEZRENKEFEK - RIMETHE
BRZEILETRAGISTHERER B4

PRC ° Labour Contract Law
H o (BEERE)
. Labour Law

o (EEX)

° Law of the PRC on Protection of Minors

o (hEARHAMBEARKF AREE)

Hong Kong o

BB o (EREMHEHD

Employment Ordinance

e Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child labour
e HLERETIMRE)

United Kingdom °
B E o

Employment Rights Act 1996
19965 (R EHEAE)

e Children and Young Persons Act 1933

o 1933FEKREBHEFLDFIXR)

° Children [Profection at Work] Regulations 1998
o 1998F KRE (TIESMRE) &HID

e National Minimum Wage Act 1998

e 1998% (EXR

Supply chain management

The purchasing department will target suppliers with o good
reputation in the industry, and then make selections by comparing
quotes and negotiating. The Group also performs background
checks on potential suppliers according to effective procedures in
order to prevent fraud during the selection process.

We adhere to stringent evaluation and selection of suppliers to
guarantee the quality of our food supply. Cost, quality, variation,
and hazards are all factors that are considered when selecting
vendors. All potential suppliers must successfully pass food safety
scrutiny and evaluations. Suppliers must continually meet both local
regulations and pertinent global standards. Any provider falling short
of the specifications may have their confract forcibly terminated.
During the year, we had a total of 50 suppliers.
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RIR-HEBKREIBHS

Distribution of suppliers

HER D

.China
hE

In selecting contractor and equipment suppliers, the Group
takes info account various factors, such as (i] quality of services;
[ii) contracting costs; (i) safety management; and [(iv) relevant
qualifications (if applicable). The Group requires contractors fo
maintain a high standard of quality for the services provided and to
comply with, and have in place, adequate occupational health and
safety, and environmental protection procedures in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations, as well as safety requirements
imposed by the relevant PRC government authorities.

All exploration and stripping activities of the mine are carried out
by a reputable local qualified service provider that complies with
government regulations during the year ended 31 December 2023.
The Group does not foresee its source of supplies as a potential
threat to the group’s operation.

60  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

SR

EEAPELEERESR FAEEeEERS
HEZ  flan() REBEE: (|G (|22
B R(ivIEEEE (EA) - A& E 2 K
PEEMERREESEERE YETEA
ERERA R EABEBRABFIEINNZ 2R
EUAREREE OB EEREL 2 RIRER
ERF

B E2023F12A31 B ILFE - A B BRI %

APOHBEERHBEETARARENE

BEBRGREEET A RERHEEERR
T EUHERBLEEBKEERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT I=

Product responsibility

Quality assurance and recall procedures

We aim to source and deliver delicacies while adhering to sfrict
quality and safety standards. Ordering food has been made
easier and more convenient for customers through our website
(https: / /burgogi.co.uk/] and other online platforms. This allows
customers to order online and send our meal kits or gift cards to
others.

All meal kits are packed with ice packs, temperature-controlled
bags, and insulated boxes to ensure the quality of the food remains
unchanged throughout transportation. Our team has made significant
efforts 1o achieve and will continue to strive for the standards
required to obtfain AA accreditation from BRCGS.

When we receive customer complaints related to the quality of our
products, we investigate and review the products, recalling them if
food safety issues are identified. During the year, none of our meal
kits were recalled for safety or health reasons.

The quality of marblerelated products depends on the quality of
the mine, as the Group has not further processed the beige marble
blocks. We facilitate customer on-site inspections and testing fo
ensure the quality of the marble blocks aligns with their expectations.

Customer satisfaction

Customers may provide their feedback via our cusfomer service
hotlines, emails, websites, and social media. We gather and review
the feedback on our food and services.

Data privacy

The Group acknowledges the importance of data privacy. We fully
understand our accountability in protecting personal and sensitive
information of our customers, employees, and business partners.
Customer information is collected only when necessary. We will
continuously conduct regular reviews of our data management
practices and provide fraining to our employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not receive any

significant complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy.
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Intellectual property rights

The Group is dedicated fo protecting and enforcing ifs infellectual
property rights. The Group's intellectual property rights mainly
comprised of information management systems, trademarks,
proprietary know-how and secret recipes.

The Group is currently acfive in the virtual restaurant space,
operating the “Burgogi” restaurant and the “Bigfoodie” takeaway
order platform in the UK. Additionally, 4 Company logos have been
tfrademarked in Hong Kong. The Group routinely evaluates potential
infringement of its intellectual property rights by external entities.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was not
aware of any third-party infringement on ifs trademarks and has
fully complied with relevant laws and regulations, including but not

RIR-HEBKREIBHS

i
AEEBNRERRICHOBER - AEEHA
MEBIEOEELTERG BE FARE
RHHAN -

AEEBABBERER LEBRER REHEE
[Burgogi ] BB K [Bigfoodie | /NEFTEF & © it
SV MERREFEREBEMEAE - NEEFE
HF AN BRI RICH MBEEN BN -

BFEEER

B ZE2023F12A31H IEFE AEBEW EER
EAFE=FRILEBENTA LE2EETH
ERER  BRENRER:

Trade Marks Ordinance (Cap. 559)
RGO (BAEOZES59E)

° Patents Ordinance (Cap. 514)

o (EFHEH) (BEEFIFES14E)
e Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528)
o GRIBIEG) (BEEFIFES528E)

limited to:

Hong Kong °
B o
United Kingdom °
el o

Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988
10884 (hR#E - HMNEERET M EFE)

° Trade Marks Act 1994
° 19044 (FHIZE)

° Patents Act 1977

° 19774 (BHMED

Anti-Corruption and Whistle Blowing

With regard to compliance with relevant laws and regulafions in
different regions, the Group maintains a code of business integrity. A
system with good moral infegrity and an anti-corruption mechanism
is the cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy development of
the Group. The Group also prohibits staff from accepting gifts of
excessive amounts from customers and suppliers.

The Group takes a zerotolerance approach to corruption and

bribery, and is committed to acting professionally, fairly, and with
integrity in all our business dealings.

62  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

RESREH
EESFAEMENEBERERTE AEEE
FERMEER - RFERRETRRESHE G
EARERERERRNEL AKBENEILE
TEREPRHEMWEREBAEBANE M-

AEBUESEHRITRARRERTRBEE BN
ERARBERTUER  AFRBENT AT
$O

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IRi% 11 8RREiGiRS

Whistle-blowing Policy and Procedure ERBELRER

We encourage fransparency and honesty, and provide channels for IS @B R HE  WISMHER T E T AE
reporting misconduct or malpractices. Any suspicious fransactions  BE{TAHEE - EHE% AR S EHE
after investigation would be reported to the relevant governing body & A B A AR B &S HE R % -

by the responsible officer.

Anti-corruption Training RESEY

In order fo guarantee the alignment and delivery of comprehensive AR HEREE TREIEE 0 EE BAE
communication fo all employees, anti-corruption training is held 4@y K Ei555 3| R2023E - 2R EEHIH S
annually. In the year 2023, all directors took part in the online N7 BEE A BIZ Y& F12HI|5R2 - T 19523 ps
fraining sessions provided by The Independent Commission R4 /A//NES - BRI BIE R &5 - R -
Against Corruption (ICAC) with an average fraining duration of (= R EE R E L 5 - N20234F - I mEHH A EFH
approximately two hours. Subjects such as anti-corruption, business s HESIRHH D EESSHANZ Mo

ethics, integrity and whistleblowing were all included in the training

sessions. There were no concluded legal cases regarding corruption

practices brought against the Group or its employees during the

year of 2023.

Compliance with laws and regulations BIrEEER
During the year of 2023, the Group complied with the relevant laws 7420234 - AN & B EFHRIHT F RS - 8= - ik
and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering,  *E R ki@ SEE %R BEETRER

including, but not limited fo:

PRC . Criminal Llaw
H o (HIE)

e  Company law

o (nAER)

e Anti-Unfair Competition Law
o (ARTIEEBRFE)

*  Anfi-Money laundering Law
o (RHEBEZE)

Hong Kong ®  Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
BB o (FhiLFRREIRA)
e Anti-Money Loundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance
(Cap. 615]
s WERRERMDTERERKEN) (FREMNFOISE)
United Kingdom ®  Bribery Act 2010
RE e 2010F AREEEIE)

° Proceeds of Crime Act 2002
o 2002F LW BEE)
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Contributing to society is a key component of the Group's
sustainable development strategy. The Group is dedicated to
providing career opportunities to local residents and fostering the
growth of the community’s economy. We fully understand and
appreciate the significance of community investment.

A notable aspect, widely recognized and valued by the local
community, is that most mine employees hail from nearby villages.
The Group is committed fo creating additional community investment
opportunities within its development plans. Through regular
interactions with community officials and leaders, we explore and

assess how best to engage with the community.

During the year of 2023, the Group donated RMB10,000 fo the
local community in Sichuan Jiangyou province for celebration of @
traditional festival.
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HH

WARRS

General Disclosures and KPls

—REERERARER

Bz e (BRI - A& AR IR 51)

Section/comment

-

Subject Area A — Environment

TEGBEA-RE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA  BEHRY

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI AT
BB E IR IRAT )
KPI'AT.2

BREBIERAL2

KPI'AT.3

RASR B BUIEIRALLS

KPI' A1.4

BB ERIERA 4
KPI A1.5

BB E IR IRALLS
KPI AT.6

RAREMIEIRALLS

FEESAREZERERAF

Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

FHBERIBREREBHEMR MAKRTHOHEST AERESRE

BYNELSH:

a) BE: R

b) BETHBRTABEAZENHEBERNAD

BB # o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

R & R AR R BE B -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas

emissions in fotal (in fonnes] and, where appropriate, intensity

[e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BE(BE) RgREE (HE2) A EREHMEE (AN

B)R(WER)ZE (MASEESEMN BERETE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriafe, intensity [e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

MELAAEEEYAE (UABARE) R (WER)EE (MAE

EEEM SEREAE

Total non-hazardous waste produced [in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity [e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

EARZEEYES (UBAE)R(WER)ZE (MUE
EEEM BEREFE) -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

i 2t R 1K BF PR P BRER RO 45 e B B IS EACR ©

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

WREIEEERBEEEMNTE REREEIRGHKR -

Environmental

B

Environmental
B8
Environmental

B

The Group's operations do
not produce any hazardous
waste.
AEEMEBEYEELS(E
e EEEY-
Non-hazardous waste
produced were collected
by the local facilitate
management.
PMEANEZEERZYAE
WEBKBIKE-

Environmental

B

Environmental

BB
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—BREERERERER

RIR-HEBKREIBHS

Section/comment

==X

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 - BRER

General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI' A2.1

RASR A IR IRA2.

KPI A2.2

RS IR R A2.2
KPI' A2.3

RS EIEIRA2.3
KPI A2.4

RS RIERA2.4

KPI A2.5

BRERIERA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRERBER (BIERLIR K R E AL R K BB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in tofal (kWh in ‘000s) and infensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

REANEHSNEER SAHEER (T Ehji‘}ﬂﬂ)ﬁ"i'ﬁi(lf){
TETESAE) LEE (NMASEEEN BEREHE
Water consumption in fotal and infensity [e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BREKERTE (MABESEN BERETE) -
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results

achieved.
IR A e IR A s M R M EVS AR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

fii g SR EGE R KR LA BRI R RE - AR BRTT AR S B
KBS HIPR

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
HEmAAEEMANEE (UHAE) R (MER)BLEEE
(VAT

Use of resources

BIREM

Use of resources

BREM

Use of resources

BIREM

Use of resources

BREH

Use of resources

BIREM

Use of resources

BIRfEM

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEAS:

General Disclosure

— R E
KPI' A3.1

RSB IR 1R AS.

BERRXARER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
MEZETABRERRABERERERZENBR -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

ML EBEHHRRENRARERNEATENCRKINEREHA
TENITH-

The Environment and natural

Resources

BRERKAER

The Environment and natural

Resources

RENMRAEIR
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HE —BEERBERENIEEZ

Section/comment

-

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEAL : RIRE1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer.

—RIE BRI EHEERAREHETAEEZENERR KBRS
HEEE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

Climate change

RIRE(L

Climate change

BB E IR R AL WA E R EHBETAEERENEARGHEBEEE & RIREL
FEX1TE) -

Subject Area B — Social

FTEHEB —#HE

Employment and Labour Practices

BRERZEIER

Aspect B1: Employment

FEEBI : &%

General Disclosure Information on: Employment
a)  the policies; and
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—RWE FRZFME#E BELEN TERSB-RA FERE 2 &R
TeAE ~ BRIBCAR DA B2 H A 135 588 Ko 48 A 9 -
a BRI &
b) BETHBETABEATENEBERNERD
HE # o

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type [for example, full- or  Employment
partfime), age group and geographical region.

RS A BRI . IR EBEAL (MEBERE) FRENMESONE BE
g

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Employment
region.

BB E IR RB .2 R FRAR L REDNESRKL K- (=

FEESAREZERERAF
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2 - REHZZ
General Disclosure Information on: Health and safety
a)  the policies; and
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

— R R FHRHLZETEREMREREHLBEUEREN: REEZ R
a) HBE: R
b) BTHERTABEAZENHBERNED
BB # o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the Health and safety
past three years including the reporting year.
R E IR 1R B2.1 BE=F (ERERFRE)SFRAITHOABRLE- REEZ R
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety
RSB R B2.2 HIEGERITEAH: BEEZ2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Health and safety

how they are implemented and monitored.

RS E 512 B2.3 Wl RANBERRFEREZ 2HE UEBEATRERTE REEZE

Aspect B3: Development and Training
FEEB3 : R RZI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Development and training
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—RWE FHRTEEBRITIERENMILKENBRR -HRFEINE R IE
&) o

KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Development and training
cafegory (e.g. senior management, middle management).

R E IR 1R B3] BUFINEERMN (NSRAERE PREERE)IODNXIE ZHEREI
BAMDM-

KPI B3.2 The average fraining hours completed per employee by gender Development and training

and employee category.

RSB 1R B3 .2 BRI REEERE D BREETKZIN PR TR RIE
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—BREERERERER

RIR - HERE]

oS

Section/comment

-

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : % T4

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B4.1

RS E IR 1R B4
KPI B4.2

RS a5 1R B4.2

Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAR L E T3R5 555 TH -

a BRI &

b) ETHHETABEARENHEERKLAD

B & # e

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid

child and forced labour.

fiig S B E M E AR E T RBHIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered.

WA EBERERBNE R E BB RN -

Labour standard

8 TR

Labour standard

2 T AR

Child labour and forced
labour are not discovered
within the Group.
AEEWHEBEIRNET Kok
H &8 TIBE N -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EmEBS : HEEEE

General Disclosure

— R
KPI BS.1
RS2 48 XI5 1R BS .
KPI B5.2

BA R A IR BS .2

KPI B5.3

RS E IR 1R B5.3

KPI B5.4

RS A 1R BS 4

FEESAREZERERAF

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

EIRHE R IR KA g AR BUR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
iR S HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

WL ARRERHERNEN  mERTARBENNHERSE
AR EREIT R EER T A

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and

monitored.
Wil EEEHEESERONRE R T SRAKRNED AKX
MHERNTRER T A

Description of practices used fo promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

R ERERERRRESARRERLRGHED
Mo hERT X

A K2 8

Supply chain management

HrE s E IR
Supply chain management
e pE e

Supply chain management

e E e

Supply chain management

Mg E R

Supply chain management

HEsEE R
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EBEBS : EmEE

General Disclosure

KPI Bo. 1

BB E IR 1R BO.
KPI B&.2

BB B 5 1R B0.2
KPI B6.3

BB E M IE1RBO.3
KPI B&.4
RSt a5 1R BO 4
KPI B6.5

BB E B 1R BO.S

Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and methods of

redress.

BHEMREESNEBENRERELS B SHEELEEE
VAR f 8 77 5 |9

a) HBE: R

b) BTHBEITABEARFZEEBEELAD

HE R o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
EEACERERERTRREEREAMARKNBE L
Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

EEMREMNMRISHRFEHE AREBE T X

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

Tl B A o R RIS A B ERE R A IE D)

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
et E 8 BiE M EREIWIEF -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.

HHORBEEMRERLBRRER  ARBEERITRER A
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General Disclosures and KPlIs

—BREERERERER

Section/comment

-

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B7.1

A5 AR IR IR BY

KPI B/.2

RS E 1R B .2
KPI B7.3

RA S 4B MIEIRBY .3

Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating fo bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI BR - MEFRERERN:

a BRI &

b) ETHHETABEARENHEERKLAD

B & # e

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting

period and the outcomes of the cases.

RERPAHBTASEEBERELCEENEITHARMN

BB MAFRAER-

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing

procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

RIRP S R B WmIZ T ARBERARITRERE G-

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and

staff.

MR EE KR8 TIRENREITHE -

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

R&ES
Anti-corruption

k&S
Anti-corruption

RES

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EHBS HERE

General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI B8.1

RS 4E IR 1R B8]

KPI B8.2
B A IR 1R B8 .2

FEESAREZERERAF

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take info consideration the communities’ interests.

BN R2ERTREEMEHEFTENBRAEBEDS
ZREARMEBOR -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

EIEREE (IHE REEE SIF K BF Xt 8
B)-

Resources confributed (e.g. money or time] to the focus area.

EEITEBAHAER (W EHKMHE) -

Community investment

HEEE
Community investment
HEERE

Community investment

HEREE
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The Board hereby presents its report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the mining, processing and frading of
marble stones and marblerelated products. During FY2023, there
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities.

The principal activities of the Company's major subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 fo the consolidated financial statfements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided
in the Chairman Statement on pages ¢ and 8 and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages @ to 19 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
are sef out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 93 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not hold any major property development and/or
sale or for investment purposes as at 31 December 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are sef ouf in note 33
fo the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-empfive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis fo existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated
stafements of changes in equity on page 96 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has no reserves available
for distribution to shareholders in accordance with the Company's
Bye-laws (31 December 2022: Nil).

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set ouf in note 29 and
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years are set out on page 180 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zhang Weijun

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Mian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Ruimin

Mr. Andreas Varianos

Ms. Zu Rui

FEESAREZERERAF

P S i E HE
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RETIREMENT

In accordance with clause of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall refire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to refirement at an
annual general meetfing af least once every three years. A circular
containing the biographical details of the director candidates
eligible for re-election and the nofice of annual general meeting will
be sent to the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-aws, Mr. Zheng Yonghui,
Mr. Zhang Mian and Mr. Andreas Varianos will refire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS" INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors confirm that in relation
fo their profile, no information is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years from the date of his/her
appointment. Such service contract can be determined by either
party serving af least one month’s notice prior to the expiry of the
term.

None of the Directors (including any Director who may be proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting) has
entered into any service agreement with the Company which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at general meeting.
Other emoluments will be determined by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board with reference to the duties,
responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular review
and monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are sef out on pages 20 to 21 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in
Hong Kong and China, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject
to the profitability of the Group, the Group may also distribute
a discrefionary bonus fo ifs employees as an incenfive for their
contribution to the Group. The Group has adopted a share option
scheme for its employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”] under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Refirement Scheme”) organized by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC and the UK, under
which the Group is required to contribute a specific percentage
of the payroll of its employees to the Refirement Scheme. Save as
disclosed above, the Group has not operated any other retirement
benefits schemes for the Group's employees.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's largest
customer from marble slag business accounted for 96.2% (2022:
99.0%) of tofal sales of the Group. The Group's sales derived from
the five largest customers in virtual restaurant business accounted
for less than 5% of total sales for FY2023 as the virtual restaurant
business has a large and diverse customer base.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 99.3% (2022: 99.0%) of total purchases
of the Group and the largest supplier accounted for 95.5% (2022:
98.3%) of total purchases of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company's issued capital had any inferest in the five largest
customers. To the best of knowledge of the Board, it is not aware of
any relationship among the major customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations |within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
which (a) were required to be nofified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
fo provisions of Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO [including
interests and short positions which the Directors or chief executive
have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFOJ; (b)
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules fo
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were set out
below:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

H=

Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each held
FEEEREEC.20BT2EERYE

(a)

RAEQRTEBERZHER

Percentage of
the issued share

capital of the

Name of Director ~ Capacity Direct interest  Deemed interest Total interest Company
HARDRAE BT
BEEpA 514 EEER RERAER R BRAE DL
Zheng Yonghui la) Interest of a controlled - 14,399,877 14,399,877 8.27%
corporation (Note)
B oK iE (o) RIEEEES (F&E)
(b) Beneficial owner 28,814,000 - 28,814,000 16.55%
b) BEm#EAA
28,814,000 14,399,877 43,213,877 24.82%
Note: B 3t

The 14,399,877 ordinary shares of the Company were directly owned by
Oasis Tycoon Investments Limited of which all interests are directly controlled by
Mr. Zheng Yonghui.

Long positions in underlying shares of the
Company
Details of the interests of the Directors in the share options

of the Company are separately disclosed under the section

headed “Share Option Scheme”.

Short position
As at 31 December 2023,

executive nor their associates had any short positions in any

none of Directors or the chief

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of ifs associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period did
the Company or any of its holding company or subsidiaries
participate in any arrangements fo enable the Direcfors or
chief executive (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age] fo acquire any interests and short positions of
shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part

XV of the SFO).

FEESAREZERERAF

(b)

(c)

% 14,399,877 A& 2~ 7% @& A Oasis Tycoon
Investments limited E# %4 - i Oasis Tycoon Invesiments
Limited 2 2 R ¥ &5 /R 890 ) A 55 A IR FE ) -

RAEQXTAHBERG 2HR
EEMRARABRERSNFBER [
PrgstE] — AR ITHE-

R A

2023 12A31H EF & TBAER
NARE R A ER AR R SEEME
BOZE e EA D HEARODIESTHE
BIERAR -

B EXFrBEEIN ARB REER AT
i A B R 2 R ] & 15'5%
EXRBTHAER (BERSENEE A
m 1858 F 2 ) A BUAS AN A 7] 3 H E {a] A5 B
ZE(EZRBHFMBEERAIEXVE)H
B fn sk AR B AR 0 SAB 77 M0 (AT M s BOA 2 o

2023 Rk 77



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS E=H8%kS

DIRECTORS” RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquires such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors are aware that any
person (not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) has
an inferest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 January 2011
(the “2011 Scheme”), which was terminated on 29 June 2020.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting held on 29 June 2020, a new share option scheme (the
"2020 Scheme”) was adopted. A summary of the 2020 Option

Scheme is set out below:

Purpose

The purpose of 2020 Option Scheme is to give the eligible persons
an opportunity o have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate them to optimize their future performonce and efficiency
to the Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions,
fo aftract and refain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships
with such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to
enable the Group to affract and refain individuals with experience
and obi|it\/ and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Participants of the scheme

The Board may grant options to any person being a director
(including independent non-executive director], employee,
shareholder, supplier, customer, consultant, business partner and
adviser of any member of the Group.
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Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all opfions to be granfed under the 2020 Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of the
Listing Date. Subject to as provided in the 2020 Option Scheme,
the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in a
general meeting fo refresh the 10% limit (not exceeding 10% of
the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of approval by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting) and grant
options beyond such 10% limit, but the total number of shares which
may be issued under the 2020 Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of the number of shares
in issue from fime fo time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No option may be granted to any one eligible person such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period exceeds 1% of the number of shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. The Company may seek approval from its
shareholders in a general meeting to grant options to the eligible
person exceeding 1% of the shares in issue of the Company in
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant.

Period of the share to be taken up under an option
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance
by the eligible person concerned for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer upon payment of HK$ 1.0 for each grant of options.

Minimum holding period of an option

Subject to the terms and conditions in the 2020 Option Scheme,
the Board may determine there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and no performance
target which needs to be achieved by the grantee before the option
can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion defermine at
the time of grant of the relevant opfion but the subscription price
shall not be less than whichever is highest of (1) the nominal value
of the shares; (2] the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and
(3) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days (as
defined in the listing Rules) immediately preceding the date of offer.
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Life of 2020 Option Scheme 20205 BB IR RE ot IRV HA PR
The 2020 Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of 10 20204 i % #E 51 21 % B £ 40 B BARR 511 04 HAfE
years from the date of adoption. WA -

Details of outstanding and movement of share options under the # E2023F12A31H IEFE - 201 1 FHE R #E
2011 Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023 &I TRITHEMEREREZHHFBELT

are as follows:

As at Lapsed/ As at
1 January Grant during Cancelled 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Exercise price 2023 the year  during the year 2023
R2023&
ARA R A T8 R2023F1A1R EREE EREN/HH 12A318
Director
=z
Zhang Cuiwei 26 June 2014 note 3 HK$34.740 86,583 - - 86,583
REM 2014567268 FitzE3 34.740% T
12 January 2015 note 4 HK$32.980 121,216 - - 121,216
2015514128 Bt 4 32.980% T
Zhang Mian 15 April 2019 note 7 HK$2.344 1,416,041 - - 1,416,041
£ 2019547158 Bitzx7 234457
Other
Hity
Other employees 9 June 2014 note 2 HK$34.740 147,189 - [17,316) 129,873
HittgS 2014%6A9A8 Bt 2 34.740% T
26 June 2014 note 3 HK$34.740 86,583 - - 86,583
2014567268 BitaE3 34.740% T
19 December 2014 note 5 HK$32.680 155,849 - - 155,849
2014F128198  M&ES 32.680% T
12 January 2015 note 4 HK$32.980 121,216 - - 121,216
2015514128 Bt z4 32.980% T
23 November 2017 note 6 HK$1.944 2,360,000 - (2,360,000 -
2017118238 M6 1.944% 7T
15 April 2019 nofe 7 HK$2.344 8,496,246 - - 8,496,246
2019547158 fitzx7 2.344% 7T
12,990,923 - (2,377,316) 10,613,607
Vested at end of period 12,990,923 10,613,607
REREEE
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Note:

1. The options were exercisable from 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

2. The options were exercisable from 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

3. The options were exercisable from 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024

(both dates inclusive).

4. The options were exercisable from 30 December 2014 to 18 December 2024

[both dates inclusive).

5. The options were exercisable from 23 November 2017 to 22 November 2027

[both dates inclusive).

6. The options were exercisable from 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029 (both dates

inclusive).

7. The Company recorded the fair value of these share opfions as staff cost in the
income statement. The Company will record the nominal value of the shares
which is HK$0.01 per share issued pursuant to the exercise price of the share
options as additional share capital and the Company will record the excess of
the exercise price of the share options over nominal value of the shares in its
share premium account. Any share options which has lapsed or been cancelled

will be deducted from the balance of the share options.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts with Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered or

existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance
in relation fo the business of the Group, to which the Company,
its_holding companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business that competes or competed or is or was likely
fo compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up fo and
including the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At any time during the year ended 31 December 2023, there were
no connected transactions or confinuing connected transactions

14A of the Llisting

Rules, which are required to comply with any of the reporting,

of the Company as defined under Chapter

announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Llisting Rules. None of the related party transactions
constituted a connected transaction or continuing connected
fransaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 of the Llisting Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the directors. Having made specific
enquiry fo all the Direcfors, they confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout FY2023, and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with such required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by Directors throughout FY2023.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the memorandum and Byelaws of the Company, the
Directors, managing Directors, alternate Directors, oudifors, secretary
and other officers, for the time being, acting in relation to the
affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the exertion of their duty.

The permitted indemnity provision is currently in force for the benefit
of the Directors as defined and required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and has been in force throughout the year ended 31 December
2023. The Company has not arranged for appropriafe insurance
cover for Directors” and officers” liabilities in respect fo legal acfions
against ifs Direcfors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The reasons for this decision is elaborated on page 23 of
the corporate governance report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries or holding
company or subsidiary of the holding company has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year

ended 31 December 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the Share
Option Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements that (i] will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or [ii] require the Company fo enter info any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares during the year ended
31 December 2023 or had subsisted at the end of year ended 31
December 2023.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The shares of the Company were listed on 18 March 2011 on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Based on publicly available
information and fo the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this report of directors under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Elite Partners CPA
limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment in the forthcoming annual general meetfing of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which consists of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial stafements for the year ended 31 December
2023, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed with auditors in relation to the infernal
control and financial reporting matters of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There has been no significant event that affected the Group after
31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Cuiwei

Executive Director

26 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
111 E5TEh¥RS

elite
= partners

To the shareholders of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continved in Bermuda with
limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 93 to 179, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as af
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Audifors Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

BRETER
REBFFTASBRERMANEXZHE NI
MBRF ARG EYBRRPREENET R
BPEEFBERBEAVBRRAMA LK E
AREREHFER MIAERUFTFTRERS
BRER-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNESANMAEEZEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets

ME - BERRE ERAREEUAREFEENREF

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB134,916,000,
right-of-use assefs of approximately RMB1,768,000
and a mining right classified as intangible assets
of approximately RMB33,414,000 relating to the
Group's cash-generating unit [the "CGU") regarding
sale of marble and marblerelated products. For the
year ended 31 December 2023, impairment losses of
RMB21,668,000, RMB283,000 and RMB5,366,000
was recognised on the Group's property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assefs and intangible assets
respectively. Details are set out in notes 17, 19 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
M2023F12R31H EBEEBEHOYWE BENMRKR
HHWAR®134,916,000) ERAEEE (KA
R¥1,768000) kD BREFVEENRER (X
AR®33,414,0007) 58 EXEEHHEEX
BARABAHEBERNREELABEM ([REEL
Bf])BM-BE2023F12A31RLEFE &
SELORAME BELARKB EREEENNE
WEEHRBEBBRARKE21,0608,000T AR
283,000 kR AR 5,366,000 F BN
mAEMBmRMEI7 - 19K18 -

The Group had engaged an independent valuer to
assist the management of the Company in estimating
the recoverable amount of the CGU which requires
significant judgment to be made by the management of
the Company.

BEEECZBE-RBUGAEMNHE BEAREEE
HEM BERAREEREBEFLEAHEBNRSELE
fi7 AT Yo B & B8 4F HfE & e
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Our procedures in relafion to the management's impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, rightofuse
assets and intangible assets included the following:
BPREEBEEDE BELARG ERAEEENAR
B EENRENEMRTHEFERATSIE:

- Obtained cash flow forecasts prepared by the
management of the Company and assessed
the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions used for the preparation of the
forecasts;

- ESHh EQAREHEEREMNBESRERA
W ERERRBBAMADERBROHEE ML

- Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of an independent valuer and the method
used for estimafing the recoverable amount of the
CGU;

- FHEBYGEMNERKF EORFBEUAR
AR eELSM A MRS EMABHNGE:
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BRETSE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BMNESTONMEREZEE (&)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Continued)

ME BERRE ERAREEUAREFEENREML (8

We had identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment, rightof-use assets and infangible
assetfs relafing to the CGU as a key audit matter
because significant management judgment was used in
determining key assumptions.
BPCKERSELEMBERNYE BELERE -
ERABREEANNETLEENREN G REEET
FE REAREEEXNHETERRIRBAELESR
all i

Impairment assessment on trade and other receivables

B 5 & H h FE W R IE B R (E S A

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade
receivables and other receivables of approximately
RMB24,008,000 and RMB24,564,000, net of
allowance for credit losses.

M2023F12A31H EBEXEBEZRERURELE
W HIE D R A B ARE24,008,000t B AR
#%24,564,000T (MR EEBERE) -

FEESAREZERERAF

- Discussed with the independent valuer the
appropriateness of the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating the recoverable
amount of the CGU and performed certain
procedures fo assess data and assumptions used in
the valuation; and

- HBUVMGEMSRGEARZELABCIRE S
BRAINHDERBRONBEEL LHTET
RFFAEGETAORENRERR:

- Checked, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of calculation of the recoverable amount
of the CGU.

- WEZRERSELBMATKRODESEE AN
BEERE -

Our procedures in relation fo management's impairment
assessment on frade and other receivables included:
BB ESH B 5 M H b FE UK IA PR E 8O R E AT
HARITOREFBEBEATSE:

- Understood and evaluated the modelling methodologies
for expected credit losses measurement, assessed
the reasonableness of the model selection and key
measurement parameters defermination;

- THRIFHEHEERBRAENEETE ¥
HRANEELRERAEZ2HNETCRESE

- Checked, on a sample basis, the aged profile of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 to
the underlying financial records and post yearend
setlements to bank receipts;

- HMEZEM2023F12A318E ZEWKIEDN
R BEREEAMBLEARFERRNEH
180 B8R 1T W I
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BRETSE @

Impairment assessment on trade and other receivables (Continued)

B 5 K& H b FE W R IR KR E ST AE (80

Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables and
the sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of different customers,
the aged profile of the trade and other receivables,
historical seftlement records, subsequent seftlement status,
expected timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships with the
relevant debtors. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the customers” ability
fo repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the
expected credit losses for the impairment assessment.

EEERBITRAXZPERRRI 85 K E M E WK
ENREBL BERECH REGENRR KE
BESRBEANEYRSHALSBALEEBEB AN
BRXHIBREENHEZ RAMBRKFIEN AT KD
MEERRERENEREEETENFGH - EEETE
BARHEFEENARERERNENEXNTED
RIEMER ABEREFGENEREERE-

We had identified impairment of trade and other
receivables as o key audit matter because significant
iudgments had to be made for the assessment of
impairment under the expected credit loss model.
BRMERE S R EMEEFKIAZRE & ERET
FE RARFERAHEEBRRA T ZRERE
B K H e
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How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMNEFNAEEZSE (R

Inquired of management for the status of each
of the material trade and other receivables past
due at the end of the reporting period and
corroborated explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understood on-going
business relationship with the debtors based on
frade records, checked historical and subsequent
sefflement records of and other correspondence
with the debtors; and
MEEEEARAANBERREBAHNZTEX
BHMEMERKENRAE A EZEZE
EEBNEE IREXZEBETHEEHA
MFEXBHER RTHREBANBERER
HERBELEMBARER K

Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
in relation to trade and other receivables included
in the consolidated financial statements.

it ESEEGAVBHREMEBEEES R EAM
ERRENBEELSS TR -
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is moferio”y inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such infernal control
as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend fo liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

FEESAREZERERAF

Hib &R

EERAHAMENAZEX -HMEHNBE
FHETAENER ETEREEAMBR
KEEFIFUE D ERARS

BMEG AV BRREFENERLTRER
ER - RMITHEMERBERETAEADH

S 4k A
jfzﬁﬂ/%n afg ©

MBSV BREAME RANEEREH
BEMEN EHBERT ZEEMENES
HGAUBERRARMEETBRETFEITN
BRBFEEANT XEBREBAIRFEEANE
AR - HEBRPIERETKA TIER R E
EMHBREERERRE RPAREZSE
BB Y EARENETIER

EEREBENZEENGEUBRREA
AENEE

EXAAARBEREMENEFEHEMN
BERMBHREENREERARD 2 WER
ERBEEMAANGAYBRR - LEE
EERRREGEVBRRALFNAREE
BURREESAVEBRR I FEARKR
FERERRR M BB A E A SE AR PR

ERBEGEMBHREE EFARATE &
SESELENRE N YIRBERASELEER
MOER(NER) BRFEFTAEER R
EER HEFLEE SRBZIHNABEEME
BRATHRE CRAEEEARAUSERE
RERNEE-

EZBERAEEE

1% o

EEBENMBRER
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our obijectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section Q0 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriafe fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

d Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

90  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

BB REMBERRAREN
B
AMMEBRABRTERM G4 T B R®
REGTHCARKFRERMERNEX
EREL YRR EERMEROE DK
S RMERBEREIO8FARKEEK
ZHRER BT (FRER)RE Btz
AN B A B A0 BT B AR
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BEXRERERE M
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report fo the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in o manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obfain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with o statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that o matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

FEESAREZERERAF

s HEERAURELZR/ERMNEEZE
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EOREEAFEESEHXBEREBN
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The engagement pariner on the audit resuliing in this independent B E LBV EFMBRENEFBEEERALRE
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Ho Kwan with practising certificate &850 4 » 3B RS IE B P07543 ©
number: PO7543.

Elite Partners CPA Limited BT EESMEBEMERAT
Certified Public Accountants HE A

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024 B 2024F3A26H

Llevel 23, YF life Tower, E B

33 lockhart Road, Wan Chai, BT 5% 7T B 335%

Hong Kong BaRRkAE232
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FolEnEMEANGSE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F12A31H IEFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®TR ARET T
REVENUE A 8 58,491 72,289
Cost of sales $HE RCAR (36,837) (45,447)
Gross profit Sl 21,654 26,848
Other income and gains, net EM U A R USR5 9 4,111 2,040
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R HAX (4,213) (8,476
Impairment losses under expected BHEERBEEATZ
credit loss model, net of reversal HEEE (NRED) 10 (19,889) (41,009)
Impairment losses recognised in IFEREERER
respect of nonfinancial assets B 18 (27,317) -
Administrative expenses TR (32,553) (38,275)
Finance costs B 7% B A 11 (1,532) (1,886)
LOSS BEFORE TAX MR B AT & 18 12 (59,739) (60,758
Income tax credit/(expenses) FrissisEe, (FAx) 14 139 (1,126)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE EARBEEAEBEEEERR
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (59,600) (61,884)
Other comprehensive (loss)/profit: Htt2mE (F8E) 5H:
ltem that will not be reclassified TEENSEERENIER:
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BB GINEFEERE K ERE
foreign operations (1,161) 1,535
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AABRBEBEAEBEEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THEEARE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (60,761) (60,349)
LOSS PER SHARE (RMB cents) BREBE (AR%D)
— Basic and diluted —ERK#E 15 (38.7) (43.7)

FEESAREZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PQSITION

el BiRRE

As at 31 December 2023 720234 12A831H

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 2 ARET T ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN NN 17 113,538 140,329
Intangible assets EREE 18 28,048 33,414
Rightof-use assefs FREEE 19 1,485 Q10
Prepayment and other receivables TR 308 K H 4th JE 3 IE 23 5,944 27,640
149,015 202,293
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 21 216 137
Trade receivables =) 1 22 24,008 64,305
Prepayment, deposits and BNRE 2Rk
other receivables H W IR 23 34,446 22,296
Prepaid tax ik Eikn - 24
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEE2EEY 24 4,656 3,188
63,326 89,950
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables B 5N IR 25 10,268 37,249
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 687 Q1
Other payables and accruals H b B R ERTE A 27 31,516 31,823
Amount due to a director JETEFEFIA 28 1,272 1,138
Other loans HEfMER 29 5,062 16,704
Convertible notes Al AR R 30 9,062 -
Tax payables FE R IR 460 -
58,327 87,005
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 4,999 2,045
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERABAR
LIABILITIES 154,014 205,238

94 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #RE/IFSARIRZE

As at 31 December 2023 722023 12831H

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR ARETF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 416 -
Other loans H i E & 29 - 1,340
Provision for rehabilitation 1EER B 32 2,697 2,697
3,113 4,037
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 150,901 201,201
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR#E
Equity atiributable to owners RATEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital fi& A< 33 30,420 24,435
Reserves it 34 120,481 176,766
TOTAL EQUITY R 150,901 201,201

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised ~ AN&R & BF 5 R R B R2024F3A20H EEF &

for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2024 and are #L/AERK#ETIE THTIINESKEES:
signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Cuiwei Zhang Weijun
REX REE
Director Director

z= £
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CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SiEEENE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADREEAEL
Foreign
currency
Share  Contributed ~ Share option translation  Accumulated
Share capital premium* reserve * reserve ¥ reserve * losses*  Total equity
SERE
R R4 E* BARE BRERE* R By N BER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT AREFRT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Nofte 34) (Note 34) (Note 34)
(B1i£34) (Hii34) (Hrit34)
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1R18 24,435 221,144 14,480 17,471 13,563 [12,417) 261,550
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - [61,884) (61,884)
Other comprehensive loss Hithz2EEE - - - - 1,535 - 1,535
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXABBLES - - - - 1,535 61,884) (60,349
Lapsed of share options SRR - - - (142) - 142 -
As af 31 December 2022 ond 2022412318 R
as at 1 January 2023 #®2023F1R1H 24,435 221,144 14,480 17,329 [2,028) [74,159) 201,201
Loss for the year FEEE = = = - - (59,600) (59,600)
Other comprehensive loss HEth2EER - - - - (1,161) - (1,161)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAEBREH - - - - (1,161) (59,600) (60,761)
Issue of new shares BITHR 5,985 4,696 - - - = 10,681
Share issuing expenses RIAVETER - (220) - - - - (220)
lapsed of share options BRI — - - 771) - 771 -
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%F128318 30,420 225,620 14,480 16,558 (3,189) (132,988) 150,901
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in *  ZERHER B BEGEE M BARKATIH
the consolidated statement of financial position. ek
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HolREREE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F12A31H IEFE

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Loss before tax R 5 B B 18 (59,739) (60,758
Adjustments for: AT EBEELFHE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE R ZETE 1,881 2,358
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREENE 460 173
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &% « B FE K& # 2 &8 3,561 3,247
Loss on unwinding of discount on Hfth JE WK IE AR BR BE 3R 2
other receivables 518 = 9,112
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEERBREEZER = 37
Impairment losses recognised in respect of HIFTREERR
nonfinancial assets FEEE 27,317 -
Impairment losses under expected EHEEBBEREATZ
credit loss model, net of reversal FEEE (kD) 19,889 41,009
Interest expenses B X 1,532 1,886
Interest income B A (3) (3)
Imputed interest income on other receivables H e W B 2 (HE R B (3,693) (868)
Recovery of trade receivables I 6] & 5 pe W 5008 = (1,000)
Recovery of other receivables 1z (B EL h 8 W 3018 (358) -
Operating cash flows before movements HEESEHR
in working capital CEEERE (9,153) (4,807)
Change in inventories FTEEE (96) (52)
Change in trade receivables 5 MU FRIE B 30,723 (28,557)
Change in prepayment, deposits and BNFIE -EE R
other receivables H b B UL R TE # B 3,385 (5,976)
Change in frade payables B 5 RN RIAR (26,971) 21,304
Change in other payables and accruals H i FE A5 5ROE e FE A
BERE 1,289 9,471
Cash used in operations LEEBMARE (823) (8,617)
Tax refund/(paid) B (BARE) 623 (1,150)
Net cash used in operating activities KETHMABRSFEE (200) (9,767)

FEESAREZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (B IREiMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 202312431 H ILFE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE BB MRE (253) (1,264)
Proceeds on disposal of right-of-use assets HEEREEEZISHIA - 180
Repayment of loan receivables 188 U & K - 415
Interest received 2 A E 3 3
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARS R (250) (666)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Interest paid EF A (2,774) (274)
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHRR TS FOR 10,681 -
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes BT EBEFERIE 9,094 -
Share issuing expenses Pin 3178 R (220) -
Advance from a directfor EEREX 114 -
Advance from other loans HEMEREB® 674 13,977
Repayment to other loans EEHEMER (13,855) (4,595)
Repayment to a director R—BREEER - (5,063)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBEER (402) (93)
Net cash generated from financing activities METHMEBELSFE 3,312 3,952
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RE&RBSSEWE M,
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) #8 2,862 (6,481)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of  RWmEHTIcE 2R
the reporting period ReEEY 3,188 7,145
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes X TR (1,394) 2,524
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RBEHRZREER
AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD REZEEY 4,656 3,188
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS %

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

SRERELR

The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as BB EBEELE B EEHERENOT :
follow:
lease  Amount due Accrued interest  Convertible
liabilities  to a director ~ Other loans payables nofes Total
HEEE ENEERE HtER  EMEHRE TRRES @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFLT ARETR AREFLT AREFT ARETR
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1A1H 170 6,105 7,133 473 - 13,881
Cash flows: RBeEmE:
Advance from a director BEEIHN - - (4,595) - - (4,595)
Advance from other loans EtEHRBT - - 13,977 - - 13,977
Repayment of lease liabilities HEGEREN (93] - - - - (93)
Repayment fo a director M—2EZEN - [5,003) - - - (5,063
Repayment of interest BEFIE - - - (274) - (274)
Other non-cash movements: HihEReEH):
Finance cost Eﬂ&ﬁ$ - - 1,880 - 1,886
Exchange differences EREHE 8 96 1,529 (152) - 1,481
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31B K
and os at 1 January 2023 W2023F1A1H 91 1,138 18,044 1,927 - 21,200
Cash flows: RengE:
Repayment to other loans EEEMER - - (13,855) - - [13,855)
Advance from other loans HEtEHBH - - 674 - - 674
Repayment of lease liabilities *ﬁ‘iafﬁi%\ (402) - - - - (402)
Advance from a director EEETA - 114 - - - 114
Repayment of interest BEFE - - - (2,774) - (2,774)
Issue of convertible notes B RRER - - - - 9,094 9,094
New lease entered AL 372 - - - - 1,372
Other non-cash movements: HitERe#e):
Finance cost FBRA 26 - - 1,506 - 1,532
Exchange differences B AT 16 20 199 (125) (32) 78
As at 31 December 2023 M2023%12A31H 1,103 1,272 5,062 534 9,062 17,033
Maijor non-cash transaction: FEHFBRERF:
The Group entered into the following major non-cash investing AEBE#ETUTEARARGEERESRERFTR
activities which are not reflected in the consolidated statement of MBEIF BIFW LR EFE :

cash flows:

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered

info a new lease agreement for the use of office. On the lease

commencement, the Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease

liobilities of RMB1,372,000 and RMB1,372,000 respectively.

FEESAREZERERAF

HE2023F12A31BLEFE AEEBLEM
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1.

100

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the "Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and sale of marble
and marble related products, mainly in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") and preparing and delivering food for
distribution to consumers under virtual brands in The United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the “UK").

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 29 March
2010 and changed its domicile to Bermuda with limited
10 August 20106. The address of registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed

liability on
in the “Company Information” section to the annual report.

The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi ("RMB'O00"), unless otherwise
stated. Hong Kong dollar ("HK$") is the functional currency of
the Company. The directors consider RMB is the appropriate
presentation currency for the users of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as the functional currency of the
Company'’s major subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards
[“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “"IASB”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Hisforical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

3.

APPLICATION TO NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO IFRSs

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 17 (including the June 2020
and December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Insurance Confracts

Amendments to IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets

3.

B LSBT T B A8 A6 T I e B 5 e
He Al
AEEREIERZHTREBT
Rl B B 7% 4 5 22 A
AREEAMBERER FEEREFE
EEREANTHER e LRSS
AL 202361 A1 B B2 F E
R 3 ) 2 22 9T T R AR A AT B IR A B 4R

EET R

ARFBEREEAE7E  RRaH
(BEERTHRSEER
Z175 202066 A
20215128 2 3T)
B RRIESH 2R ithst 2 ER
AR BRI 2B BE-QHELCZEE

and Liabilities arising from RABHEBZRT
a Single Transaction HIE
Amendments to I1AS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar B et 2AE 1257 2B5] BRHRSE-TH=
Two model Rules TERA
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies BReERE KR BHBE KR

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended fo replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial

statements.
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3.

102

APPLICATION TO NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO IFRSs (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts
are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions
is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
"Practice Statement”] is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “fourstep materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material fo its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

In accordance with the guidance set out in the amendments,
accounting policy information that is standardised information,
or information that only duplicates or summarises the
requirements of the IFRSs, is considered immaterial accounting
policy information and is no longer disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements so as not to obscure the
material accounting policy information disclosed in the notfes
fo the consolidated financial statements.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance but
affected the disclosure of the Group's accounting policies.

Except disclosed above, the applicafion of other new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

APPLICATION TO NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO IFRSs (Continued)
Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture!

Amendments to IFRS 16 lease liabilities in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Amendments fo IAS 21 lack of Exchangeability?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The directors anticipate that the application of all amendments
fo IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
e has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee: and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continved

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidafed statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the dafe the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financia
statements of subsidiaries fo bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetfary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was defermined. Non-monefary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setflement of monetary
items, and on the refranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations
are franslated info the presentation currency of the Group
[i.e. RMBJ using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange raftes at the date of fransactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currency (Continved)

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group's net assefs in HK$ the Group's presentation currency
li.,e. RMB) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in foreign currency franslation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the foreign
currency franslation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straightline method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 10—20 years
Plant and machinery 5—15 years
Office equipment 5 years

leasehold improvement Over the lease term

Motor vehicles 4—10 years

Mining infrastructure infended to be used for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Such construction in progress
is classified to the appropriote categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assefs, on the same basis as other
property, plant and equipment, commences when they are
ready for their infended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “rightof-use assefs”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. VWhen
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. EEEEIBORER
INFORMATION (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued) ME BEREE 9
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised ME-BELRKBEENLEXEHEF
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are BEAREETSELERKKBEN =K
expected fo arise from the confinved use of the asset. Any WRIER - HEXMEDE  HERRE
gain or loss arising on the disposal or refirement of an item of BHEAEANEMKRSKEBREZLEEM
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference SREEEERNECANEZEETE
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the WRIEZHER -

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Stripping costs ) BR B A

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are —RmME REEBRESSNHRKR
generally considered to create two benefits, being either the BREERMEBEMNGR BEEFTE RRE
production of inventory or improved access to the ore fo be EARERBRARBSNBE - WZER
mined in the future. Where the benefits are realised in the form mEHAUAMEEFENSAER A
of inventory produced in the period, the production stripping HEHRERNAARBEEZSFEHK
cosfs are accounted for as part of the cost of producing those Ry —&f 5 o

inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved access M52 5 N 2 A E E A B 2 FERIES
to ore to be mined in the future, the costs are recognised as BENTAER A ABEKRNER K
a stripping activity asset and is accounted for as an addition EBEE UEME AT ERE AR
fo, or an enhancement of, the ‘Mining Infrastructure’ in the REBTBMRR K2 [ERBEEZE] BN
consolidated statement of financial position if the following AR

criteria are met:

[a) it is probable that the future economic benefit (improved o) HEFSH BB RBREEMZS (EA
access fo the ore body) associated with the stripping EENBESINE) BB TR
activity will flow to the entfity; ZER

(b)  the entity can identify the component of the ore body for b) ZERBAUBNEETBEENEN
which access has been improved; and Mo R

[c)  the costs relating to the stripping activity associated with (c) RERSEMETEREZE DB Z HK
that component can be measured reliably. BB 2 BRARCAR o

Other production stripping cosfs are charged fo the profit or E A & B R IR AR E £ 5T A B - 5

loss as operating costs as they are incurred. LB
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Stripping costs (Continved)

The stripping activity asset is initially measured at cost, which
is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to perform
the stripping acfivity that improves access to the identfified
component of ore, plus an allocation of directly attributable
overhead costs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant production
measure is used fo allocate the production stripping costs
between the invenfory produced and the sfripping activity
asset. This production measure is calculated for the identified
component of the ore body and is used as a benchmark to
identify the extent to which the additional activity of creating
a future benefit has taken place. The Group uses the expected
volume of waste extracted compared with the actual volume
for a given volume of ore production of each component.

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated using
the unit of production ["UOP") method over the life of the
identified component of the ore body that became more
accessible as a result of the stripping activity. The stripping
activity asset is then carried af cost less depreciafion and any
impairment losses.

Mining rights

Mining rights which classified as intangible assefs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Mining rights include the cost of acquiring mining
licenses, exploration and evaluation costs transferred from
exploration rights and assets upon defermination that an
exploration property is capable of commercial production, and
the cost of acquiring inferests in the mining reserves of existing
mining properties. The mining rights are amortised by using
UOP method based on the proved and probable reserves of
the mines. Mining rights are written off to profit or loss if the
mining property is abandoned.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases

The Group as a lessee

Shortterm leases and leases of low-valve assets

The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption
fo leases of offices, warehouse, plant and machinery that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not confain a purchase opfion. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assefs. lease
payments on shortterm leases and leases of low-value assefs
are recognised as expense on a straightline basis over the
lease term.

Rightofuse assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, rightof-use assets are
depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term, the cost of the relevant
rightof-use assets and the related accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss are transferred to property, plant and
equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid af that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
deferminable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

108  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred
income fax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tox” because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Croup's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assefs are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assefs and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
fransaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
exfent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl #5 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. WEFFTERER o)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Taxation (Continued) ﬁuIE (&)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates BELEMBEEERBBEDIAREHARE R
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability MAEBEETERMOBR (RBE) RE
is setfled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax EoIRBHRABBEEREEZIRBH
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the ZERBERGAE -

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects BEEREAEREEZERRAEE
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in EHRBRERRUOKBEEEEERE
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, BZHREBEBMER I HBEER-

fo recover or sefile the carrying amount of its assefs and

liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EREEARTHRABNSAHEEESR
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against AR IEABEEREHE BRERIESR
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes ENBEERA-HEEEAYE - BRK
levied to the same taxable entity by the same faxation ERBURH SN A B R A R T
authority. MBEENABBEILHEEH-

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. BUHR R GE R IE N 48 s FE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are defermined on a weighted
average method. Nef realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary fo make the sale include incremental costs directly
aftributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group enfity becomes a party fo the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
lincluding all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if 7% ¥k 2% Bid 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial assef is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount oufstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate fo the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assefs that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective inferest rafe to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the creditimpaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, inferest income is
recognised by applying the effective inferest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the defermination that the asset
is no longer creditimpaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continved|
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since inifial

recognition.
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Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
HANBEAEMBRAIENENEHMERNE
HEEBE - B 12BREHEEER
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that (M2EAEBEEERE])REERRE
are possible within 12 months after the end of each reporting HHIR®2ME A N a2 %’*EE@%:%@%#F@
period. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical BYNH > HEREEER-HHEE
)EHTE*ETJ%$§§.iﬂ&ﬁ%)ﬁﬂﬁz‘“? 17&F
B WRBEEBARERE  —REENK

default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In confrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion

credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment

of both the current conditions at the end of reporting period as

well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables without significant financing components.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Financial assets (Continved)

4.

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of each reporting period with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

®  an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument's external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

®  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

®  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
fo cause a significant decrease in the debfor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

®  an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability fo meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81 #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Financial assets (Continued)

4.

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(i)

1y

Significant increase in credit risk [Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when confractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriafe fo ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For infernal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking info account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
720 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl #5 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continved)

4.

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(iii)

(iv)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more
events that have a defrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial assef is creditimpaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) o breach of confract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating fo the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s] that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assefs written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking info account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81 #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

4.

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default [i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information.
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
defermined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Estimation of ECL reflects

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate defermined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking info consideration past
due information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when

formulating the grouping:

e Pastdue status;

*  Nature, size and indusiry of debtors; and
®  External credit rafings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management fo
ensure the constituents of each group continue fo share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is creditimpaired, in which case inferest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continved)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

[v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL [Continued)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of frade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assefs that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period. Specifically for financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the ‘Other income and gains, net’ line item as part of the
exchange (loss)/gain, net.

Derecognition of financial assefs

The Group derecognised a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by group entities are
recognised af the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

118  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

S il 35 ¥R & b 53

HEG R BORE R )

€I AR g

EREE (#)

EREERE (&)

V) EHEEBBEIZTERER (8
AEEEBHEMEEMITAZEK

mE REEERARREREHE
BEE SRR (RERREERTY
BB B IR R RTER ) BRIN

VB 5 Y25 KB 18
ASNEETE 2 £ B E E W RE E AR S
BETE TRERERRIZANERBE -
AEME HRTEBRETEH HEENR
BERATENSREE EXEZERIE
R (BR) /REFEN -8y EiRAT
M TEA A R M s 58 ) TR B R ERR -

fﬁtﬁ? A B A E
REERBRREREZAWENERK
ZIK%IEH%%HEQF&ﬁF%ﬁ%@K%B
DREBERERERT S E - RIAKE
SRIIEREREE-

PRI EFERIZ B RN E 2 © BB ER -
ZEERBERED W R EWRAREZ 2 FHE
ZEBNIBEER-

THEEKER

DEBEB K E
EHEREETADREANLHNEE
NEARERABEAERTANERSE
REMBEXESE TR

#m TA
BaTADEARERMGRMAAREBER
ﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬂﬁ%%\ WEMEHN - SEER
BTz Ra T ARCRAERENKE
BBETRATER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 202312431 H [EFE
4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at fair valve through profit or loss ("FVTPL')

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, [ii] held for
frading or [iii] it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
frading or confingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination may be designated as at FVIPL upon
initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognifion inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

4 it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and [FRS @ permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of changes in the fair value of the financial |iobi|it\/
that is atiributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial liabilities
that contain embedded derivatives, such as convertible notes,
the changes in fair value of the embedded derivatives are
excluded in defermining the amount to be presented in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl #5 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including frade payables, other payables
and accruals, amount due to a director and other loans are
subsequently measured af amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Convertible notes

HEG R BORE R )

€I AR g

ERMEE (8

KA GTEN 2 A E

cRHEeE (REESEMNFIE EfEN
RELEGER BEBNESEHRBEREM
BER)ERZEHEKAERER RN XX

e

CIE: 7 &S

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative RETER BEBI RITETEHSD
BRAREBER MABRKRERERNEE

components are recognised at fair value and the convertible

notes are designated as at FVTPL. In subsequent period, REBEASEFABRGFE - RNEEBAMR
changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss as fair AREEZPIRERERRAABREX
value gain or loss except for changes in the fair value that is BE - EEERREFEHNIAER

B(TRENETARINAAEED)
REMEERAER BEELMBEE

atiributable to changes in the credit risk (excluding changes in
fair value of the derivatives component) is recognised in other

comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects WERR EERREGHNTEFEY XK

of changes in the credit risk in other comprehensive income BABRNEHELE -REMEEKS
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit RPN EERRSIBNAAEZHA
BIArgEFHEEEGE UNKRIL®ER
REREZZAABR - BRTAIBRERRE
BRENRZHRANERIERENR -

or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to the credit risk
that are recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, they are transferred
to accumulated losses upon derecognition. Transaction costs
relating to the issue of the convertible notes are charged to
profit or loss immediately.

V& 5 Y ok KB R

R ASNE SHE L N & WS B R IR #
RAFTENSBEE  EX K REIE
DREBEEMTEAMNBHEKRABE -ZF
PE 56 Wk K B 1R 1F 3 0 3R 4R O B 0 B R
—HBomeRABEL (BE) k&
FER B0 R T EAARA R FEE ]

exchange (loss)/gain, net for financial liabilities that are not JHEBPRER

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses
are defermined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.
These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
the ‘Other income and gains, net' line item as part of the

part of a designated hedging relationship.

MONBSHEZERAEN R R EAHEEE
SMEE B E - MR IR B ORR D A IE R i
H-BBRAABEBHFABRRSAENERA
BEimE - SNER DB A A E MK K
B —8n HRIAIEEEE FEE—
MoWwEBMAE NEBORIBE DT

that are not part of a designated hedging relationship. Re

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of the reportfing period. For
financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign
exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or
losses and is recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %= Bl #5 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition and modiification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, is recognised in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised ferms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the ferms are substantially different
it the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid nef of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective inferest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange
or modification is considered as non-substantial modification
when such difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining ferm. Any adjustment fo the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss af the date of
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl #5 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, HEFFBORER )

INFORMATION (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated el BRAR2INNEERREEE

statement of financial position include: VB

(o) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand (o) B BEFHERBLEHEFEZT
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to EREAXEERIMANAEREE
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no EMIRTESR K

longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents which comprises of short-term b) ReZEMERERPEE(BFRT
investments (generally with original maturity of three HRA=ZEAXETERKRH) HReH
months or less). Cash equivalents are held for the EMHAENERESRENFS
purpose of meeting shortterm cash commitments rather M¥ERTHRENEMBEH -

than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash e ReRERME RekBRLEE
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash VMBREEXMATHNEREEREEED-

equivalents as defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
fransferred fo the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is fransferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an assef
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
fo date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a cusfomer for which the Group has
received consideration [(or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Revenue from sale of marble and marble related products
are recognised at a point in fime. This is the time when legal
assignment is completed which is the time when the control of
the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the cusfomer's specific location. Transportation and
handling activities that occur before customers obtain control
are considered as fulfilment activities. Certain percentage of
advance paymenfs received from customers pursuant fo the
respective sales contfracts before the control of goods are
passed to the customers. A contract liability is recognised for
sales in which revenue has yet been recognised. The normal
credit term is up to 90 days from the date of billing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continved)
Revenue from sales of food is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the food have been delivered fo the customers. The normal
credit term granted fo certain customers is up fo 30 days upon
delivery.

For sales of food on internet, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has been transferred to the customer,
being at the point the goods are delivered to the customer.
Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped fo the
customer's specific location. When the customer initially
purchases the goods online, the transaction price received by
the Group is recognised as a contract liability until the goods
have been delivered to the customer.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fu||y with the emp|oyees when contributed in

the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required fo parficipate in a cenfral pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to confribute a cerfain percentage of
its payroll costs fo the central pension scheme. The confributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to partficipating in national insurance contribution
for employees in the UK, the Group also parficipates in a
defined contribution scheme for the benefits of its employees.
All the contributions are based on a certain percentage of
the employee's salary and are charged to the consolidated
statfement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as incurred and have no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %= Bl #5 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continved)

Shortterm and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other longferm employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash oufflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another IFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-setled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-sefiled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately fo profit or loss.

FEESAREZERERAF

HEG R BORE R ()

BER®F (&)
EHREMRBESER
EHHEERFMUABHIAOERN KRR
SHENRNEERERFFER - TE X H
EERFNERAEAZ HS —EBHEH
BREEMNERNETERAFTAEE
AN Bl BR &b

RTEENEMN (MIERFS FRU
EEBITIGKEAEXNESERBERR
BfE-

REMEMEERMNERNEE  HR
AEEEHREEEERS BHREMN
RIEPIER MM RARRER B ZHRE
AE-ARBERA-MEREHMAEERK
MBEREEZEFAZE HREBEaP
R S -—HBERPBHRSEEZX
HEFHABEB T ABEERARRIN -

RERAEURNRER ZARR
5

RTEEZBRE

e 8 KR ELRB M E A LD
M LA RS S AR D R EREZ MR TR
BETAREHBHOARENE-

RELBEHEEZARREEUARD R
AN AAEBE (T RAAEIED
LHREBHRTF) DERASEEH KKK R
BT AFENGBT REBHA
WEGEAH MED (BRERKE) A
HEEMN - REBREMR AEEREY
PREMBEIEMZRBIRTOFEERTE
HHEHEBOER TABB MM -&
ARBMBFNRZE (WA NEBEREER
AERFRAXRBREET G LHE
R EELRREARE -SRN A
B RE BREM S AT B RE
ZARERIFRBSH-

2023 F3R 125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions (Continued

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share opfion reserve will be
fransferred fo accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regu|or|y to
the Group's most senior execufive management for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of
the Group's various lines of business in different geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
maijority of these criteria.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching fo them and that the grants will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Government grants (Contined)

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “Other income and gains, net”.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assefs and intangible assets, to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
[the "CGU") to which the asset belongs. In testing a CGU
for impairment, corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount
is defermined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific
fo the assef for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl #5 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or consfructive) as a result of o past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to seftle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to setfle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risk and uncerfainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows.

Provision for rehabilitation

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assefs to their original
condition, as required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease at
the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required fo restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed
and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %= Bl #5 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. HEGFIBURER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Contingent liabilities FREE

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past IARBEREABETEHMEENERESR
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that T EHRTRAREFTERLEALE
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be NMENBERNBTEE HEFSEE
required 1o sefile the obligation or the amount of the obligation EFRDAIEMGE WA THR -

cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an MASEHXBEEEAZERLRLEANE
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected fo be FREHREMSTETNEES S S
met by other parties is freated as a contingent liability and it is WRBIREBE MIAGREEMBER
not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. REER
The Group assesses continually to determine whether an AEEFBETHABETREOAUREER
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has HEERBENARNER - MEAMERK
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of REBEBEREEMNBEERIYESERD AR
future economic benefits will be required for an item previously BNz AR EETREEEHORE
dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised HER G BRIERER EEE
in the consolidated financial statements in the reporting period EVEH AT EAE H R E BB R T AR
in which the change in probability occurs, except in the G e
extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can
be made.
Related party BB S
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIERT B@ALHERRER
BB
[a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (o) AWALTHERBOFEUTIE
related fo the Group if that person: o B SEAREEBREE:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; i) HAEEHFZHESERIE
i
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BAREEBEERTEN =
i) is a member of the key management personnel of (iii) AAXERLKE NI
the Group or the Group's parent. TE2EEAE-
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
Re|0ted porty (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associafe or joint venture of the
other entity [or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other enfity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the some third
party.

One entfity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (al.

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services fo the Group or to the Group's parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services

or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members

who may be expected fo influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entfity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's material accounting policies,
which are described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assefs and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on hisforical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. In defermining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2] whether
the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3] the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-of-
use assefs), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assefs belongs. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

FEESAREZERERAF
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. AhaEASHE M ) AR IR ()
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Mine reserves BLFE

HREAEEBLFESENTRRMAET IR
EAREMNHE Bt EAHRERNE
WAKEHE WERKBOBE - REFHE
IWEERIREE R [EE ] R HIE] A1
’Eﬁé'ﬁﬁglkﬁa@m%ﬁh 5-BE
NI EEMTDEEESEILA
ﬁﬁﬁi?&&?ﬁgﬂ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
BN AR ERERAKTFEFEE
technical information about each mine. In addition, as prices ENEBEBEILRELTTEMES- TJE
and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate of CEEEME  WEBWE AT E
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ@ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ&&%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁ@i%%
is considered a change in estimafe for accounting purposes REESMNEENMGRTENITE LE
and is reflected on a prospective basis in both depreciation HE -HIELMEEETRENGR T
SERBILFESMAAHNE

Engineering estimates of the Group's mine reserves are
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate amounts
because of the significant judgments involved in developing
such information. There are authoritative guidelines regarding
the engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated
mine reserves can be designated as “proved” and “probable”.
Proved and probable mine reserve estimates are updated at
regular intervals taking into account recent production and

proved and probable mine reserves also changes. This change

and amortisation rates calculated on a unit of production basis
and the time period for discounting the rehabilitation provision.
Changes in the estimate of mine reserves are also taken into
account in impairment assessments of non-financial assets.

BBERATENEREENT

Provision of ECL for financial assets measured

at amortised cost

Trade receivables with significant balances or creditimpaired
and all other financial assets measured at amortised cost are

assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in esfimates.
The information about the ECL are disclosed in note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. AR HE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that enfities in the REFBEBREERN UHRAEECZE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BEANAFBEEELSE WHERBEMNME
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation BRERE FE SREHKKAMD
of the debt and equity balance. ¥ o

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the Group REREHRE XEB2ERNEEBEH
consists of debt which includes equity attributable to owners of ARARBEAANEEREZARZEL &
the Company. The directors review the capital structure on a EEHEHEARB -FALENZ —
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the WMo BEEEEEAKARABERRE W
cost of capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate ERDBETHUAHAER 2 E AL
actions to adjust the Group's capital structure. The Group's BoHRAFEMAL  NEE ZEEEREK
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years. TR MRS D& o

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BA%E\BS4S PE H K w5

AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and FEENcRMEETIZRFERE AR
cash equivalents, trade receivables, deposits and other SEY - BHERFE e REMERK
receivables. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly include RE-AEENEZREGEIE2EEES
trade payables, other payables and accruals, amount due to FER I Ht BN RIE R EFTER - &
a director, other loans and convertible notes. NEERE EMERLATBRER-
Risk management is carried out by the finance department AEBMBHRERNTEETNEG TELT
which is led by the Group's executive direcfors. The Group's RElER AEBEVKEHEREEZE
finance department identifies and evaluates financial risks in BPIEZAE 88 & MY E R
close co-operation with the Group's operating unifs. The main e AEBERMIAMELANTIERER
risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are liquidity BEREBLERR MERAR EERRK
risk, inferest rate risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk. HNEE =L B -
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7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks fo ensure
that adequate resources are available to manage the above
risks and to create value for its shareholders. The board
regularly reviews these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

e Bl 35 ¥R P 53

7. BARRE B P H R R BUR (#)

AEENVHBRAREERRE EERA
RBWEREELARAR X ABRRAE
BE-ZEFeEHEAZFAR (RTX
Bt ) -

) eMIAZ5%E

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBETFIT
Financial assets: EWMEE:
At amortised cost R HAAFT 2 53,797 109,729
Financial liabilities: SREE:
At amortised cost BN AT = 42,444 77,763
At fair value through profit or loss RAREFAERTE 9,062 -

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency fransactions, assefs and liabilities. The Group
monitors ifs foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant variable-rate interest
bearing assefts and liabilities. The Group’s income,
expenses and operating cash flows were substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Fluctuation of market rafe does not have significant
impact to operating cash flows and no sensitivity
analysis has been presented accordingly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d)

Ko 75 R e 47 B H AR R BOR ()

FEERRERRENMG

The Group's bank balances are held in major reputable
financial institutions located in the PRC, Hong Kong
and the UK, which management believes are of high
credit quality. The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which comprise trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal fo the
carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group has no
other financial assets which carry significant exposure fo
credit risk.

The Group sells most of the products to a small number
of customers in the marble distributors. As a result, it
faces a high level of concentration of credit risk. The
Group manages this risk by offering standardised
credit terms fo its customers of marble products for an
approved credit term up fo three months. Some major
customers which have long relationship with the Group
were granted for a longer payment term. The Group
maintains sfrict confrol over its outstanding receivables
and senior management regularly reviews the overdue
balances. In addition, the Group's exposure to credit
risk is also influenced by the individual characteristics of
each cusfomer and default risk of the industry in which
customers operate.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 96%
(2022: 75%) and 100% [2022: 100%) of the tofal
trade receivables was due from the largest customer and
top five largest custfomers within the sales of marble and
marble related product segment.

FEESAREZERERAF
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7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Trade receivables are assessed based on individual

Ko 75 Rl e 4y PR H AR R BLOR ()

d) BERBRRETE

B 5 WA TR E R EE TR

basis. fi o
Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired)  (creditimpaired) Total
2 HEH 2 HITEH
FEFE EEFE
(TB|EERE) (FEFERE) wEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETR AR¥ETR
As at T January 2022 M2022%181H 1,891 43,323 45,214
Impairment losses recognised ERAREER 2,221 36,249 38,470
Impairment losses reversed BREEREEE (579) - [579)
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRE>HRBEERBE
[creditimpaired) (GFEEERE) (1,312 1,312 -
Exchange differences b 5 =50 - 5,290 5,290
As at 31 December 2022 and R2022%F12A318 K
as at 1 January 2023 M2023F1A1H 2,221 86,174 88,395
Impairment losses recognised EHRRMEER - 11,809 11,809
Impairment losses reversed BRI EEE (2,221) - (2,221)
Exchange differences &R ERE - 1,298 1,298
As at 31 December 2023 #2023F12H31H - 99,281 99,281

An impairment assessment on the Group's trade

receivables was prepared by an independent

valuer. The ECL for trade receivables was measured
at approximately RMB99,281,000 (2022:
RMB88,395,000] as at 31 December 2023.
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7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Ko 75 R e 47 B H AR R BOR ()

(d) E& =R REEFE @

(Continued)

The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has
been assessed with reference to hisforical information
about the counterparties default rates. The directors are
of the opinion that, except for other receivables with the
amounts of approximately RMB81,811,000 (2022:
RMB78,211,000) classified as creditimpaired, the
credit risk of deposits and other receivables is limited
due to no significant change in credit quality of the
counterparty of these financial assets and concluded
that impairment loss in respect of other receivables with
amounts of approximately RMB7,106,000 (2022:
RMB3,218,000] in relation to lifetime ECL (not credit
impaired).

The following table show reconciliation on loss
allowance of other receivables under general approach:

RehHEMERFENEEER
R2EERYFHENENE
LSERFE-BEERS KRERE
ERENEMERFENDARE
81,811,0007 (2022F : AR ¥
78,211,0007C) 9 B2 & R EA
ERFENEERRAR RAS
ZEEREEHFOINGEEER
TEEAZS RLSRHEBEHE
EFR(LEBEEREBE)EHENE
EBRBEZBREBERENARE
7,106,0007T (2022%F : AR
3,218,0007T) °

TRINTE—RTAERHE &
Uiz 75k T 5 4R R A O B R

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
[nof creditimpaired| [creditimpaired) Total

T HEH 2 HTEH

FEBE EEEE
(UEEERE) (FEEERE) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT ARBTR
As af 1 January 2022 R202291RA1H . 78,311 78,311
Impairment losses recognised ERARNEEE 3,218 - 3,218
Impairment losses reversed BEDRERE - (100) (100)

As at 31 December 2022 and R2022%128318 &

as at 1 January 2023 R2023F 1818 3,218 78,211 81,429
Impairment losses recognised BEHEZRREERE 7,106 3,445 10,551
Impairment losses reversed ERRRNERSE - [250) (250)
Transfer fo creditimpaired EREFEEERE (405) 405 -
As at 31 December 2023 M2023%12A31H 9,919 81,811 91,730
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7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk

Ko 75 Rl e 4y PR H AR R BLOR ()

(e) RBEZRAMR

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of
funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows
from operations. The Group's objective is to mainfain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interestbearing loans and its own
funding sources.

The following table details the Group's remaining
confractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. When the creditor has a choice
of when the liability is setiled, the liability is included on
the basis of the earliest date on when the Group can be
required fo pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities
are based on agreed repayment dates.

AEEEREEESRABELRERE
ENHRNBHAEEMSRERE
EREETHERER - AKE®EF
REBERFEERREBENE
EHRR BFESHETEER LR
B e

TRAINBERRAEE SR E
BB T A MBBBI AR IIRE
AEEARERERNKKEEEH
ReMBENAMBERSRERR
EERATEEAREENFHEE
BERASEARKREREENR
FEEHAR-2RABNIHAER
e 2 EREH -

As at 31 December 2023

#2023%12A318
More than
2 years
Less than but not Total
1 year Between more than  undiscounted Carrying
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years cash flows amounts
1R 28Nk KB
FRER 1226  BTHEBSE REREALE RAEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARET R
Trade payables EUYANEN 10,268 - - 10,268 10,268
Other payables and accruals B EERTFIR R EST B R 25,842 - - 25,842 25,842
Amount due to a director ERNESHE 1,383 - - 1,383 1,272
Other loans EHER 5,245 = = 5,245 5,062
Convertible notes aREE 9,243 = = 9,243 9,062
lease liabilifies MEEBRE 721 421 - 1,142 1,103
52,702 421 - 53,123 52,609
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

7.

(e)

(f)

(9)

LIqUIdIfy risk (Continued)

7. PR BT PEH R R BUR (e

(e)

REBESERE &)

As at 31 December 2022

#2022412A318

More than
2 years
less than but not Total
1 year Between more than ~ undiscounted Carrying
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years cash flows amounts
15/ 290 E REGR
FREX 1228 BAHBSE RenssH FHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIL AREFL AREFL AREFIL ARBFL
Trade payables LR 37,249 - - 37,249 37,249
Other payables and accruals — Eft 7B RIEGT B 21,332 - - 21,332 21,332
Amount due fo a director EET S 1,237 - - 1237 1,138
Other loans EHER 17,233 1,434 - 18,667 18,044
lease liabilities HERE 93 - - 93 91
77,144 1,434 - 78,578 77,854

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to
their fair values for both years.

Fair value of the Group’s financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significants unobservable input under
level 3 of fair value hierarchy, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the directors at the end of each reporting
period to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value,

FEESAREZERERAF

(f)

(9)

WHBREEMEELURARE
SFENAEEEREERS
MEEZARE
EERAMEFEASEEREE
keABEscRAERREEAZ
RAEEE-

BEEMEENUQAAERE
MEAKEEREEZARE

M BREBNMS  AKEHH

DEMTARAAEFNE-

R arER AEEFEAERE
AmESAEBEEHBE - HYNAAERE
REZBFPEEERTABRG A
BENTR AKEEZEFEF=7H4
ERGEEMETHE- BEERS
BERINEEEMEREIE RETE
BE R ERMN R R A B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Fair value of the Group’s financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continved)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial liabilities are determined (in
parficular, the valuation techniquels] and inputs used).

Level 1
E—&R
RMB’000

Bl 75 ¥R 2= Bl 5E

Ko 75 Rl e 4 PR H AR e BUOR )

(g) BEEMHEREUAAETE

MAKESHEEZANE
(%)
TRREHEBNTEELESHE
EDQRERER (EERMERD
fis 18 BT % 88 A B )

Level 2 Level 3 Total
-t ] E=H et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

MR2023F12831HW

Fair value hierarchy as at

31 December 2023 AREER
Financial liabilities at FVTPL & AR BEF AlBzmat =
MEFBE
— Convertible notes — AR ERE -

- 9,062 9,062

The Group's policy is to recognise fransfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the date of
the events or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were
no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers

into or out of level 3.

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

AEENBRECEERAABEER
ZEEBNEFRBRABCHEL
BERNAAEERZENEAR
i

B E2023F12A31HIEFE 5
—HREEF_QzATEER TE
BAXBEHE=H-

FRE=RLIAEFENESR

Significant 5% increase/(decrease) of significant
unobservable input unobservable inputs to fair value
Valuation BERTAEE EAXAFTUEHEGAHBEAAE
techniques 4B & 1l WABE #gh, R )5%
Convertible notes ~ AJ 2 f = 4 Expected volatility: 148% RMB150,000/(RMB150,000)

TEHEAR IR - 148%
The reconciliation of fair value measurement of

convertible notes is set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

8.

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Revenue represents the consideration for goods sold, nef of trade
discounts and refurns and various types of government surcharges,
where applicable.

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit were mainly
derived from its sale of marble and marble related products, which
is regarded as a single operating segment in a manner consistent
with the way in which informafion is regularly reviewed and
evaluated by the Group's executive directors, who is identified as
chief operating decision maker, for purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. Accordingly, no segment information
is presented. In addition, over 0% of the Group’s tofal revenue
were derived in the PRC and over 90% of the Group’s non-
current assefs were located in the PRC, no geographical segment
information in accordance with IFRS 8 is presented.

Information about products
The following table sets forth the revenue from external
customers during the year:

Al 75 ¥R 2= Pt 5E

W\ e 28845 oy ¥ R

”YA?EEEEEI':E’MJ(F kR B 5
MEEAREBRBTHME (HER) -

AEENBARSGZINNEBREZRA
REARKXELHBEERNHEE  EW
BIEE—RENH BAKEHTES
(RERTBLZRRE)EHERR
FEERIFERSERKRAFEREN
AR —H-Eit HEZ5 D 8ME -t
S REE BB ABOO%HKBEFEE
HBOO% W RBEEAMNTE A
HHEREERMEHREENESR 2
54 & 5 &F & # o

FHRERNESR
TREINFARBIBEL WA :

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AR®EF T
Revenue from contracts with customers REEPEHZBA
recognised af a point in time: (P2 — B B T 2
Marble slags AEAREE 56,261 71,557
Sales of food HERM 2,230 732
58,491 72,289
Information about major customers FEEZEEFNESN

Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for
10% or more of the tofal revenue is set out below:

KEXTEEPFP (ERAWANI0NHIA
EE)ORAFHIN DT

2023 2022

2023% 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T AREFT

Customer A 2EA 56,261 71,557

Except for disclosed above, no other customers confributed
10% or more to the Group for both years.

FEESAREZERERAF

BREXHBEEEN SEELMAEPRME
FEHAEEBRABRI0% A L
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)
Transaction allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of IFRS 15 fo its sales confract for marble and related
products and sales of food such that the Group does not
disclose information about revenue that the Group will
be enfiled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contract for sales of marble and related
products and sales of food that had an original expected

duration of one year or less.

9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

W R 588 oy B ()

TEEEFENKRTENEEN
X5

AEBD KBRS BEREENEISRS
IRIBWATEESZEANREKREAR
REBERARRMOEESHN  BHit-
AEBEYEREABASERETAE
ARHEBERUMRREESN (RE
HEBMRA—FIUT)ETHTENE
THERESHKRANESR -

FoAt WO B Wi i 3

2023 20272

2023%F 2022%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARBEFIT

Interest income B WA 3 3
Imputed inferest income on b FEUGERIA 2 B LB

other receivables 3,693 868

Recovery of trade receivables el 5 U RIaE - 1,000

Exchange (loss)/gain, net X (k51B) /s F5 (59) 49

Recovery of other receivables 1 [51 L b & 1~ 5RIE 358 -

Government grants (Note) BT ek (faE) 30 83

Others i) 86 37

4,111 2,040

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the amount represents government
subsidies provided by the PRC local government as a support. There were no

unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these government grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount represents government
subsidies granted due to the COVID-19 pandemic under the Employment

Support Scheme of the Hong Kong Government. There were no unfulfilled

conditions or contingencies relating to these government grants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5& 8 5 ¥R Z% BT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 202312431 H [EFE
10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

10. TS S0 IRABLUT Z I fE s

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL (1 B4 1)

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREEFIT

Impairment losses recognised, net on: TP ZIEER

VERIEN DR
— trade receivables — B WA 9,588 37,891
— other receivables —H fth fE U 5RIB 10,301 3,118
19,889 41,009

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. B A

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 26 6
Interest on loan from a director EEERAE 125 349
Interest on other loans HEMERHE 1,381 1,531
1,532 1,886

FEESAREZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&
12. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

12. BBl Al i

AEBENBRABREMBRAT SRR

EEC
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEGFERA 1,647 797
Production stripping cosfs A E I ERB AR
lincluded in cost of sales) (FTASHERKA) 32,554 41,404
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 THKA
remuneration): (BREESH) :
— Salaries and directors’ fee —HekEFTHES 7,468 5,846
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — — 3R K48 5+ &1 4 5% 542 218
— Allowance and benefits in kind —R KRB & 137 36
8,147 6,100
Auditor's remuneration: FEETRIEN 2
- Audit services —EF IR 535 538
- Non-audif services —JEF AR 142 139
Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% BB RERETE
equipment 1,881 2,358
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 460 173
Expenses related to shortterm lease HIFA ERER X 1,613 1,545
Impairment losses recognised in respect of: LA N & BHER MR EEE
— property, plant and equipment —E BELERE 21,668 -
— intangible assets —-mvEE 5,366 -
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 283 -
loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWME BENMREB2ER
equipment 3,561 3,247
loss on disposal of rightof-use assets HECREEEEE - 37
loss on unwinding of discount on H fth fE W RIBRERRBE IR 2 518
other receivables = 9,112
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %= Bl #5 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&
13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

Emoluments

13. EF - fTHABR LA AR E TN
+: 1 4

() EERTHRAZME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31BLEE

Salaries,
allowances and

Retirement
benefits
scheme Total

Fees  benefits in kind contributions  emoluments
g 28R EBAREANHE
ok R H"% MemE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fE AR%Tn ARBTR AR®TR AR%ETR
Executive directors: WIESE:
Mr. Zheng Yonghui Bk 5 & - 324 - 324
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REFRT - 216 - 216
Mr. Zhang Weijun REELE - 162 - 162
Mr. Zhang Mian RAEE - 216 - 216
Chief executive officer: THBE
Mr. Li Yun Fei FERLE (ii) - 90 - 90
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTESR:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BREEE 87 - - 87
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 7t £ 216 - - 216
Ms. Zu Rui Bz (iii) 87 - - 87
390 1,008 - 1,398

FEESAREZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s
Emoluments (Continued)

13. EF - fTHABR LI ARE TN
+ 1 4 ()

(o) EERITHAEME =

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022612R31R L&

Salaries,
allowances and

Refirement
benefits
scheme Total

Fees  benefits in kind confributions  emoluments
e 2ER  RIEFNE
e EWFla 3 Mews
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izt AREFR ARETT AREFTT AREFR
Executive directors: HirES:
Mr. Zheng Yonghui BoKE A - 3N - 311
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REHLL - 207 - 207
Mr. Zhang Weijun REERE - 155 - 155
Mr. Zhang Mian RHBEE - 207 - 207
Chief executive officer: THAE
Mr. Li Yun Fei FERLE (i) - 345 - 345
Independent non-execufive directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BHETE 83 - - 83
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos %t 4 207 - - 207
Ms. Pei Bing RELL (i) 41 - - 41
Ms. Zu Rui At i 21 - - 21
352 1,225 - 1,577
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

Emoluments (Continved)
Notes:

(i) Resigned on 30 June 2022
(ii) Appointed on 1 September 2022

liii)  Appointed on 29 September 2022

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid to or
for the executive directors are generally emoluments
paid or payable in respect of those persons’ services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and ifs subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for the services as the directors.

Five Highest Paid Individuals

One (2022: two) of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group were directors whose emolument is sef out in
the above. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
remaining four (2022: four) highest paid individuals of
the Group were as follows:

13. EF - fTHABR LA AR E TN
a4

(a)

(b)

EERTHREARME »
HisE -

(i) R2022%F6 A30H BT

(ii) MR2022F98 1 HEZ (T

[ii)  M2022F9H29REZRT

AARRATEFTINZ2HF S FH
REDNSERMEZFALEEREARAR
AREMBARZEHMREMRZR
BMX BN — R -

EXRRBUFRATESFNOME )
MEEEFREHRORB M A -

LEBREHAL
AEBRELERSHFALBE A
(20224 - MA)EF HBMEEH
B EX-#ZE2023F12A318 1k
FE-AEBEBMA (2022F
ME)EEHFALTOMES T :

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREEFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe ERHEMED
in kind E 2,422 1,770
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R UK 48 7| 51 & 4 7 195 44
2,617 1,814

FEESAREZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL
EMOLUMENTS (Confinved)

(b) Five Highest Paid Individual (Continved)

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

13. EF - fTHABR LI ARE TN
+ M4 =

b) AEEEHF AL
WEZHMSBE QT :

Number of individuals

A
2023 2022
20234 20224
Emolument band: i E -
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2
1,500,000 7t 1 1
4 4

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors,
chief executive officer or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022. None of the directors, chief
executive officer or five highest paid individuals waived or
agreed fo waive any emoluments during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

Except disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation o the Group's business to which the Company or
any subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which a
director had a material interest, whether direcily or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81 #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

4. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES 14, Fifaf (#4) BIX
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBET T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEMBEMSH
— Current fax — BN ER% A 1,261 1,126
— Over-provision in prior years —BEFEBREE (1,400) -
Income tax (credit)/expenses FTisst (Ee) X (139) 1,126
Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BREPHCEMBSRE(IDEMSE TR
law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax EI)RTEMGBRIZZBIEN  AA
rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25% for RAREZHE A 7KW1I$J+Z?R>—_?—<%
both years. R25% °
The tax rate of subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong BB CHBRARINMEFEREKRIOS%
Kong Profit Tax at 16.5% for both years. MR EGRNBENEH -
The tax rate of subsidiary in the UK is subject to Corporation RREFE RRBEZHMEB QA AR
Tax ("UK Corporation Tax") and is calculated at 19% for both 10% M EHMRNA M ([RE QA
years. Bl e
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and UK Corporation MR ASERRMEFEL /N EBNE
Tax has been made for both years as the Group has no EERIARGN RABERFTENF
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or in the UK. 8 Ko TE B N R B AE B
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

14. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (Confinved) 14. Bt (%) B2 )

150

The reconciliation between the income tax (credit)/expenses
for the year and the loss before tax multiplied by domestic
income tax rate is as follows:

FAMBEH (ER) /7% 5K HAE
BRABAMEHRE ZHERMT

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT AREFIT

Loss before tax B 5 B ES 1B (59,739) (60,758)

Tax at domestic income tax rate BB AEHREERTENRIE (12,420) (11,042)
Tox effect of income not taxable TS E B AR ARN

for tax purpose M E (986) (505)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible IR B AT R AW

for tax purpose MR e 13,154 10,345

Over-provision in prior years BEFEBREREE (1,400) -

Estimated tax loss not recognised ARG HIEERE 1,513 2,328

Income tax (credit)/expenses e (Ee) /FxX (139) 1,126

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused estimated
tax losses of approximately RMB24,253,000 (2022:
RMB20,498,000] available for offsetting against future profits.
No deferred tax asset for both years has been recognised
in respect of such fax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in above unused estimated tax losses,
the Group has unused estimated tax losses of approximately
RMBQ,626,000 (2022: RMB5,104,000) available for
offsetting against future profits in UK and the unused estimated
tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely and up to Pound
Sterling (“GBP"] 5 million. The remaining unused esftimated tax
losses will be expired as below:

M2023F12A31B - AEBE RS A
SIRIEE B ARK24,253,0007T (2022
F: AR ¥20,498,0007T ) 7] fi 5 85 K 2K
i ) o B I R SR A B U B DA TR R B
EFEX EHYZERABBRBETEHREA
BE - LA AXPAGFREBEST AR
BRMAAHEABRHARES 6260007
(20224 - AR ¥5,104,0007T) 7T A 7
HRERIGEHN BZRPAETHER
BRI EREE &% 55000,0005 8 -
BTN ARB A RBEBEN I MERNT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARBTT

2023 2023% - 3,381
2024 20244 1,606 1,606
2025 20254 3,096 3,096
2026 2026% 3,563 3,563
2027 20274 3,748 3,748
2028 20284 2,614 -
14,627 15,394
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

15. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Loss per share —Basic
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB59,600,000 (2022:
RMB61,884,000) and the weighted average number of
153,869,000 (2022: 141,604,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

(b) Loss per share—Diluted
The effects of all potential ordinary shares are antfi-
dilutive since their assumed conversion and exercise
would result in a decrease in loss per share for both
years.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for
both years.

16. DIVIDEND
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023,

nor has any dividend been proposed subsequent to the end of
the reporting period (2022: Nil).

FEESAREZERERAF

15.

16.

BB

() BREBRE-EX
BREABEDREARRAE
EAREFEBROARR
59,600,0007T (2022%F : A R #
61,884,0007C) R & M B %17 ¥
37 0 e 7 9 81153,869,000 %
(20227 : 141,604,000/ ) 5 #

=]
=10 °

(b) BREE-#F
RMEFE MAEBEEBRAA
EREETE HITARBRRER
RITEZEFBHEEBRASHER
BRI D -

MEFE 2 BRERREEERN
|§JO

i 8.

B E2023F12A31 A 1L FE I & @K
A E A AR ROK B K S E AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W38~ W Kt
Leasehold
improvement
Plant and and office Motor Mining  Construction

Buildings ~ machinery ~ equipment vehicles infrastructure in progress Total
BENE
£ER

BF RBERESE HARE RE  REEE  HBIR &t

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR%TR ARETR

COST: A
As at T Jonuary 2023 R2023F1A1R 8,857 51,714 4,541 12,091 59,847 123,061 260,111
Addition RE - 253 - - - - 253
Disposal wrie off HE /s - 853 - - 140 - [9674)
Transfer from rightofuse asset BRAREEER = = = 730 = = 730
Exchange realignment ERHE - 6 - - - - 6
As at 31 December 2023 20235124318 8,857 23,439 4,541 12,821 58,707 123,061 231,426
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT: ~ Rt i ER A&
As at T Jonuary 2023 R2023F1A1R 6,406 43,030 2,808 12,049 21,444 34,045 119,782
Provided during the year FNESE 523 943 412 - 3 - 1,881
Disposal wrie off HE /s - (25090 - -8 - eI
Transfer from rightofuse asset BtRREERA = = = 669 - - 669
Impairment loss recognised BRRRESE 309 673 232 - 6,158 14,296 21,668
Exchange realignment kA - 1 - _ - _ 1
As at 31 December 2023 R2023512A318 7,238 19,617 3,452 12,718 26,522 48,341 117,888
Carrying amounts: REE:
As at 31 December 2023 #2023F12A318 1,619 3,822 1,089 103 32,185 74,720 113,538
COST: A
As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1A18 9,232 55714 6,041 12,091 61,183 121,797 266,058
Additions NE - - - - - 1,264 1,264
Disposal/write off e/ (375) 4,000) (1,500 - (1,336] - (7,211
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31R 8,857 51,714 4,541 12,091 59,847 123,061 260,111
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT: ~ Rt HiERHE
As at T January 2022 nW2022461 718 6,123 43,991 3,772 11,973 21,484 34,045 121,388
Provided during the year FREE 502 1,319 461 76 - - 2,358
Disposal /write off HE/ M (219) 12,280) (1,425) - 40) - (3,964)
As ot 31 December 2022 %20221231 8 6406 43,030 2808 12049 21444 34045 119782
Carrying amounts: RE®E:
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31R 2,451 8,684 1,733 42 38,403 89,016 140,329
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Conined) ~ 17. #03% ~ MR Je 5 )

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly used
in the Group’s sale of marble and marble related products
operation (the “Sichuan Jinshida CGU"]. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the directors conducted a review
of the recoverable amount of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and rightof-use assets based on
the value in use of Sichuan Jinshida CGU and concluded that
amounts of RMB21,668,000 (2022: nil), RMB5,366,000
(2022: nil) oand RMB283,000 (2022: nil) was impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2023 in respect of
the Group's property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and rightofuse assets. The recoverable amount have been
defermined on the basis of the value in use of the Sichuan
Jinshida CGU, the valuation is prepared by an independent
professional valuer. The pre-fax discount rafe in measuring the
amounts of value in use were 28% (2022: 27%) in relation
to Sichuan Jinshida CGU. The growth rate of cash flow in
the long run are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of
3% (2022: 3%). Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is
based on the Sichuan Jinshida CGU's past performance and
management's expectation for future performance.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amounts of Sichuan Jinshida CGU to exceed the recoverable
amount. If the prefax discount rafe was changed to 33%
(2022: 34%), while other parameters remain constant, the
recoverable amount of CGU of Sichuan Jinshida CGU would
be reduced to approximately RMB111,447,000 (2022:
RMB135,000,000) and impairment of approximately
RMB31,335,000 (2022: further impairment of
RMB38,000,000) would be recognised.

If the budgeted sales covering 5-year period were reduced by
5%, while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of Sichuan Jinshida CGU would be reduced to
approximately RMB 129,022,000 (2022: RMB159,000,000)
and impairment of approximately RMB13,760,000 (2022:
further impairment of RMB13,000,000) would be recognised.

FEESAREZERERAF

KEBZME BERHK ﬁixﬁﬁ/\zﬁ
SEREAMKREBLAHEBEMMNEEZE
BENeRHERSEEEM]) - NE
Z2023F12A31BIEFE EFER
mlleREReELFEUCHEREESR
FAEEZYE BELAREB BEEE
NEERAREEZAROESEHE RAE
F2023F12A3 1B LEFEAEE Y
X HELREB BREEUAREAESR
EREeEINBARE21,668,000
7T (2022%:F) - AR®5,366,000
7T (20225 F) R AR #¥283,0007T
(2022F :F) - A @ & R M) & K
ERCESEMCEREEET A H
fETETbEE? S EFEGERNRR gl
fﬁ@?iﬁhﬁrgﬁﬁﬁ%‘i@%%ﬁ
ZTEWEEEE$Z%28%(2022¢127%)°
BemnEsRABREFAI% (2022
F 3B BEEREREFE -FELRAE
BzZEMEEREZS LB HEARH
s PDREEEHEEREMNE - BH
mErDREOIeKERSEELESENLZ
BAEXRBELEBEHRRKE 2 BAIE
H oo

EEEBRR Tf’cﬂEZﬁTE““E’JEﬂA}%
AREHHIreZynm)eRERSE
EBUNKREEBB WO - MK
AIARIR R F R33% (20224 : 34%) -
RS2 e R AE B 2R ER
ﬁ?iﬁhﬂ’]THﬁZ@%%ﬁHﬁﬁ?%%@/\
E®111,447,0007T (20224 : AR#
135, OOO 0007T) @ W ZEMERIMEL A
R#31,335,0007T (20224 : 3 — A #
RREAR®E38,000,0007T) °

MBREAFHRENREHESERDS5%
mEMB2BERSTE AN ESRKER
CELABUNAKR@SERRISEHA
R#129,022,0007T (202245 : AR%
159,000,0007t) - I 78 W SR E 49 A
R#13,760,0007C (20224 : # —
RBEAEE13,000,0007T) °
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. EEEE

Mining
rights
PRUERE
RMB'000
ARETF T
COST: R
As at 1 January 2022, as at 31 December 2022, R2022F1A1H 120229 12A318
as at 1 January 2023 and as af 31 December 2023 7202351 A 1H k20234 12H31H 62,785
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND R BERRE:
IMPAIRMENT:
As at 1 January 2022, R2022F1H1H 20226 12831H
as at 31 December 2022 and KR2023F1A1H
as at 1 January 2023 29,371
Impairment loss recognised ERRREERE 5,366
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12H31H 34,737
CARRYING AMOUNT: BREE:
As at 31 December 2023 M2023F12HA31H 28,048
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%F12H31H 33,414

The intangible assets represent mining rights of marble reserves
in the Zhangjiaba Mine which is located in Jiangyou County,
Sichuan Province, the PRC. The Mine is operated by the
Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Sichuan Jiangyou
Jinshida Stone Co., Lltd.* ["Sichuan Jinshida”). The local
government granted the mining permits to Sichuan Jinshida
with a term of 10 years to 1 February 2021 and further
extend 5 years to 1 February 2026.

The Group conducted a reviews of the recoverable amount
of its intangible assefs in 2023 and 2022. The Group's
infangible assefs are used in the Group’s Sichuan Jinshida
CGU. Defails please refer to note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

* English translation for identification only
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. fd HIBE %
Leasehold Leased

lands property  Motor vehicle Total

HELH HEME RE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTIL ARET ARETT ARETT

Cost: BA:

As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 1R 2,457 - 658 3,115
Disposal & (1,154 - - (1,154)
Exchange dlignment ER AR - - 61 61
As at 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31R 1,303 - 719 2,022
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:

As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1H 1,500 - 340 1,840
Charge for the year FERXI 34 - 139 173
Exchange realignment [ 51 3% - - 36 36
Written off upon disposal A B 5 (937) - - (937)
As at 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31R 597 - 515 1,112
Cost: A

As at 1 January 2023 M2023F1A1H 1,303 - 719 2,022
New lease entered HAIAYD - 1,372 - 1,372
Exchange alignment [ 50 3% - 8 11 19
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BREENZ BRERX - - (730) [730)
As at 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31R 1,303 1,380 - 2,683
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:

As at 1 January 2023 R2023%1 A1H 597 - 515 1,112
Charge for the year ERX I 29 286 145 460
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% - 3 9 12
Impairment loss recognised BERARNELSE 109 174 - 283
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREYE BERE - - (669) (669
As at 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31R 735 463 - 1,198
Carrying amounts: BREE:

As at 31 December 2023 W2023%12A318 568 917 - 1,485
As at 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31R 706 - 204 910

MR EReEEEMARENEFT
FNER A M BRRMEE -

Details of impairment assessments of Sichuan Jinshida CGU
are set out in note 17/ to the consolidated financial statements.

HEZRSRHABERNHARE2015,000
7T (20224 - AR#¥1,638,0007T) °

The total cash outflow of leases were approximately
RMB2,015,000 (2022: RMBT,638,000).
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continved) 19. B RER 2 (o)
leasehold lands represents lump sum considerations paid or HEITHEASERBEARBEZE
payable by the Group to acquire leasehold lands located BB E@OPBMEL LB
in the PRC under the mediumterm lease where its mining RPEMEETE NS ENZ — R
infrastructure are primarily located. The Group is the registered KE-AEEAZSHEL AT ME
owner of these leasehold land. These leasehold lands are with FEA-ZEHE+L MBI RI8F E50
lease periods of 48 to 50 years and there are no ongoing F-REDHEESGR RREBBERM
payments to be made under the terms of the land leases other 1 A 3R E B B AR = A AR E1E B B RSN
than payments based on rateable values set by the relevant HA iitiﬁ E FRIE - ZF AR
government authorities. These payments vary from time fo fime BE WAXNTHBERTERE -2
and are payable to the relevant government authorities. The REAEIER ZFBEVNENEE
leasehold land components of these owned properties are THEHDTAEBZS -
presented separately only if the payment can be allocated
reliably.
The Group leases offices in Hong Kong (2022: motor vehicle) AEERELENRETBEHERRE
for its operations for 2 years (2022: 4.5 vyears| for the year (20229 :)R8) - RBE2023%F 12K
ended 31 December 2023. In determining the lease term and SIRIEFE - HBR29 (20229 :4.5
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group F) o PAEETE HH B N R A S AT e B R RO
applies the definition of a contract and defermines the period RER AEERAAGANEELET
for which the contract is enforceable. BRF R MITHORME -
In addition, lease liabilities of RMBQ1,000 are recognised AN R2022F12H3 1B 28 A AR
with motor vehicle as at 31 December 2022. The lease O1,000MHEEBEMAERER -
agreement do not impose any covenants other than the security BREEARENEHEERETHNERAER
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. leased S HEWMBL EBRMEFMRZ -HEER
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. ETGREGRNER-
In addition fo the portfolio of shortterm leases for offices, BAEBTHITIVUHNRAE BE - BE
warehouse, plant and machinery which are regularly entered &*& WEMESHEAIN NEERNH
info by the Group, the Group entered info several short- ZE2023F12A31HIEEFERPAE
term leases for offices and warehouse during the year BEAIVHIARHAMEE - N2023F 124
ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the J1H - EEBEEEENSFREITHE R
outstanding lease commitments relating fo shortterm leases is ERAR®KI1650007m (2022 AR
RMB 165,000 (2022: RMB418,000). ¥418,0007T) °
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20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 20. A2 M A R Z v
COMPANY
The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of TREINARRETEMNBRAANFBE -E
the Company which, in opinion of the directors, principally ERF RERAHAEENKEEER
affect the operating results and net assefs of the Group. To BEFEBEKEEZE-EFERA i
give full details of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the FrEl B AR SEBIREME]BN TR
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
Nominal value
Place/country of of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share/  Percentage of equity
registration registered interests attributable to
Company name and operation Kind of legal entity paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
ML MR BRTRARKRS/ NG 3
ARER ENY /B  EEBRER EMARKREZEE ERESL TEXH
2023: 2022
2023F:  2022%:
Directly held:
EERE:
Success United Asia Lid. The BVI Limited liability company US$1 100% 100%  Trading of marble slabs
BTN ERARF RBRAES BREARA B BEERBARMY
China Kingsmount Industrial Group Limited ~ The BVI Limited liability company US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
TEEINEREEERAF EBRAES BREARA E TEZZ
China Kingsfield Mining Group Limited The BVI Limited liability company US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
TEEAREEEERAF KBRS BREARA 1%7T REZR
China Kingsgold Mining Group Limited The BVI Limited liability company US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
TEEEREEEERAF KBRIES BREARA 1%7T REZR
Tech Melon Catering Management Limited  Hong Kong Limited liability company US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
MEHERERERRA B BREARA 1% REZR
Indirectly held:
BERE:
Baiwei (Shenzhen) Investment The PRC Limited liability company RMB500,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Management Co., Lid. *
BECRINREERERAR E BREARA AR#500,0007T TEZZ
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20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Nominal value

20. A2 7 B A F Z FEAE o)

Place/country of of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share/  Percentage of equity
registration registered  interests affributable fo
Company name and operation Kind of legal entity paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
AL ERR BRATRBEREA NG
AREE EENE/BR  EEREERR HAMBEREZEE BEEAMN TEER
2023: 2022:
2023%F:  2022%:
Kingstone [HK) Group Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company HK$ 1 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
2R (BB EEERAT EE BREARA 1T REER
Kingstone (Guangzhou] Mable Industry The PRC Limited liability company US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and trading of
Co., lid.* ["Kingstone Guangzhou’) construction materials
2R (BEM)REERAA ([2AEM]) & BREARA 50,000,000% 7 MIREERENH
Sichuan Jinshida The PRC Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Mining, processing and
trading of consfruction
materials
m)le&E HE BREMFRAT AR#10,000,0007T Rk MIREERE
g}
Tech Melon Limited Limited liability company GBP100 100% 100%  Food brand franchise
E BRELRAR 1005 8 REmEETEE
Celebrafion Meal Limited UK Limited liability company GBP100 100% 100%  Food brand franchise
e BRELRAR 1005 8 REmEETEE
Zhuhai Jinhong Stone Industry Co., lid.*  The PRC Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
KBELAEERAF hE BRELAA AR#10,000,0007T REZR
* English translation for identification only * HGE BRI

None of the subsidiaries had debt

the end of the reporting period or at any fime during the year

(2022: nil).

securities outstanding at

T
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21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T AREEFIT
Raw material JE M 216 137
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. © 5 EWGRIH
2023 2022
202345 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T X ARET T
Trade receivables from contracts RERFEHNZE S EWGIA
with customers 123,289 152,700
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEIE R (99,281) (88,395)
24,008 64,305

As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables arising from confracts

R2022F1ATH - REEFENZES

with customers (before allowance for credit losses) amounted FEWHIE (IREEEBBREN)NAA

to approximately RMB116,481,000.

The Group's frading ferms with its customers are mainly on
credit. Except for certain customers solicited by the Group
at the beginning of its commercial operation were granted
for a longer credit terms, the credit period is generally up
fo three months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over ifs outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Trade

receivable are non-inferest bearing.

FEESAREZERERAF

K#¥116,481,0007T °

AEEEEEFNESGRATERER
R -BAEEREHABXEERD
HRENETEPERTREEEHIN
EE%—H%%QEWH°$%E%
%*%N@%* BB i B 12 il LA B
BAEEERR - %E% EET+§°
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continved) 22. B G EWGKIE (#)

An aged analysis of trade receivables, as at the end
of the reporting period, based on earlier of the invoice
date or revenue recognition date, and net of allowance
for credit losses, is as follows:

RBERR REZZAPRRAER
RE (ARFERE) BHENFIE (B
HREEEREE) WREONMBT:

2023 2022

2023%F 2022%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBEFIT

0 to 90 days 0%90H 23,028 31,584
Q1 to 180 days Q12 180H - 12,739
181 to 360 days 181 E2360H = 3,787
361 to 720 days 361&720H 980 13,175
Over 720 days 7208 LA - 3,020
24,008 64,305

The credit period is generally up to three months.

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's
frade receivables balances are debtors with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately RMB80,000 (2022:
RMB32,721,000) (net of allowance for credit losses) which

are past due at the end of the reporting period.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up fo the
end of the reporting period.

The balance of approximately RMB980,000 (2022:
RMB16,195,000) was denominated in HK$.

Defails of impairment assessment are set out in note / to the
consolidated financial statements.
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23. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. TEAFEKIE ~ H 4 B Al e WOk IH
RECEIVABLES

2023 2022

2023%F 2022%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREEFIT

Prepayment FEfRIA 15,257 7,700

Deposits ®re 569 2,771
Other receivables for refund from suppliers E2 & f 3R 3k A B Y H Ath

JE W3R8 18,570 36,068

Other receivables H b fE UL TR B 5,994 3,397

40,390 49,936

Less: non-current portfion B IEREN R (5,944) (27,640)

34,446 22,296

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
entered info refund agreement with suppliers to refund
the prepaid amounts of acquisition of property, plant
and equipment after deduction of relevant cost with the
amounts of approximately RMB49,570,000 to the Group
by 4 instalments within 2 years. The above-mentioned
other receivables were interest-free and no collateral
obtained by the Group. loss on unwinding of discount on
other receivables of approximately RMB9,112,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.

Deposits and other receivables with the amounts approximately
RMB243,000 (2022: RMB229,000) and RMB205,000
(2022: RMB191,000) were denominated in HK$ and GBP

respectively.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FEESAREZERERAF

BE2022F12A31HIEFE - REEEH
FERI AT MR a8 RRF A 2 0 H R A
SEEREBEVE BERRBEHEMNK
(REIERBRAKA) B AREE49,570,000
Joe Pt E U KIE N S EAKEY
ER AR M M EUGKIER RN
BEOARES 112,000 NI HER o

TERHAR®243,0007T (20224 -
AR ¥229,0007T) X AR #205,0007T
(20225 : AR¥E191,0007T) 2 & kH
ftb FE WK IE 29 B AE 7T R R EE R E

BEMGFBEEREEMBEREMET -
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, Bl& KBl &%HEY
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are all denominated in AEENReMRSFEMHATIE
the following currencies: WatE:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETTT
RMB ARES 1,229 790
HK$ BT 3,337 2,210
us$ Ep 72 168
GBP e 18 20
4,656 3,188
RMB is not freely convertible info other currencies, however, ARBIAATEREBREMEE  HEIRE
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations, the (MEARAMBINEER GO - KNE
Group is permitted fo exchange RMB for other currencies EEEBEBERBEETINERBORT
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange BARBLBREMBLEE-
business.
25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. H 5 AT sR0E
An aged analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice REZEZEAH EHRMNRENER D
date, is as follows: T
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
0 to 60 days 0Z60H 10,082 37,072
61 to 120 days 61&120H - -
121 to 180 days 1212 180H - -
Over 180 days 180H LA & 186 177
10,268 37,249
The average credit terms granted by the suppliers of the AEEHERARTAEEN FTHRER
Group up to 90 days. RR®ROORH -
Trade payables with the amounts of approximately B 5 RMNRIBHARE131,0007T (2022
RMB131,000 (2022: RMB122,000) were denominated in F:ARE122,00070) AT EHE -
GBP.
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Bl 35 ¥R 2R Pif 5E

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. B A
Minimum lease Minimum lease
payments payments
REHEERIE BIEHEEFHIE
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Within one year —FR 687 Q1
More than one year but less than —FALEMEAR
two years 416 -
1,103 Q1
Amounts due for setllement within one year 1 —F N4 & K IR
(shown under current liabilities) (RREEE IETE@J) 687 Q1
Amounts due for sefflement after one year R —FEEE B
(shown under non-current liabilities) (RIERBEE IETE@J) 416 -
1,103 Q1

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to

lease liabilities is 4.77% (2022: 1.98%).

The balances were denominated in HK$ for both years.

FEESAREZERERAF

KA E R E R INE T 1518 8 55
E/AT7% (20224 -

1.98%) °

ZEEHBRMEFEH LB TEE.
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. FoAth BB sk 0E K g R A

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREETTT

Payables relating fo: BTN 5 % IR A B e N ROR
Taxes other than income tax I (FTEHRIRRIN) 1,303 2,621
Payroll and welfare TEREF 4,175 6,720
Contract liabilities aHadE 196 1,150
Accrued interest expenses FEET A B R X2 534 1,927
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A I H b & 5RIB 25,308 19,405
31,516 31,823

Accruals and other payables mainly comprised of accrued
interest expense, legal and professional fee and utilities
expenses.

As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB1,081,000.

Confract liabilities represented advance payments received
from customers for sales of marble and related products
pursuant to the respective sales contracts before the confrol of
the products are passed to the customers.

Accruals and other payables with the amounts of
approximately RMB8,761,000 (2022: RMB760,000) and
RMBS5,880,000 (2022: RMB2,099,000) are denominated in
HK$ and GBP respectively.
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R2022F1TATR - ARNEBBEHNRARE
1,081,0007T -

EHMRABEEREMENEEREZERPA
REBEHEBEEAONHEERE L LER
7 an [A) & P YR TR AN RO -

BEHNAREES 761,0007T (20224 - A
R #760,0007T) k AR %5,880,0007T
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28. AMOUNT DUETO A DIRECTOR

28. WA 3 aK0H

2023 2022

20234 2022%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®E TR ARETF T

Loan from a director [Note a) REEFEHNER (Hita) 1,006 991
Amount due to a director [Note b) B ESHE (H3b) 266 147
1,272 1,138

Except for the amounts of approximately RMB24,000 (2022:

nil) was denominated in GBP, the remaining amounts were

B4 AR #24,0007T (20224 « ) B9 %
THIAREETEIN T HRER W EFES

denominated in HK$ for both years. WA TTEHE °

Notes: it -

(a) The loan from the Group's director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, is unsecured, (a) REASEEESEKBELENERAERAE .
interest bearing at 10% per annum and repayable within 1 year from REFEI0%E HAAEME B RME B
respective extension date or drawdown date as appropriate. The loan (RERME) BT —FRNEE - ZZEEZHR
will be matured on December 2024 (2022: December 2023). 20244128 (20224 : 20234F 128 ) B|Hi

(b) The amount due to a director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, is unsecured, inferest- (b) ENERHKELENTBEAEER 288
free and repayable on demand. ARERER-

29. OTHER LOANS 29. H Atk
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R AREFT

Creditor A (Note a) FERBRFRA (HTiEa) - 3,573

Creditor B [Nofte b) JERTERRRB (H15Eh) 1,359 1,340

Creditor C (Nofe c) ERBRIRC (Batc) 1,359 1,340

Creditor D (Nofe d JENBRRD (B/aEd) 1,359 1,340

Creditor E (Note ¢) e BRIRE (M ite) 293 10,451

Creditor E (Note e/ FERBRIRE (W ate) 692 -

5,062 18,044

Less: non-current portion B IERBE D = (1,340)

5,062 16,704
Other loans were denominated in HK$ for both years. HtpERRMEFEHABTHE -

FEESAREZERERAF

2023 3 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl #5 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

29. OTHER LOANS (Coniinued) 29. HAtbh K a0

Notes: Mt -

(a) The loans are unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and (a) ZEBERAEER REMESLFE -ARE
repayable within 1 year from respective drawdown date. During the REAYE; —FABEE-HE2021F128
year ended 31 December 2021, the loans were further extended 2 SIALHFE ZEERBREMAMEE—F
years from the original drawdown date. The loans of RMB1,635,000 TEHMF-2BABARK 635000 kAR
and RMB1,635,000 will be matured in January 2022 and February #1,635,000t W E F 9 BIR202291 A &
2022 respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the 2022428 (RIERME) BIH - B Z=20224F12
loans were further extended 1 year from the respective maturity date and AR E ZEEREREIHALE—F
will be matured in January 2023 and February 2023. FEERTF A 5 B 20234 1 A 202342 A 5

HA o

(b) The loans are unsecured, inferest bearing at 10% and repayable after 1 (b) ZEERAEER REFXI0%EE EARE
year from respective drawdown date. REE B —FRER-

[c)  The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 1% per month, and repayment (c) ZERREER BARNKI%HE ARBEIR
after 1 year from respective drawdown date. During the year ended A —FREE-BZE2023F12A31H
31 December 2023, the loan was extended 1 year from the respective IHFE ZERESINHARTER—F WHR
maturity date and will be matured in October 2024. 202410 A 284 -

(d) The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 1% per month, and repayment (d) ZERREER BANKILHE ARBER
after 1 year from respective drawdown date. As at 31 December 2023, HRA M —FREE -N2023F128318 -
the loan was matured and remain unsettled. The Group is in negofiation ZEHREHHADNAER - AEBERSFH
with the counterparty to extend the maturity. EEERIEAE -

le) The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per annum, and le) ZERAERF ZFERNERI2%LETE - AREX
repayable on demand. The loan with the amounts of approximately BE - EHB/ARES2,000TEF B EE
RMB692,000 is unsecured, interestfree and repayable on demand. B EBRRBARERER ZEFREARAE
The loan were obtained from family members of Mr. Zheng Yonghui, a FEOKIE AR R 8 -
director of the Company.

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 30. AIHB R

On 28 December 2023, the Company completed to issue M2023F12H28H * A RA Al 5K 1T

convertible notes with principal amounts of HK$ 10,000,000 K& % A210,000,000B Ttz E

(the “Tranche 1 Notes"). The Tranche 1 Notes were unsecured, B(E—#ER]) - E—UHEBAREK

interest bearing at 2% per annum on the outstanding nominal H EXERTEHEZRIHA BE—

value of the Tranche 1 Notes from the respective date of issue WEBREEREESF2%T L MER
and up fo the maturity date and payable quarterly in arrears. TEXfTe

The Tranche 1 Notes entitle the nofes holder to convert them E-HEBERTREFBEARN AR

info ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the E-HFRBEETHHEINHAEAMLEE

date of issue of the Tranche 1 Notes and up fo the close of HEXENHELEREMESEBEERR A

business on the day falling seven days prior to the maturity ARARAEBR - BEESAEERAA

date. The conversion price shall be 90% of the average (IZBEFAAIMEETERRBEE LA
closing price per share (subject to adjustment) on any three HA45@E XA AEM=ZEEEL XA
consecutive business days as selected by the notes holder BRORBIXAMEEZGRFHETEZ

(the "Noteholder”) during the 45 business days immediately Q0% (Al TR E) - HMRE B ENIBK

preceding the relevant conversion dafe on which shares were Mty 2 HE -

fraded on the Stock Exchange. The conversion price shall not

be below the par value of the conversion share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&
30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continved)

The Company may af any time and from time fo time, redeem
the issued Tranche 1 Notes at 115% of its nominal value, or
such other amount as may be agreed between the Company
and the Noteholder. The Company may (but is under no
obligation to] redeem any Tranche 1 Notes presented for
conversion in cash at the redemption amount if the conversion
price is less than or equal to the conversion downside price
subject to the relevant activities.

The redemption amount is calculated according tfo the formula
below:

N X {P+[8% X P X [D/365]+]}

All Tranche 1 Notes must be converted by the Noteholder on
the date falling 12 months from the closing date of first sub-

tranche of Tranche 1 Notes, i.e. 28 December 2023.

The maximum number of shares that Tranche 1 Notes can
covert are 60,000,000 shares.

The Tranche 1 Notes confain two components, debt
component and derivative (including conversion and early
redemption options) component. The Group designated the
Tranche 1 Notes as financial liabilities at FVTPL as a whole.

The movement of the convertible loan notes for the year is sef

fn S Bl 35 ¥R B 53

30. AR EETE ()

ARFAERERIEEE -HEEEE
Z115% HARAEREFHE AR ER
EZHEMERE BEODBETE-—HEE-
W ERERKFRBBETHAE (XA
BMEBMR) ARQAA (EBELEEE)
RECOSHANRESEREMND 2R IAH
BRZEFE-HERE-

BOSBEDIRETIIAAGE:

N X {P+[8% X P x (D/365]+]}

MEE-—HRBEEARBERAEARSE —
HWEEE o ZRE A HE R 2ME
A& R (B2023F12H28H )&k -

F-HERTEBRIBROEKSEAR
60,000,000/ i 7 -

FHEBREEMELY BEHIFO R
TETA(SRFEHR &IEREDE) S
DoAKEBE - HEBREBEESRK
AREHAERZEREE-

pu]

BREFREBRAFEZESHEHIIN

out as below: ™
RMB'000
ARETF T
As at 1 January 2023 M2023F1A1RH -
Issue of convertible notes BT AR R 9,094
Exchange realignment bE 5 F B (32)
As at 31 December 2023 M2023%F12A31H 9,062

The Monte Carlo Simulation model is used for valuation of the
converfible loan notes. The key inputs used in the model are
disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEESAREZERERAF

AMEEREEHERARS RERHE
B Z WA A Z R A BB
BB mMRME7 P E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&
31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

(a)

(b)

On 8 August 2018, the Company received a writ of
summons (the “Writ") issued in the Court of First Instance
of the High Court of Hong Kong under Commercial
List Action No. 5 of 2018 (the "Action”) by Mr. Li Jiaju
(the “Plaintiff A"} against Kinwin International Investment
Limited (the “1st Defendant”), a company wholly owned
by a former director, the Company (the “2nd Defendant”)
and the former director [the "3rd Defendant”), in relation
to a claim for the sum of approximately HK$23.7
million plus interest and cosfs against the 1st Defendant
or alternatively, a claim for a sum of approximately
HK$21.2 million plus interest and costs against the
Company or alternatively a claim for the sum owned by
the 1st Defendant against the 3rd Defendant, pursuant
to a loan agreement between the Plaintiff A and the 1st
Defendant and an alleged deed of assignment that was
executed between the Plaintiff A, 1st Defendant, the 2nd
Defendant. The Company considered no provision made
for the case as this proceeding is still at its early stage
and the Company is highly unlikely to incur any further
liability as ot 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022.

On 22 August 2018, the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“High Court’) handed
down a judgment to dismiss the application for
summary judgment from Zhongtai International Wealth
Management Llimited (the “Plaintiff B") which is the
financier of Royal Moon for underwriting of open offer
announced by the Company on 14 May 2015, for
a claim that the Company is liable to account to the
Plaintiff B for wrongfully returning the balance of fund of
approximately HK$61.4 million from the open offer bank
account to Royal Moon on the ground of the alleged
breach of trust and/or breach of equitable/fiduciary
duties.
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31.

¥ A 78

(a)

R2018F8A8H AR REEZF
ZHELE(TREF])RIZE2018%F
BMEBAFRESHR ([FFaR])R
FrEmEARRFAES 2 EBE
BRREBRAB([F—WE] —
BHAETEEF2EHBZRA)
ARR(IEF-_®KE])RAAEE
E(IF=wEHBELHEARASTHK
(I2M]) AEEEBREREFTHE
F-WETULZERBHERRETF
BE-—WHE FE_WEELZ—H
BREEZLE HEF -RERD
©##23,700,0007% 7T 5 M A &
RERZZRME HEHAQRFRD
2 E 421,200,000 7T 5 MF B
NERZZRE FHBE=HER
HWEE - ERNEBIRE-
ARBRBA AR B ADER R
TIHAPE X B M2023F12H31H &
20229 12A31HZA A& T KA &
EfEAE-—FAE RYEL
IR -

M201848H228 - A K RIITIH
BmFER (IBFER]) TEH
REEFHFEEEBEFERAR A
(TR&EZ]) (A ARRQFR2015
FOSRMMBRMZAREERHES
ERARHES)NBRHRBF
REZLBERZRARAB AR RS
RITERPHRMWMEAREESH
BEHO61,400,0008 cimmRE 2
BLEF BARERERERRS
HEREF REAE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Continved) 31.
(b)  (Continved)

The Plaintiff B is claiming for equitable compensation
and/or damages, and/or account of profits on the
ground of the Company's breach of trust, together with
an order to pay fo the Plainfiff B such sum as may be
found due or payable, including relevant interests and
costs. The Plaintiff B is also seeking for a declaration
that the Company is liable fo account to the Plaintiff B
for the balance of the fund in the open offer account of
the Company or such other sum as the Court thinks fit on
the ground of its breach of trust.

The Company considered no provision made for the
case as this proceeding is sfill af its early stage and the
Company is highly unlikely to incur any further liability

Al 75 ¥R 2= Pt 5E

AR )

(b)

(#)

RELRARREREEMRES
THER XBEEEE R/HX
HAEME YERBESIHRE
LEBUREBRNZESH BEMA
BAERER- E¢Zﬁﬁﬁ2_
ERRARARBTRHAEERF Z
ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁ?¢23t 5 E S0
R mBEEtEE EHEN
NAERER-

ARBRBR AR B ADER R
?ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁxﬂﬁéZOQSi 12A31H &
2022%12R31 B AR AN KAl B

as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. EETEME—FTAGE I ERL
AR -
32. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION 32. 1E2R
RMB'000
AR®T
As at 1 January 2022, as at 31 December 2022, M2022F 1418 - 1K2022912H31H
as at 1 January 2023 and as at 31 December 2023 7202351 A 1R k20234 12HA31H 2,697

The Group is required to make payments for restoration and
rehabilitation of certain land after the sites have been mined.
The provision is measured in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations applicable in the PRC at the end of the
reporting period.

FEESAREZERERAF

RARBEERR NEEANRKEERE
BETIH -BEDIRRSHRREF

B @ M 2 18 3 A R

REBAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl #5 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A
Number of Nominal values of
shares ordinary shares
Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 SREME0.2/ T (20226
(2022: HK$0.02) each 0.028 ) 2 EBR R EE EBREE
‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
TR TERL AR¥BTR

Authorised: EE:
As at 1 January 2022 #2022 1R 1H 150,000,000 1,500,000
Share consolidation (Note (i) AR & B (H12(i)) (142,500,000 -
As at 31 December 2022, as at 1 January 2023  }42022F12A318 - R2023%F

and as at 31 December 2023 1B1BRR2023F12A31H 7,500,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR:
As at 1 January 2022 R202261R1H 2,832,083 28,321 24,435
Share consolidation [Note (i) AR & 0F (H132 (i) (2,690,479) - -
As at 31 December 2022 and M2022F12A31B R

as at 1 January 2023 MW2023F181H 141,604 28,321 24,435
Issue of new shares BIIHR 32,500 6,500 5,985
As at 31 December 2023 ®2023%12A31H 174,104 34,821 30,420
Notes: Wi -

(i)

(ii)

At a extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 19
December 2022, an ordinary resolution was passed to approve the
share consolidation of every twenty issued and unissued existing shares
of HK$0.01 each info one consolidated share of HK$0.2 each of the
Company (the “Consolidated Share”). The share consolidated were

effected on 21 December 2022.

On 19 April 2023, the Company completed to issue and allot
7,000,000 subscription shares at subscription price of HK$0.5 per
share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$3,399,000 will be
infended to use as general working capital including but not limited fo

the repayment of any loan taken out by the Group which was due.

On 18 September 2023, the Company completed fo issue and allot
25,500,000 subscription shares at subscription price of HK$0.32
per share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$8,019,000 will be
intended to use as general working capital including but not limited fo

the repayment of any loan taken out by the Group which was due.
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(i)

(if)

R2022F 128198 BITH AR BIREHBI K
ERBE-AEARAER HERARTNEG -+
BEREEOOIBTZEHTRAEITRAR
NEMtR—REKREEC.2ETZEHKRN (T4
Piig 1) -l & BFER2022F 128218 &
o

R2023F4H198 A RAEKRILABEEER
0.5/ JL# 17 K AL #7,000,0000% 3 86 A% 17 = A
15 FRIEFF 3,399,000 TH A E— R & &
A BRERETRIMEERNEERRAN I

R2023F9R18H  ARBTRIZREESTK
0.328 7T 817 R BL 325,500,000% & A% 17
Fi 1§ 5/ IE % 88498,019,000/8 THE A 1E— R &
BES BEETERRNEEAEBRENAEM
FEEK-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

34. RESERVES 34. fkEf

Contributed reserve

It represents the aggregate amount of the consideration of
RMB24,480,000 paid to the former owners of Sichuan
Jinshida by the ultimate controlling shareholder to obtain
the control over Sichuan Jinshida by 14 March 2008 after
nefting off the investment cost of RMB10,000,000 paid by
the Group on the acquisition of the entire equity inferest in
Sichuan Jinshida from the ultimate controlling shareholder
pursuant to the reorganisation, as if the acquisition had
been completed from the beginning of the year ended 31
December 2010. The corresponding liability of the investment
cost of RMB10,000,000 payable fo the ultimate controlling
shareholder arising from the acquisition pursuant to the
reorganisafion was classified as a current liability as af 31
December 2009 and the balance was seftled in November

2010.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services
estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of the
relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods, the
total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange
differences relating to the translation of the net assets of the
Group's foreign operations from their functional currencies
to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. RMB) which are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the foreign currency
franslation reserve are reclassified to accumulated losses on
the disposal of the foreign operations.

FEESAREZERERAF

BB
BARBESEKRERBERANGYH T
NI & B 3 /O 4% il # M R 200843 A 14
BATROIERFENRNERANHNR
REARM24,480,0007T * & M K &K
SERRBEEARNRKERBRRKED
NekE2PRER S NOREKREA
E®¥10,000,000 Bl EEED
REZE2010F12A831B IEF EHBE
TR-ARBEAETHRESZTEMEL
MENREERRRREXNEAARY
10,000,000t ® 48 & & & 2 X 20094
12A3VBE DB ARBAE MEEHE
R2010F 11 AEE -

BRERE
EREREERNEUAEBHANABRIE
PEBAEREMGTHBIR RS A
hRE - HEBBEDREERERNRDAH
CRAREFHE-SHBzeBENBEBEH
BREZ AAREREBRES (E)R
BoBET UABREREANEREE
# o0 o

IR E A

SNEMBERBREB NSRBI EBNEE
EHENEEERESAKENZINEE
(MARB)ELAMELEZRE BEENEM
2E WS ERLRINE R BB RET N
SN B FHE R E L Z BN S0k
BINERBREFDOBEERFER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. B RESTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 January
2011 [the "2011 Option Scheme”), which was terminated
on 29 June 2020. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2020, a
new share option scheme (the "2020 Option Scheme”)
was adopted. The Company’s 2020 Option Scheme for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. Under the 2020 Option Scheme, the
directors may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, fo subscribe
for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may,
from time to time, grant share options to outside third parties
for seflement in respect of goods or services provided to the
Company.

As at 31 December 2023, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the 2011 Option Scheme was approximately
10,614,000 (2022: 12,990,000), representing 6.1%
(2022: 9.2%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue af any point in
fime, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted fo exceed 1% of the shares
of the Compony in issue at any point in fime, without prior
approval from the Company's shareholders. Options granted
fo substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35. BEMERERTE] )

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the dafe of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is deftermined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price

Bz BREARE G A ME288 A%
W EMEARENERESIN BT B
P m R R H B B AR TR FE B EE
BEETE-1TEERARRESEE
TERERATHESSE : (| A2 R DR
AR E (i) AR ERR D R EEER

of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii] the HEHATREZEZEBNFHRTE: Klii)
average closing price of the shares for the five business days AR R IR BV E(E
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii] the nominal
value of the Company’s share.
2011 Option Scheme PINRES 3¢
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
2023%F128318 2022%12A318
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of  average exercise Number of
price per share options price per share options
sRME S
FHTRE BREZE FHITEE ElRESRE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
Outstanding at the beginning of R EBIRITE
ihe reporting period 4.01 12,990 0.20 260,165
lapsed during the year FERRB 2.18 (2,376) 1.63 (34¢)
Adjustment during the year FRHE = = - (246,829)
Outstanding af the end of the reporting period RREARKITE 4.41 10,614 4.01 12,990
Exercisable af the end of the reporting period RBRERARATE 4.41 10,614 4.01 12,990

PR HA R (A 2R 17 {58 RO 7 P A B9 D 4 F
BEeRE QR4 99F (20225 :5.72

The options outstanding at the end of the reporting period
have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.99

years (2022: 5.72 vyears) and the exercise prices range
from HK$2.344 to HK$32.740 (2022: HK$1.994 to
HK$32.740).

FEESAREZERERAF

F)RTEENF2.344% 7T £32.740
BT (20224 : 1.9948 7w £32.740%
7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £20235F 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Coninved) 35. J B AE R E (o)
The exercise price and exercise period of those share M2023F 128310 K2022F12A31
options outstanding under the 2011 Option Scheme as at B 201 1 FERETEIBETHARITER
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows: B RE B TTIE B M ITE AN T -
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREBE SKRITEE THEB
‘000 HK$
T BT
As at 31 December 2023 130 32.740  From @ June 2014 to 8 June 2024
M2023F12H31H B20145F69R R E202456H8H Ik

173 32.740  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
B2014F6A268BE2024F6H258 1E

156 32.680 From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024, 692,665 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2014
and 2,424,329 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

B2014F 1231988 E2024F12H18H Lt

BHB692 66515 BRI R2014F 128
19 8k 2187718 - RIXH 92,424,329 8
[ #ER] PA2015F 12 19K 2B 1TfF -

242 32.980  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
B2015F1 1288 E2024% 12158 1k

Q9,912 2.344  From 15 April 2019 1o 14 April 2029
B2019F415R £ E2029F4 140 1b
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 35. MERRERTHE] (o)
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREHE SRITEE 1TEH
‘000 HK$
F15 BETT
As at 31 December 2022 147 32.740  From @ June 2014 to 8 June 2024
2022 12H431H B2014F6H9A R E20245F6H8H Ik

173 32.740  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
H2014F6A26AE2024F6H258 1k

156 32.680 From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024, 692,665 options offered may be
exercised on or affer 19 December 2014
and 2,424,329 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

BH2014F 1231988 E2024F12H18H Lt

B HB692 665175 BRI 20149128
198 27T RIFHE2,424,3201 8
BRI 2015 12198 K 2 18771 -

242 32.980 From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
B2015F1 A12A#E2024F12H158 1

2,360 1.994  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017%11 A23HRE202/F11H228 1t

Q.912 2.344  From 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029
B2019F4 158 E2029F4 8141 1E
The exercise prices and numbers of share options have been HRRAER BRENTEERZKED
adjusted with effect from 21 December 2022 due to the EHFAZE  §2022F 1221 HARERK -

capital reorganisation.

No share option granted, forfeited, exercised or expired B E2023F K2022F12A31HILFE -

during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. MEEREERL B EBITFERE
bt

No share option was granted under 2020 Option Scheme for KM EFE AR B ERIZR2020F BT

both years. IR LB AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 202312431 H ILFE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group had the following significant related party transactions:

(a) Key management compensation

36. BT 5
BB REEMDBOFAREEN A&
EEUTEAEB XS :

(o) FEEEAEME

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT T

Salaries, wages and benefits in kind Fe LEREDI= 2,355 2,468
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RKEFIFH 8 H3k 16 15
2,371 2,483

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard

EEREZITHAB Z # B b #r B
ZEERERBAARBREMHBE

to the performance of individuals and market trends. BEE-
(b) Related parties transactions (b) BEEL RS
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Interest on loan from a director EEEFRHE 125 349
Interest on loan from family member —BEERGKEENRH

of a director F B 764 1,181

(c) Balances with related parties
Details of the balances with related parties at the end of
the reporting period are set out in Notes 28 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £2023F 12A31H L&

37. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 37. EMREIHE

On 26 February 2024, the Company received a conversion
notice from Advance Opportunities Fund | (the "AOF 1") in
respect of the exercise of the conversion right affached fo
Tranche 1 Notes in the principal amount of HK$2,000,000
held by AOF | at the conversion price of HK$0.1653 per
conversion share, which equals to Q0% of the average closing
price per share of HK$0.1843 on the three consecutive
business days from 23 January 2024 to 25 January 2024 as
selected by AOF | during the 45 business days immediately
preceding the relevant conversion date on which shares were
traded on the Stock Exchange. As a result of this conversion,
the Company allotted and issued a total of 12,099,213
conversion shares to AOF | on 27 February 2024.

On 14 March 2024, the Company received a conversion
notice from Advance Opportunities Fund VCC (the "AOF
VCC") in respect of the exercise of the conversion right
attached to Tranche 1 Notes in the principal amount of
HK$ 1,500,000 held by AOF VCC at the conversion price
of HK$0.1653 per conversion share, which equals to 90%
of the average closing price per share of HK$0.1837 on
the three consecutive business days from 23 January 2024
to 25 January 2024 as selected by AOF VCC during the 45
business days immediately preceding the relevant conversion
date on which shares were fraded on the Stock Exchange. As
a result of this conversion, the Company allotted and issued
a total of 9,074,410 conversion shares to AOF VCC on 15
March 2024.

FEESAREZERERAF

M2024F2RA268 KA F#E
Advance Opportunities Fund | ([AOF
IDBELHNBRRBE ATEEEZEER
BRI MO 1653 T MIRE (HE
RAOF IPri# F EXBHE R B HA45
& %HMW 220241 A23H8 £2024
FIA2R=AEBLER RN X B
RMEBEZBRTFHHTEO. 1843
BILZ90%)THEACF I AL HER
2,000,000 Tz —#HEEBM &N
Bk R RRER KRAFN2024
F2A27/7BRA0OF IBRE#RETE K
12,099,213 MAR AR 15 -

MR2024F3A148 AR Al EE
Advance Opportunities Fund VCC
([AOF VCChH#HmBmBaEM AR
BEREESREBBM0.16538TH B
B (HERAOF VCCTEEEEMEH
B A HA45EE XA RN Z220245F1 A
23BZE20245 1 A25B=ZAEBE %
BRORBIMESE SR FHETE
0.18378 L 290% )17 AOF VCC i
RAELFEA,500,0008T 28 —#FE
BHSEOHBRRE - ARNEREER KAAF
R2024F 3158 mMAOF VCC o # K&
BITE 49,074, 410 BRI 15 ©
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AT BRI

THE COMPANY

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRMIKRE 9 Q
Property, plant and equipment ERN VIV L] 61 -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 9217 204
987 213
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayment, deposits and other T RIR - 2 & e Ho A MR IR
receivables 7,334 229
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E ] 11,831 514
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREZEY 1,866 1,841
21,031 2,584
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 687 91
Other payables and accruals H A IR K fEE T & A 8,509 8,314
Amount due to a subsidiary JFE AT B[ B A B30 IE 9 9
Amount due to a director e ZESE 8 1,248 1,138
Convertible notes EIEA 9,062 -
Other loans EMER 4,370 16,704
23,885 26,256
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEBEFE (2,854) (23,672)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERABARGE
LIABILITIES (1,867) (23,459
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kFBEB
Other loans HEER - 1,340
lease liabilities HEAE 416 -
NET LIABILITIES & mFE (2,283) (24,799)
EQUITY xR
Share capital &% < 30,420 24,435
Reserves (Note) () (32,703) (49,234)
TOTAL CAPITAL DEFICIENCIES G AL (2,283) (24.799)

Signed on its behalf of the board of directors by:

HTIEERREFERE:

Zhang Cuiwei Zhang Weijun
R REE
Director Director

o o
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Hiat -

38. A A BB AR VLR (o)

ARAREERD

Reserve movement of the Company

Foreign currency

Share Share option translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BB E BRERE IHRERE R EE By
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTFT
As at 1 January 2022 R202261A1H 221,144 17,471 32,659 (309,323) (38,049)
Tofal comprehensive loss FETHERER
for the year - - (44,093 32,908 (11,185)
lapsed of share options BRELM - (142) - 142 -
As at 31 December 2022 ond 720226 12A31A R
as of 1 January 2023 #2023%1 1R 221,144 17,329 (11,434) (276,273) 149,234)
Total comprehensive [loss)/income  FE 2T (1) /IE
for the year BE - - (400) 12,455 12,055
lapsed of share options BIRERY - (771) = 771 -
Issue of new shares BITHR 4,696 = = = 4,696
Share issuing expenses RHETER (220) = = = (220)
As af 31 December 2023 #2023%128318 225,620 16,558 (11,834) (263,047) (32,703)

FEESAREZERERAF
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AR S RHRk e

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND EEA IR AR B At 2 W g5 R
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 20204 20214 20224 2023%
RMB'OOO  RMB'O0O0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBETIT AREBETLT ARBETIT ARETT AR®TR

Revenue WA 65,689 72,765 74,247 72,289 58,491
Loss before tax T A S 18 (68,505) (30,449) (49,732) 60,758 (59,739)
Income fax expenses SRR - - (610] (1,1206) 139
Loss for the year FEER (68,505) (30,449) (50,342) (61,884 (59,600)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL R B AR B
POSITION
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

20194 2020% 20214 20224 2023%F
RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT AR®TI AR¥TR

Non-current assets ERBEE 275,684 267175 230,689 202,293 149,015
Current assets TEEE 112,527 87,677 82,877 89,950 63,326
Total assets BEE 388,211 354,852 313,566 292,243 212,341
Current liabilities REEE 36,341 38,283 49,236 87,005 58,327
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 4,346 3,484 2,780 4,037 3,113
Total liabilities FEN=R 40,687 41,767 52,016 91,042 61,440
Net assets/tofal equity FERE/ B 347,524 313,085 261,550 201,201 150,901
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